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President’s Statement

EFE®RE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), |
am pleased to present the annual results of Easyknit
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2018.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group’s
profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
increased to HK$297,163,000 as compared to the
loss of HK$243,846,000 in 2017. This year's gross
profit margin increased 8.5% compared to last
year (2017: 1.8%). The basic and diluted earnings
per share for the year ended 31 March 2018 was
HK$3.74 (2017: basic and diluted loss per share
was HK$3.07). The Board is therefore pleased to
recommend a final dividend of HK5 cents per share
for the year ended 31 March 2018.

This year, the Group completed the acquisition of
the site on Waterloo Road and will continue to grow
its property investment and development business.
The Group will continue to focus on its strength to
diversify its properties portfolio, investing in high
quality assets and strengthening the income base
of the Group. The Group also successfully obtained
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s approval for the
spin-off of the Group’s residential portfolio and is
committed to growing in the residential real estate
sector.

AR

RAANEREXEZE ([EEE))MA
REXKEEEEBEAER LA ([FRDQ
8 REWB AT (5iiE [A&EE])
RELZE2018F3A31HIEFEZBF

H E2018F3A31H ILFE A&
EEE B AN RREMEFIEMNE
297,163,000/ 7T ' 2017 R & & 18
243,846,000/8 7L > 5 F EF| K Xk
FIEZER 5% (20175 :1.8% ) < &
F2018F3A31A L F & FRER
N#E B R A3.747%8 7T (20174 ¢
B E AR N B E18 A23.0787T) °
b EEEMAEZIRERH 2018
FIABNHIEFEREARKRE TGRS
il

SF AEEERBBLNETZE
HLih WKEEHRAMERER
FREE R - AEBREER TN EE
2 BEREZTIYMELAS RES
BREENMMNBAEEUAER - K
SENMKINESE BBt ED
RAKENEEDEZHES » W
NERETHESR-
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President’s Statement

EE®RSE

Outside real estate, the Group obtained licenses
for financial services (Types 1, 4 and 9 regulated
activities) under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and will continue to grow its loan financing business.

The Board and | would like to express our most
sincere gratitude to our staff, our shareholders and
our business partners for their continued support
and are confident that with such support and strong
leadership and management the Group will continue
to grow and create value for our shareholders.

Tse Wing Chiu Ricky
President

Hong Kong, 25 May 2018

FREBMESN  AERBINEUS &7 L
SRH (FAARFBS7T1E) A MY
TRARAS AR (1 - AN FRR X
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BT MR FBEEBRHFOAIX
o RPBREESAE N BER
BB NEE  AEBERES SR
RIEIN N BIEEE
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E
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENmR DM

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Easyknit
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is pleased to announce the audited annual results
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2018
together with comparative figures. These annual
results have been reviewed by the Company’s Audit
Committee.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final
dividend of HK5 cents per share (2017: HK5 cents
per share) for the year ended 31 March 2018 to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the
forthcoming 2018 annual general meeting (the
“AGM”).

Dividend warrants of the proposed final dividend are
expected to be despatched to the Shareholders on
30 August 2018.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company (“Register
of Members”) will be closed during the following
periods and during these periods, no transfer of
shares will be registered:

(i) To attend and vote at the AGM

For the purpose of ascertaining the
Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote
at the AGM, the Registers of Members will
be closed from Friday, 3 August 2018 to
Wednesday, 8 August 2018, both days inclusive.

Annual Report 2018 4 3}
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEN®R DN

(ii)

In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the
AGM, all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the branch share registrar
(“Branch Share Registrar”) of the Company in
Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited of Level
22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 2 August 2018.

To qualify for the proposed final dividend

For the purpose of ascertaining the
Shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed
final dividend, the Registers of Members will
be closed from Thursday, 16 August 2018 to
Tuesday, 21 August 2018, both days inclusive.

In order to qualify for the proposed final
dividend, all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Branch Share Registrar
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Wednesday, 15 August 2018.

(ii)

%ﬁﬁf%AiéWtHfﬂi%ﬁﬁﬁA
WREEEE FERMDEAFX
1¢ R B H“%E;Mmsisﬂ
B (Z2HM) T F4830% A&
LK THxTﬁLIE%i‘pEFE/%ﬁ
B(IROBEERIE]) £1E&F
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BT 2R RNER1835E F A L

201 WIB B FE -

EREBRZRHRE
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Z R 5 1) ;2018F8H16H
(EHI) 201858 HA21H (£
Ho) I BEMABREEAN " &
NEBEEIERD B ERF

==

BEREAVRER 2 RBRK
BZER RGBS XtHiE
@A B = /B 7201848 4158
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEN®R DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group’s
revenue amounted to HK$331,521,000 (2017:
HK$529,475,000), representing a decrease
of HK$197,954,000 or approximately 37.4%
as compared to last year. There was a profit
for the year attributable to the Company’s
owners of HK$297,163,000, as compared to
a loss of HK$243,846,000 last year. The profit
during the year was mainly due to the gain on
changes in fair value of investment properties
amounting to HK$159,475,000 and the results
attributable to interests in associates amounting to
HK$40,993,000.

The basic and diluted earnings per share amounted
to HK$3.74 for the year ended 31 March 2018, as
compared with loss per share of HK$3.07 for the
corresponding period last year. The review of each
business segment of the Group is set out below.

Property Investment

The Group’s investment properties comprise
residential, commercial and industrial units in Hong
Kong. During the year, the total rental income
of the Group recorded HK$52,958,000 (2017:
HK$51,664,000), representing a 2.5% slight increase
over the last year.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s commercial and
residential units of the investment properties were
all leased out. The Group’s industrial units of the
investment properties continued to maintain a high
occupancy rate of 89.7%. The income from the
property management fee was HK$897,000 (2017:
HK$834,000).

£ e

H E2018F3A31HIEFE - ~&E
& % %8 5331,521,000/% 7T (2017
F :529,475,000/8 7T ) * B E F R
197,954,000/ JT 2k £137.4% °
KRARBRREEERFE G A
297,163,000 7t M A F A B E B
243,846,000 7T c F W@ A £ &
HREEYWEZAFEZSH I
159,475,000/78 7T} 7 1k Bt i~ B 4
% 3£ 4540,993,00078 T °

HE2018F3A31H ILFE  #RE
RNESERF A3 7457 MEFR
HIR A Z I EIE3.078 T AEE R
¥ D ERIBEH N T e

MERE

REERNREMEBREMLNEBNE
EEHERTIEMESM -RNFERN-
AEESSHE WA MR%EE52,958,000
75 7T (20174 : 51,664,000/ 7T ) °
B EFHEIE2.5% ©

R20184F3A31H AEB HEK
FEXREYWHEEMHE 2 ILAL -
REB TEREMESUEEE
FeHEE89.7% - MEETEBIMA
/3897,0007 7T (20174 : 834,000
JL) °
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEN®R DN

Property Development

During the year, the Group continues to promote
the sale of the remaining residential units of its
existing development projects in Hong Kong. The
development of the residential project at No. 6 La
Salle Road, Ho Man Tin, Kowloon, Hong Kong
is in progress for development and on 16 March
2018, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of the ownership of this
residential project, details of which please refer
to “Disposal of Property” as below. For the year
ended 31 March 2018, the revenue recorded from
the property development was HK$248,106,000,
representing a decrease of approximately 45.7% as
compared to HK$456,601,000 in the last year.

Investment in Securities

The Group maintains a portfolio comprising blue-
chip stocks and top-tier investments products
which generate high yield in Hong Kong. The Group
takes into account of the following criteria when
determining whether to take up an investment
opportunity: (i) potential for return on investment in
terms of capital appreciation and dividend payment
for the targeted holding period; (ii) risks exposure
in comparison with the Group’s risk tolerance level
at the prevailing time; and (jii) diversification of the
existing investment portfolio.

VIR

RERN AEBERBEEFESIRA
FREAFGBEEERM - URES
B XHRDHNESRHNTEERE
HERKZEREE RIS MmHR2018
F3H16H AEEFLEE HaE L
ERTEERBEZHERARE 15
B2 TXIHEYME] —fH-#ZE
2018F3H31H I FE W EREX
15 & ¥ %5248,106,000/8 7T & L F
456,601,000/ 7Tk > #945.7% ©

HERE

AEERANREHEBRERS
VEEREERRERAN —RKRE
B AREERTE 2R AEIRER
AREEEANER: ((REERE
AR A N E AR E LK
N ERIRERIRE S (i)ERE T
BN EE A RIEE AL TR E
A M(iERBREHEENZ T
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEN®R DN

As at 31 March 2018, the Group recorded (i) gain
on fair value change of held-for-trading investments
of HK$21,859,000 (2017: loss of HK$8,773,000);
(i) loss on fair value changes of financial assets
designated as at fair value through profit or loss
of HK$3,403,000 (2017: HK$2,328,000); (iii) loss
on changes in fair value of derivatives component
of convertible notes of HK$2,992,000 (2017:
HK$11,003,000); and (iv) loss on disposal of
available-for-sale investments of HK$1,033,000
(2017: gain of HK$43,989,000). The impairment loss
on available-for-sale investments was HK$4,213,000
(2017: HK$25,376,000) and greatly reduced as
compared with last year.

As a result, the Group reported a segment profit
of HK$38,026,000 (2017: HK$50,921,000) during
the year under review. The Group received
dividend income from the listed securities under
held for trading investment and available-for-sale
investments of HK$5,631,000 and HK$1,896,000
respectively during the year under review. As
at 31 March 2018, the Group’s held-for-trading
investments amounted to HK$100,094,000 (2017:
HK$287,493,000). It was derived from (i) the
purchase of trading securities of HK$94,185,000
during the year under review; (i) the disposal of
held-for-trading securities which had a cost or fair
value as at 31 March 2018 of HK$278,031,000; and
(iii) net decrease in market value in the amount of
HK$3,553,000 of the held-for-trading investment.
This value represented an investment portfolio
comprising 5 (2017: 4) equity securities which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

10
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEN®R DN

Held-for-trading investments HFIEEERE

The Group’s significant investments under held-for- 72018434318  ANEBRFHIEE

trading as at 31 March 2018 were as below: BEETMHEAKRENT:
Approximate
percentage
held to the Dividend Approximate
total issued income for Fair value percentage of
share capital the year  gain/(loss) for total assets
of the Investment ended the year ended Fair value  of the Group
No. of company/  cost/cost of 31 March 31 March at 31 March at 31 March
Company name/(stock code) shares held investment acquisition 2018 2018 2018 2018
HZ2018% 20185
AR BT BZ2018%F 3A31H 3A31H
BRE/RE 3A31R LEEZ 20185 RN 3C]
BB RR RERK/ LEEZ AYE 3A31H HEEL
DAER/ (RARE) HERGEE BREDL W A BREBA WE/ (F8) ZAYE BOEI
% HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 %
% FET FET FET FET %
HSBC Holdings plc (5) 631,700 0.003 48,249 93 (1,503) 46,746 1.06
ELHERBRARE)
Hong Kong Exchanges and 130,967 0.011 24,658 5,538 7,740 33,396 0.75

Clearing Limited

(“HKEX") (388) (Note a)
BERRHREEMBRAR

([B%Fr) (388) (Hiita)

Industrial and Commercial Bank of 2,000,000 0.002 14,034 - (574) 13,460 0.30
China Limited (1398)
HRETHRTRIDERAF(1398)

Other listed shares (Note b) - - 37,101 - (9,216) 6,492 0.15
Hi Emfkin (#izb)
Grand total: 124,042 5,631 (3,553) 100,094 2.26
Mt
Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIFEEBE AR A T
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MEEJEL—J-HHE& *ﬁ’

Available-for-sale investments

The Group also held significant investments under
available-for-sale investments as at 31 March 2018
as below:

TRHERE

R2018F3A31H » AN &E By a]
HEREETNHENTEARSE:

Approximate
percentage
held to the Dividend Fair value Approximate
total issued income for  gain/(loss) for percentage of
share capital the year the year total assets
of the Investment ended ended Fair value  of the Group
No. of company/  cost/cost of 31 March 31 March at 31 March at 31 March
Company name/(stock code) shares held investment acquisition 2018 2018 2018 2018
HZ22018% R2018%F
ERARERT HZ2018F 3A31H 3A31H
BRx/RE 3A31A LEEZ 20185 RN 3E]
BpEzER BRERE/ LFEZ AFE 3A31H BEEZ
ARER/ (RHRE) HERGEE BAESL I AR AR BREKRA kE/ (B8) ZATHE BAESL
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %
% FET FET FET FET %
HKEXx (388) (Note a) 260,574 0.021 49,509 656 16,937 66,446 1.50
BRF1(388) (Mista)
Other listed shares (Note ¢) - - 40,992 1,240 3,430 43,219 0.97
Hit EmRRG (Hite)
Grand total: 90,501 1,896 20,367 109,665 2.47
@it
Notes: Biat -

a. The Company’s shareholders passed a resolution at the special

general meeting on 28 February 2018 to grant a mandate to the

a. HR2018F2A28H MR IFRIARE L AR A

BREEE - RBEREEEE A H201

842

Directors for the disposal of all or partial of the shares in HKEx for a
12-month period commencing 28 February 2018 (“HKEx Disposal
Mandate”). During the period from 28 February 2018 and up to the
date of this report, the Company did not dispose of any shares in
HKEx pursuant to the HKEx Disposal Mandate and therefore, the
Group beneficially owns a total of 391,541 shares (including 130,967
shares classified as held-for-trading and 260,574 shares classified
as available-for-sale) in HKEx as at the date of this report. Details of

which are set out in the Company’s circular dated 29 January 2018.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited XZEBREEEER A A
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEN®R DN

b.  Other listed shares under held-for-trading investments included 2
companies whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and each of these listed shares represented not more than
0.2% of the total assets of the Group as at 31 March 2018.

c.  Other listed shares under available-for-sale investments included 4
companies whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and each of these listed shares represented not more than
0.6% of the total assets of the Group as at 31 March 2018.

Loan Financing

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group
recorded an interest income from the loan financing
business amounting to HK$29,560,000 (2017:
HK$20,376,000), representing approximately
8.9% of the total revenue of the Group. The
profit derived from loan financing business was
HK$27,987,000 for the year ended 31 March 2018
(2017: HK$19,167,000). The principal amount
of loans receivable as at 31 March 2018 was
HK$259,261,000 (2017: HK$308,854,000). During
the year under review, the Group did not record any
doubtful or bad debt in its loan financing business.
The Group would add margin financing services
to its existing loan products to further expand the
securities-backed financing business. The Group
already holds an appropriate licence.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited XZEBREEBEER A A

b. FHEEERER NEM Lk &M E
ZFER ERE QR R - 72018534318 -
ZEER 2 ER MG AR EBREEL HI15 &
B 380.2% °

c. AIMAIHEIREIAT HAb A 635 PUfE 7E B
ZFFEIR BRI - 7201853 A31H
ZEER 2 EBR G R EEEEELL PR
#H330.6% °

EXEE

H E2018F3A31HIEFE K&
ESREERMEEBH 2F A
I A29,560,000/% T (20174 :
20,376,000 70) A E R
B ERXB.9% - E £20184F 3 A
B1HLEFEE KEERMEER
Z % A &27,987,0005% jT (2017
%:19,167,000/8 7t ) - 22018
F3A31IA EREFRZAEE
£259,261,000/% T (20174 :
308,854,000 7T ) - REIEEFE A -
AEBENERME EBIW EESE
A RIRHIZLR - Bt — THRRFHFE
FREEL AEBNEHETRA
B RE ML INRE © B E RS - AN
EEAEEER-
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFNWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Bt %5 [0 JE

Year ended 31 March

BZ3ASMALFE
2018 2017 Change
20184 20174 23
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET FHET
Revenue EE 3 331,521 529,475 (197,954)
Gross profit EF 174,169 233,184 (59,015)
Gross profit margin EN=E 52.5% 44.0% 8.5%
Distribution and IR
selling expenses 30,118 64,829 (34,711)
Administrative expenses THRRX 55,396 52,485 2,911
Finance costs A& B 16,935 17,203 (268)
Profit (loss) before taxation RV AEF (BE) 319,809 (219,885) 539,694
Taxation charge BT 22,646 23,961 (1,315)
Profit (loss) for the year RATIBRRES
attributable to owners of TEERR
the Company (E8) 297,163 (243,846) 541,009
Net profit (loss) margin Foa Al (BE) % 89.6% (46.1%) 135.7%
Earnings (loss) per share BRERN (BE)
Basic and diluted HEARRE#E HK$3.748 T (HK$3.0757T) HK$6.81/% T

14
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Revenue

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group’s
revenue decreased by 37.4% to HK$331,521,000
as compared with last year which was mainly
due to the decrease in revenue from the property
development.

Gross Profit/Margin

Gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2018 was HK$174,169,000, representing a
decrease of approximately 25.3% or HK$59,015,000
as compared to HK$233,184,000 in 2017. Gross
profit margin for the year reached approximately
52.5% (2017: 44.0%), representing an elevation of
8.5 percentage points over the last financial year, as
a result of the increase of interest income from the
loan financing business, which contributed a higher
gross profit margin.

Profit/Loss before Taxation

Profit before taxation of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2018 was HK$319,809,000, as
compared with last year loss before taxation of
HK$219,885,000. It was mainly due to the gain on
changes in fair value of investment properties of
HK$159,475,000 and results attributable to interests
in associates of HK$40,993,000.

Distribution and selling expenses of the Group
declined from HK$64,829,000 to HK$30,118,000, a
decrease of 53.5% as compared with the last year.
It was mainly attributable to the decrease of sale of
Paxton.
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Administrative expenses of the Group were
HK$55,396,000, a slight increase of 5.5% over last
year of HK$52,485,000.

During the year under review, there was an
increase of 629.0% in the gain on changes in
fair value of investment properties amounting to
HK$159,475,000 (2017: HK$21,877,000).

Finance costs of the Group was HK$16,935,000
which decreased by HK$268,000 or 1.6% for the
year from HK$17,203,000 in 2017.

Profit/Loss Attributable to Owners of the
Company and Earnings/(Loss) per Share

Profit for the year of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2018 was HK$297,163,000 (2017:
loss of HK$243,846,000). Net profit margin of this
year is 89.6% as compared to the net loss margin of
46.1% of last year.

Taxation charge decreased by 5.5% to
HK$22,646,000 from last year of HK$23,961,000.

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year 31
March 2018 was HK$3.74 as compared to basic and
diluted loss per share HK$3.07 in last year.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group financed its operation through internally
generated cash flow and bank borrowings. As
at 31 March 2018, the Group’s bank borrowings
amounted to HK$1,151,742,000 (2017:
HK$899,482,000). The gearing ratio of the Group,
calculated as a ratio of total borrowings to total
equity, for the year was 0.36 (2017: 0.32).

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has net
current assets of HK$1,029,394,000 (2017:
HK$1,058,122,000). Current ratio was 2.5 (2017:
3.8). The bank balances and cash as at 31 March
2018 was HK$150,370,000 (2017: HK$25,473,000).

Capital Structure

During the year, there was no change to the share
capital of the Company. As at 31 March 2018,
the total number of issued ordinary shares of the
Company was 79,420,403 shares.

Charges of Assets

As at 31 March 2018, bank loans amounting to
HK$1,151,742,000 (2017: HK$899,482,000) were
secured by leasehold properties, investment
properties, properties held for development
for sale, properties held for sale, deposit and
prepayments for a life insurance policy and financial
assets designated as at fair value through profit
or loss of the Group having a net book value of
HK$2,674,668,000 (2017: HK$2,160,596,000).
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Exposure on Foreign Exchange Fluctuations

Most of the Group’s revenues and payments are
in Hong Kong dollars. During the year, the Group
did not have significant exposure to fluctuations in
exchange rates and thus, no financial instrument
for hedging purposes was employed. The Directors
considered the risk of exposure to the currency
fluctuation to be minimal.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals
Acquisitions of Waterloo Building

On 13 April 2017, Good Year Ventures Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
purchaser, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to
acquire an investment holding company known
as Global Chance Holdings Limited (“Global
Chance”) and the 11 units of the building situated
at Nos. 93, 93A, 95 and 95A Waterloo Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong (the “Waterloo Building”) for
a total consideration of HK$332,869,023.25. The
completion of the acquisition of the 11 units took
place on 28 June 2017.

On 5 July 2017, Global Chance, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as purchaser, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with an
independent third party to acquire the remaining unit
of the Waterloo Building for a total consideration of
HK$41,800,000. The transaction was approved by
the shareholders of the Company on 4 September
2017 and the completion of the acquisition of the
remaining unit took place on 6 October 2017. The
Group aimed to acquire the entire building and
redevelop the Waterloo Building site.
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Details of the above acquisitions are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 13 April 2017
and 5 July 2017 and the Company’s circular dated
11 August 2017.

Disposal of Property

On 16 March 2018, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company (“Vendor 1”), as vendor, the
Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party
(the “Purchaser”), as purchaser, and vendor
2 (“Vendor 2”7, collectively with Vendor 1, the
“Vendors”), pursuant to which the Vendors
conditionally agreed to sell the entire issued
share capital of each of the disposal companies
and Vendor 2 and the Company conditionally
agreed to sell the shareholders’ loan due and
owing by the disposal companies to the Company
and Vendor 2 at the completion at the initial
consideration for the disposals HK$920 million
(subject to adjustments under the sale and
purchase agreement). The disposal companies
holds as to 75% and 25% interests respectively
in a property located at No. 6 La Salle Road, Ho
Man Tin, Kowloon, Hong Kong. As at the date of
this report, the transaction has not completed.
Details of the above disposal are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 16 March 2018
and the Company’s circular dated 24 May 2018.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries or
associated companies during the year.
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Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities as at 31 March 2018 (2017: nil).

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group
invested HK$6,037,000 (2017: HK$7,636,000) on the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment, and
spent HK$3,425,000 (2017: HK$30,000) on additions
of investment properties.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had capital
commitments in respect of capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided of HK$844,000
(2017: HK$621,000).

PROPOSED SPIN-OFF

Reference is made to the Company’s announcement
dated 27 October 2017 under which the Company
is currently considering the spin-off and separate
listing (the “Proposed Spin-off”’) of the Group’s
residential property business (the “RP Business”)
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. A spin-
off proposal was submitted to the Stock Exchange
on 12 May 2017 pursuant to Practice Note 15 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and on 24
October 2017, the Stock Exchange agreed that the
Company may proceed with the Proposed Spin-off.
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Preparation for the Proposed Spin-off is underway
for the separate listing of the RP Business on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD
Placing

On 4 May 2018, the Company and a placing
agent entered into a placing agreement under
general mandate pursuant to which the placing
agent agreed to place, on a best effort basis, up
to 11,900,000 placing shares at a price of HK$4.6
per placing share to not less than six independent
placees. The closing price of the Shares on 4 May
2018 was HK$4.99. The placing was completed
on 17 May 2018 and the net proceeds were
approximately HK$54.19 million (the net issue
price of approximately HK$4.554 per placing
share). The net proceeds from the placing would
be used for acquisitions or for general working
capital of the Group. As at the date of this report,
HK$41.1 million of the net proceeds was utilised for
acquisition of properties and the remaining balance
of approximately HK$13.09 million remain in the
bank. Details of which are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 4 May 2018 and 17 May
2018.
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Acquisition of Properties

On 16 May 2018, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company (the “Buyer”), as buyer, entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third
party (the “Seller”), as seller, to acquire the entire
issued share capital of a company (the “Target”)
(the sole assets of which are the properties purchase
agreements, being contracts to purchase units in the
buildings at 470, 472, 474, 476 and 478 Chatham
Road North, Kowloon) and a related shareholder
loan. The total consideration for the Group to
acquire the Target is HK$458,475,515, subject
to adjustment. As at the date of this report, the
transaction was not yet completed. Details of which
are set out in the Company’s announcement dated
16 May 2018.

Joint Venture Development

On the 24th of May 2018, the Group entered into
a joint venture with an independent third party
whereby a Developer (80% owned by the Group
and 20% owned by the independent party) was
appointed to carry out the development of 93, 93A,
95 and 95A Waterloo Road, Kowloon.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had 32 employees
(2017: 35). Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments) amounted to HK$24,164,000 for the
year under review (2017: HK$32,628,000). The
Group remunerates its employees based on their
performance, experience and prevailing industry
practice. The Group has set out the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme for the Hong Kong’s
employees. The Group has a share option scheme
to motivate employees.
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PROSPECTS

Hong Kong’s property market is expected to grow
on the back of a healthy economy, rising confidence
in economic growth and continuous inflow of
foreign capital. We expect the local property market,
discounting the probability of further US rate hikes,
would maintain its current level. The management
believes that the Group’s business will continue to
develop steadily in the forthcoming year.

During the year, the Group successfully obtained
the Stock Exchange’s agreement for the Proposed
Spin-off of the Group’s Residential Portfolio and
work on proposed spin-off is in progress.

With regards to the Group’s property investment
business, the Group intends to continue the
investment in properties located in Hong Kong and
improve the mix of the portfolio for the property
investment to enhance returns on investment.
This may include carrying out renovation and
refurbishment of the Group’s investment properties
to enhance yields.

With regards to the Group’s securities business,
the Group intends to continuously diversify its
investment portfolio to manage risks and return.

The Group intends to expand its loan financing
business by broadening the customer base and loan
types to cater to different needs and repayment
preferences of various segments of potential
customers.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EECEE

MR. TSE WING CHIU RICKY
President and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Tse, aged 60, is an executive director, president,
chief executive officer and authorized representative
of the Company and chairman of the Executive
Committee, members of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee since 18
April 2017. Mr. Tse obtained a Master’s Degree
in Business Administration from Adam Smith
University of America in the United States in 1996.
He has more than 30 years of experience in garment
manufacturing and merchandising. He serves as
director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Tse was appointed to the Board as an executive
director and vice president in 2005, and was
subsequently re-designated from vice president to
president and appointed as chief executive officer
in 2006. In 2007, Mr. Tse was re-designated from
an executive director to a non-executive director of
the Company and resigned as president and chief
executive officer. In 2017, Mr. Tse was re-designated
from a non-executive director to executive
director, president and chief executive officer of
the Company. Mr. Tse was a director of Eminence
Enterprise Limited (“Eminence”) for the period from
November 2005 to April 2017.
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EECZEE

MS. LUI YUK CHU
Vice President

Ms. Lui, aged 60, is a co-founder of the Group,
an executive director and vice president of
the Company and a member of the Executive
Committee. She is also an executive director and
deputy chairman, and a member of the Executive
Committee of Eminence. Ms. Lui has been involved
in the textiles industry for over 30 years and has
extensive experience in design, manufacturing,
marketing and distribution of apparel. She serves as
director of various subsidiaries of the Company and
Eminence. Ms. Lui was appointed to the Board as
an executive director in 1994. In 2006, Ms. Lui was
appointed as vice president. Ms. Lui is the wife of
Mr. Koon Wing Yee, the co-founder of the Group and
substantial shareholder of the Company. She is also
the mother of Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, an executive
director of the Company.

MS. KOON HO YAN CANDY

Ms. Koon, aged 33, is an executive director and
authorised representative of the Company and is a
member of the Executive Committee since 2010.
Ms. Koon obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree
in Economics and Politics from the University
of Durham, England in 2007. She also received
her Bachelor of Laws degree and Legal Practice
Course qualification in 2009 from the College of
Law, England. Ms. Koon was an executive director
of Eminence for the period from May 2010 to April
2017. Ms. Koon is a daughter of Ms. Lui, the vice
president of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EEZEE

MR. TSUI CHUN KONG

Mr. Tsui, aged 67, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2004. He is also a
member and chairman of the Audit Committee;
a member of the Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee. He obtained a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from the
Oklahoma City University in the United States in
1991 and is a fellow member of both The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. Tsui has over 40 years of experience in the
public accounting profession and the commercial
sector, especially the travel industry. He has
experience in the preparation for the listing of shares
on the Stock Exchange and worked for a few listed
companies. Mr. Tsui is now practising as a public
accountant under his own name.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EECZEE

MR. JONG KOON SANG

Mr. Jong, aged 69, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2005. He is also
a member and chairman of the Remuneration
Committee; a member of the Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee. Currently, Mr. Jong
is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and The Association
of International Accountants, England; a fellow
member of the Chartered Management Institute,
England; a fellow member of The Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong; the accountant ambassador of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants;
Honorary Vice President of Accounting Student
Society of Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology; and a member of the Regional Advisory
Committee of Hong Kong Hospital Authority. He
is now the only Hong Kong Citizen elected as UK
Council member and Authorised Representative
in Hong Kong of the Association of International
Accountant, England. In the years of 2011 and 2012,
Mr. Jong was the President of The Association of
International Accountants, Hong Kong Branch. Mr.
Jong has over 40 years of management experience
in the financial, industrial and property business.

MR. HON TAM CHUN

Mr. Hon, aged 83, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2008. He is also
a member and chairman of the Nomination
Committee; a member of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee. Mr. Hon is a retired
Magistrate and Barrister. He had been in service
with the Hong Kong Government for more than 40
years. During 1969 to 1973, Mr. Hon was a Crown
Counsel in the Legal Department of the Hong Kong
Government. He was a Judicial Officer in Judiciary
from 1975 to 1995 when he retired.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Easyknit International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) is dedicated to maintaining
the good standard of corporate governance within
a sensible and practical framework. The Board
firmly believes that the principles of transparency,
accountability and independence are essential for
upholding the interests of the stakeholders and
maximizing shareholder’s value.

The Board is committed to excellence in corporate
governance. It is responsible for developing and
reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance as well as compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices
are based on the principles and the code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). During the year,
the Company has fully complied with the code
provisions of the CG Code, except for the deviation
disclosed herein.

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code
provides that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.
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Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky serves as President as
well as chief executive officer of the Company and
this dual role leadership has been in practice by the
Company for decades. Such deviation is deemed
appropriate as it is considered to be more efficient
to have one single person to be Chairman of the
Company as well as to discharge the executive
functions of a chief executive thereby enabling more
effective planning and better execution of long-term
strategies. The Board believes that the balance of
power and authority is adequately ensured by the
operations and governance of the Board which
comprises experienced and high calibre individuals,
with half of them being independent non-executive
directors of the Company. The Company will review
the current structure when and as it becomes
appropriate.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the business of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
is vested in the Board, which assumes the
responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses,
strategic decisions and performances.
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Board Composition

During the year ended 31 March 2018 and up to the
date of this annual report, the Board comprised six
Directors, including three executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. Details
of their composition by category are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky
(re-designated from non-executive Director to
executive Director and appointed as President
and Chief Executive Officer on 18 April 2017)
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Vice President)
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
(resigned on 18 April 2017)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Lai Law Kau
(resigned on 18 April 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tsui Chun Kong
Mr. Jong Koon Sang
Mr. Hon Tam Chun

Details of background and qualifications of
all Directors are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors” of this annual
report. Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy is the daughter of
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu.
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Each Independent Non-executive Director has
entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a fixed term of three years from the
date of a letter of appointment until terminated by
either party giving not less than one month’s prior
notice.

The Board possesses a balance of skills and
experience which are appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Group. A
balanced composition of executive and independent
non-executive Directors also generates a strong
independent element on the Board, which allows
independent and objective decision making process
for the best interest of the Group. The Company
will review the composition of the Board regularly
to ensure the Board possesses the appropriate
and necessary expertise, skills and experience to
meet the needs of the business development of the
Group.

The Company has received written annual
confirmation of independence from each of the
independent non-executive Directors pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Despite the fact
that each of Mr. Tsui Chun Kong, Mr. Jong Koon
Sang and Mr. Hon Tam Chun, has served as an
independent non-executive Director on the Board
for more than nine years, the Board is of the view
that their duration of service will not interfere
with their exercise of independent judgement
in carrying out their duties and responsibilities
as the independent non-executive Directors
and believes that their valuable knowledge and
experience in the Group’s business will continually
benefit the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole. Accordingly, the Board considers that all
independent non-executive Directors have met the
independence guidelines of Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-
Laws”), all Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation at annual general meeting of the Company
(the “AGM”) no later than the third AGM since the
last re-election. Any Director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the
next following general meeting of the Company after
his or her appointment, or any Director appointed
by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company after his or her
appointment and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

Board Meeting

The Board meets regularly four times a year, i.e. at
approximately quarterly intervals. During the year,
the Board convened a total of four regular meetings
and the attendance of the Directors are set out as
below section headed “ATTENDANCE RECORD OF
DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS”.

The Board is responsible for the approval and
monitoring of the Group’s overall strategies and
policies, approval of business plans, evaluating
the performance of the Group and oversight of
management. It is also responsible for promoting
the success of the Company and its businesses by
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies
with particular attention paid to the growth and
financial performance of the Group.
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The Board delegates day-to-day operations of
the Group to the executive Directors and senior
management of every business segment, while
reserving certain key matters for its approval.
Decisions of the Board are communicated to the
management through executive Directors who have
attended Board meetings.

All Directors have been provided, on a monthly
basis, with the Group’s management information
updates to give them aware of the Group’s affairs
and facilitates them to discharge their duties under
the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules.

Professional Development

During the year, the Company provides regular
updates on the business performance of the Group
to the Directors. The Directors are regularly updated
on the latest development regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable statutory requirements to
ensure compliance and upkeep of good corporate
governance practices.
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The Directors are encouraged to participate AEEFEEELHFEZERRE
in continuous professional developments (the ([FBEEERRE]|) UEENLEHN
“Continuous Professional Development”) EHH#NEE UERESEEHES
to develop and refresh their knowledge and MEEMNMUAFENER THEES
skills to ensure their contribution to the Board f{EH EE - RIFESRENERE
remains informed and relevant. According to the ZfEEENEE2018F3H31H IFF
confirmations received from the Directors, all EQHEFEZEZRRIB MO
Directors have participated in the Continuous

Professional Development for the year ended 31

March 2018 in the following manner:

Types of
Name Trainings
®E EAER
(See Remarks)
(RE=)
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky oK EB & v
(re-designated from non-executive (R2017F4518H A
Director to executive Director and FHITEFHTRNTESE
appointed as President and WREZEREEFR
Chief Executive Officer on 18 April 2017) BEITIEAEE)
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Vice President) EEKRZT (FFE) v
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy B AR L v
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim BRANEE N/AA~ 3
(resigned on 18 April 2017) (R2017F4518H F1F)
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Lai Law Kau (resigned on 18 April 2017) FBZ& BRI £ N/AA~ 3
(R2017%F4518H §HT)
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Tsui Chun Kong REBTLE v
Mr. Jong Koon Sang HEAESLAE v
Mr. Hon Tam Chun REARLE "4
Note: Continuous Professional Development through attending briefings/ Wi : BBHEERE e  BERERE €5
seminars/webcast/conferences/forums SRS R EE R
Easyknit International Holdings Limited XZEBREEEER A A
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the
corporate governance functions as set out below:

(@)

(d)

To develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance,
monitoring of the corporate governance
practices and procedures; and maintenance
of appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems of the Group to
ensure compliance with applicable rules and
regulations;

To review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management;

To review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements;

To develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors; and

To review the Company’s compliance with
the CG Code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report in the Company’s annual
reports.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Board
had performed the above-mentioned corporate
governance functions by reviewing the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.
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Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and
Indemnity

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance
cover for the Directors’ liabilities in respect of legal
actions against the Directors and officers of the
Group arising out of corporate activities of the
Group.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD
Board Committees

The Board has established four Board Committees,
namely, Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Executive
Committee, to assist in the execution of the Board’s
responsibilities and to oversee particular aspect
of the Group’s affairs. Each Board Committee is
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
duties properly, and holds meetings in accordance
with the Bye-Laws, its specific written terms of
reference and, where applicable, the proceedings
of the Board meeting. The terms of reference
of the Board Committees are reviewed and
updated regularly to ensure that they are aligned
with prevailing governance practices. The terms
of reference of each of the Board Committees
are available on the Company’s website. The
attendance of the each member of the Board
Committees are set out as below section headed
“ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS”.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Tsui Chun Kong (chairman of the Audit Committee),
Mr. Jong Koon Sang and Mr. Hon Tam Chun and
held 2 meetings during the year ended 31 March
2018.

The chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Tsui
Chun Kong, possesses appropriate professional
qualifications in finance and accounting and meets
the requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.
No member of the Audit Committee is a former
partner of the existing auditing firm of the Company
during one year after he ceases to be partner of the
audit firm.

The principal functions of the Audit Committee
included:

- to oversee the relationship with the external
auditor;

— to review the interim and annual financial
statements before publication;

- to oversee the Group’s financial reporting
system and internal control procedures; and

- to review of the internal control and risk
management framework.
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During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Audit
Committee has reviewed (i) the reports from the
Company’s auditor, accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, management
representation letters, and management’s response
in relation to the annual results for the year ended
31 March 2017 and the interim results for the six
months ended 30 September 2017; (ii) the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 and
the six months ended 30 September 2017 and
recommended the same to the Board for approval;
and (jii) the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems.

The Audit Committee reviewed the 2017/2018
consolidated financial statements in conjunction
with the external auditor of the Company. Based on
this review and discussions with management, the
Audit Committee was satisfied that the consolidated
financial statements were prepared in accordance
with applicable accounting standards, and fairly
present the Group’s financial position and results for
the year ended 31 March 2018.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Jong Koon Sang (chairman of the Remuneration
Committee), Mr. Tsui Chun Kong and Mr. Hon Tam
Chun, and one executive Director, namely Mr. Tse
Wing Chiu Ricky. The Remuneration Committee held
1 meeting during the year ended 31 March 2018.

38

Annual Report 2018 4 3}

REZ2018F3A31B ILFE RN &
ZEZBer EH)EH Z22017F3 8
1B IEFE 22 FHE NEZE2017
F9A30H IF6fEl A 2 HAXE
ZARRNEVZEENRE  NEBEERN 2
ZHRAIRER BEEBHERMGER
EIRE 2 [OfE ; (i) £2017F3 A31
H % E & E ZE20179F9H30H (+6
EAZHMBHRRIMEZTSESRE
#E + R (iii) & B B 3R R0 A B BS 1 I S AY
KR o

BZE BB RAR B INEIZEED
) 72017 20185 E 4R & B 7%
Wz -BBEEEEMNUANEEERER
A BREZEgREREVBEmEK
EREANSHENRR W AF2
BT AREEEZ2018F3A31H L4
SR AR S 4B o

FMEES

YNEZESRA =B IUIFNTE
R BERTEELRE (FHEE
FER) REBLEREESLEE
R—RBHITES (FKBEE) &
Z2018F3A31B I FE HFMMEE

SELRTIRGZ-

Easyknit International Holdings Limited XZEBREEEER A A



Corporate Governance Report
TEERKRE

The principal functions of the Remuneration
Committee included:

- to recommend to the Board on the Company’s
policies and structure for the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group;

- to recommend to the Board on the remuneration
package of all executive Directors and senior
management of the Group; and

- to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to
corporate goals and objectives by the Board
from time to time.

The primary objective of the Company’s
remuneration policy is to attract, retain and motivate
the personnel by providing fair reward for their
contributions to the Group’s performance. In this
context, the remuneration policy is to set the overall
remuneration package at a competitive level and
in a form that permits additional remuneration to
be earned for high performance over a sustained
period. The remuneration packages are determined
with reference to the time commitment and
responsibilities of each individual, the Company’s
performance and the prevailing market conditions.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the
Remuneration Committee reviewed the
remuneration policies and structure for the Directors
and senior management of the Group.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprising
three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Hon Tam Chun (chairman of the Nomination
Committee), Mr. Tsui Chun Kong, Mr. Jong Koon
Sang, and one executive Director, namely Mr. Tse
Wing Chiu Ricky. The Nomination Committee held 1
meeting for the year ended 31 March 2018.

The principal functions of the Nomination
Committee included:

— to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board;

- to identify and nominate suitable candidates of
directors for the Board’s consideration; and

— to assess the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors.
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The Board adopted a nomination policy which set
out the approach to achieving board diversity in the
Company in order to enhance the effectiveness of
the Board and its corporate governance standard.
The Company recognizes the importance of having
a diverse team of board members, which is an
essential element in maintaining a competitive
advantage. The Nomination Committee has been
delegated the authority to review and assess the
diversity of the Board and its skills and experience
by way of consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to, gender, age, cultural
and educational background, and professional
experience. The Nomination Committee will give
consideration to the policy when identifying and
selecting suitably qualified candidates. The Policy
will be reviewed on a regular basis.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the
Nomination Committee (i) reviewed the structure,
size, composition and diversity of the Board; and (i)
assessed the independence of independent non-
executive Directors.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee currently comprises all the
executive Directors, namely Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky
(chairman of the Executive Committee), Ms. Lui Yuk
Chu and Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy.
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It meets as and when required between regular
Board meetings of the Company, and operates as
a general management committee under the direct
authority of the Board. Within the parameters of
authority delegated by the Board, the Executive
Committee is committed to the implementation of
the Group’s strategy set by the Board, monitors
the Group’s investment and trading performance,
funding and financing requirements, and reviews the
management performance.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Messrs, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has been re-
appointed as the external auditor of the Company
at the 2017 Annual General Meeting until the
conclusion of the forthcoming 2018 Annual General
Meeting.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the audit and
non-audit fees paid or payable to the Company’s
external auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
was made up of an audit fee of approximately
HK$2,007,000 and a non-audit related service fee
of approximately HK$3,551,000. The latter included
taxation service and professional service.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS
AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Details of the attendance of each individual Director
at the Board meetings, the Board Committee
meetings, the AGM and the special general
meetings of the Company (the “SGMs”) held during
the year ended 31 March 2018 is as follows:
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Attended/Eligible to attend
HE/ AR
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee Committee
Name Board Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting AGM SGMs
EVZEE FMzEEE REZEE
] EzggR g3 L B8E RRBFAE RREIAE
Executive Directors HTEE
Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky Bl
(re-designated from non- (R201744518A &
executive Director to HHNTEFRITA
executive Director and HITEFUE
appointed as President and ~ ZLEFEH
Chief Executive Officeron 18— B /E7TH#E#)
April 2017) 44 NATEE N/ATE R 1/ 1/ 12
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu ELkut
(Vice President) (L) 4/4 N/ATE A N/ATN i £ N/ATEF 0/1 0/2
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy EAR&L 4/4 N/ATN i F N/AT i F N/ATNE F 0/1 0/2
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim BB &AL 4
(resigned on 18 April 2017) (R2017%4518H
BE) 2/4 N/AT R 171 N/AT S F N/ARE A N/AR
Non-executive Directors kHTES
Mr. Lai Law Kau RS
(resigned on 18 April 2017) (R2017F4/18H
BHE) 2/4 N/ATE A N/ARE N/AT S8 F N/ATE N/ARE R
Independent BUFHTES
Non-executive Directors
Mr. Tsui Chun Kong BREBRE 4/4 2/2 11 il 11 2/2
Mr. Jong Koon Sang HBARE 4/4 172 11 il 1 2/2
Mr. Hon Tam Chun BEERLE 4/4 2/2 1/1 11 11 1/2
COMPANY SECRETARY PEME

RARZ R WMETEREERPE
g MRESKEZHEEMZMN
Rif LAREBRBREZEGHER KRR
BIE R BIE3.2005  TEL KL
REZ2018F3A31H ILFECER
N BN Y el S Sl

The company secretary of the Company, Mr. Lee
Po Wing, assists the Board by ensuring good
information flow within the Board and that the Board
policy and procedures are followed. In accordance
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Lee Po Wing
confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours
of the relevant professional training during the year
ended 31 March 2018.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board leads and maintains effective controls
over the Group’s activities, with executive
responsibility for the running of the Group’s
business being delegated to management. The
management provides all members of the Board
with monthly updates in order to give a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Group’s
performance, position and prospects to enable them
to discharge their duties.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks
and it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives and ensuring that the Group
establishes and maintains appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control
systems and reviewing their effectiveness. The
Board is also responsible for overseeing the
design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems. The
risk management and internal control systems are
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss and
to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in
operating systems or in achievement of the Group’s
business objectives.
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The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducts
a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems by
requiring all department managers to undergo
a detailed self-risk assessment process using a
common risk management framework. It covers all
material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls, on an annual basis. It
also considers the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programs
and budget of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting function.

Under the enterprise risk management framework,
policies and procedures are in place to identify,
assess, manage, control and report risks. Such risks
include strategic, credit, operational (administrative,
system, human resources, reputation), market,
liquidity, legal and regulatory risks. Exposure to
these risks is continuously monitored by the Board
through the Audit Committee.

The internal control system includes a defined
management structure with specified limits of
authority. The Board has clearly defined the
authorities and key responsibilities of each division
to ensure adequate checks and balances. The
internal control system has been designed to
safeguard the Group’s assets against unauthorized
use of disposition, to ensure the maintenance of
proper accounting records for producing reliable
financial information, and to ensure compliance with
applicable laws, regulations and industry standard.
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The Group does not have an internal audit function.
During the year under review, the Board has
reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group and there were no major issue
but areas for improvement have been identified by
the Audit Committee and appropriate measures
taken. The Board is of the view that the enterprise
risk management and internal control systems in
place for the year and up to the date of issuance
of the annual report is effective and adequate. In
addition, the Board is currently of the view that
there is no immediate need to set up an internal
audit function within the Group in light of the size,
nature and complexity of the Group’s business. The
situation will be reviewed from time to time.

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for
the preparation of the financial statements of the
Group which give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group and the Group’s financial
performance and cash flows for the relevant
accounting periods, and in compliance with all the
relevant statutory requirements, the Listing Rules
requirements and applicable accounting standards.
In preparing the financial statements of the Group,
the appropriate accounting policies are selected,
applied consistently and in accordance with the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
appropriate and reasonable judgment and estimates
are made. The Directors have prepared the financial
statements for the reporting year on a going concern
basis.
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The Board is committed to present a clear, balanced
and understandable assessment of the Group’s
performance and financial positions in all its financial
reporting and to ensure relevant publications in a
timely manner.

Auditor’s Statement

The statement by the Company’s external auditor
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 is set
out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages
75 to 80 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE OF THE
LISTING RULES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions.

Having made specific enquiry by the Company, the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard as set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2018.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedure for convening a special general
meeting

Shareholders shall have the right to request
the Board to convene a SGM of the Company.
Shareholders holding in aggregate of not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
as at the date of deposit carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company may
send a written request to the Board to request
for a SGM. The written requisition must state the
purposes of the meeting, and must be signed by
the Shareholder(s) and deposited at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Block
A, 7th Floor, Hong Kong Spinners Building, Phase
6, 481-483 Castle Peak Road, Cheung Sha Wan,
Kowloon, Hong Kong (for the attention of the
Company Secretary).

The Company would take appropriate actions
and make necessary arrangements, and the
Shareholders concerned would be responsible for
the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in
accordance with the requirements under Section
74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the
“Companies Act”) once a valid requisition is
received.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at the
general meetings

The following Shareholders are entitled to put
forward a proposal (which may properly be put to
the meeting) for consideration at a general meeting
of the Company:

(@ any number of members representing not less
than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of
the Company on the date of the requisition; or

(b) not less than 100 members holding shares in the
Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed
by the Shareholders concerned, together with
a statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in the proposal or
the business to be dealt with at the general meeting
must be deposited at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong at Block A, 7th
Floor, Hong Kong Spinners Building, Phase 6, 481-
483 Castle Peak Road, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon,
Hong Kong. The Company would take appropriate
actions and make necessary arrangements, and
the Shareholders concerned would be responsible
for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in
accordance with the requirements under Sections
79 and 80 of the Companies Act once valid
documents are received.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other a
retiring director for election as a director at a general
meeting, the Shareholder should follow the “Rules
and Procedures Governing the Election of Director”,
which can be found on the website of the Company.
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Procedures for putting enquiries by the
Shareholders to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries
and concerns to the Board in writing via the
following channel:

The Company Secretary

Block A, 7th Floor

Hong Kong Spinners Building
Phase 6, 481-483 Castle Peak Road
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon

Hong Kong

E-mail: 1218share@easyknit.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the
Board at the general meetings of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the
Company has not made any changes to its Bye-
Laws. A consolidated version of the Memorandum
of Association and Bye-Laws of the Company is
available on the website of the Company.
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The Directors present this annual report together
with the audited financial statements of Easyknit
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding and the principal activities of its subsidiaries
are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2018 are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income on pages 81 to 82.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and review on the business
activities of the Group as required by Schedule
5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622) of
Hong Kong including an analysis of the Group’s
performance, material events that have occurred
since the year end date and an indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business are
contained in the preceding President’s Statement
and Management Discussion and Analysis set out
on pages 4 to 23 of this Annual Report. Details of
the Group’s financial risk management are disclosed
in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.
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In addition, relevant details of the Company’s
environment policies and performance will
be reported in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report of the Company to be published
separately. The Directors were not aware of
any non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group during the year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years
is set out on page 194.

DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends the payment of a final
dividend of HK5 cents per share (2017: HK5 cents
per share) to the shareholders on the register of
members of the Company on 30 August 2018.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share
capital during the year are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out
in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were revalued
as at 31 March 2018 by independent professional
property valuer and the gain/loss arising as changes
in fair value of investment properties, which had
been charged directly to profit or loss. Details of the
Group’s investment properties are set out in note 14
to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT
FOR SALE

Details of the Group’s properties held for
development for sale are set out in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
as at 31 March 2018 are set out in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and
other donations approximately HK$1,419,000.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group
and the Company during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 85.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution
to its Shareholders as at 31 March 2018 and 2017
comprise:

Contributed surplus N R o
Accumulated profits 255 A

A 7 Tk

RN A HR20184F 201743 A31H
A A IR R 2 (B 4E

31 March 31 March
2018 2017
20184 20174
3H31H 3H31H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
220,937 220,937
721,592 689,330
942,529 910,267

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended), the contributed surplus shall not
be distributed to the shareholders if there are
reasonable grounds for believing that:

(@) the Company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due;
or

(b) the realizable value of the Company’s assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium account.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and
up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky
(re-designated from non-executive Director to
executive Director and appointed as President
and Chief Executive Officer on 18 April 2017)
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Vice President)
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
(resigned on 18 April 2017)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Lai Law Kau
(resigned on 18 April 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tsui Chun Kong
Mr. Jong Koon Sang
Mr. Hon Tam Chun

The biographical details of the Directors as at the
date of this report are set out on pages 24 to 27 of
this annual report.

In accordance with Bye-Law 99 of the Bye-Laws,
Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky, an executive Director,
and Mr. Jong Koon Sang and Mr. Hon Tam Chun,
the independent non-executive Directors, will retire
from office by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.
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CHANGES IN
DIRECTORS

INFORMATION OF

In accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules, the changes to information required to be
disclosed by Directors are set out below. Pursuant
to the Company’s policies and practices and in
consideration of the increasing level of duties and
responsibilities as well as the market conditions,
the remuneration package of the following Directors
were reviewed and revised with effect from 1 April
2017, details of the breakdown are in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements:

(1) Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky — annual emoluments
were revised from HK$140,000 to HK$1,168,000.

(2) Ms. Lui Yuk Chu - annual emoluments were
revised from HK$17,128,000 to HK$3,318,000.

(8) Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy — annual emoluments
were revised from HK$498,000 to HK$1,264,000.

(4) The annual director’'s fee of HK$140,000 per
annum for all independent non-executive
Directors remains the same.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other
information required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual written
confirmation pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) from each of the
independent non-executive Directors as regards
their independence to the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2018. Despite the fact that each of
Mr. Tsui Chun Kong, Mr. Jong Koon Sang and Mr.
Hon Tam Chun, has served as an independent non-
executive Director on the Board for more than nine
years, the Board is of the view that their duration
of service will not interfere with their exercise of
independent judgement in carrying out their duties
and responsibilities as the independent non-
executive Directors and believes that their valuable
knowledge and experience in the Group’s business
will continually benefit the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole. Accordingly, the Company
considers all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors and the independent
non-executive Directors has entered into a service
contract or a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
has an unexpired service contract with the Group
which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract for the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of any business
of the Company was entered into or existed during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contract of significance relating to the
business of the Group to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisting at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contract of significance between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries subsisting
during or at the end of the year, and there was no
contract of significance for the provision of services
to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short
positions of the Directors and the chief executives of
the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)),
which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or
which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:
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(a) Long positions in ordinary shares of the

Company

Number of
ordinary
Name of Director Capacity shares held
5E
EER
EEEE 5% i 4=
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu Beneficiary of a trust 29,179,480
EEKLT (Note j)
BEREXEA (Hiti)
Interest of controlled 17,429,664
__corporation (Note /i)
G EEZ
W (Matii)
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy Beneficiary of a trust 29,179,480
BAIMAL (Note i
EEEmA (Hii)
Notes: Biat -
() 29,179,480 shares are registered in the name of and are (i)

beneficially owned by Magical Profits Limited which is wholly-

(ii)

(il

60

owned by Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn is
wholly-owned by The Winterbotham Trust Company Limited
(“Winterbotham Trust”) as trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust
(the beneficiaries of which included Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and her

family members other than her spouse).

17,429,664 shares are beneficially owned by Sea Rejoice
Limited which is wholly owned by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu.

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and
an executive Director, is deemed to be interested in the shares
by virtue of her capacity as one of the beneficiaries of The
Magical 2000 Trust.
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Approximate
percentage
of the

total issued
shares of

the Company
HAARE
BITR®G
BEZBN
B

Total

st

46,609,144 58.69%

29,179,480 36.74%

29,179,4808% f% 19 LA Magical Profits
Limitedz 2 ECMAEEEER %20
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(b) Long position in ordinary shares of the
associated corporation

(b) RHEBZEEERRO 2HR

SWEEERRE ([ LWE

Eminence Enterprise Limited (“Eminence”) =
*=1)
Approximate
percentage
of the total
Number of  Number of issued
ordinary  underlying shares
Name of Director Capacity shares held  shares held Total of Eminence
BB EELtER
EERK HEHE BOROAY
EzER 54 HEE R EE A 2BRESH
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu Beneﬂciary of a trust 739,330,692 311,480,281 1,050,810,973 35.43%
BERLT EREX@A
(Note iv)
(Hiztiv)
Notes: Biat -

(iv)

In the 739,330,692 shares of Eminence, 93,549,498 shares and
645,781,194 shares of Eminence are registered in the name of
and are beneficiary owned by Landmark Profits Limited and
Goodco Development Limited respectively, both companies are
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. For the 311,480,281
underlying shares, of which 288,880,281 are the underlying
shares of convertible notes issued by Eminence to the Goodco
Development Limited; and the remaining 22,600,000 underlying
shares are the share options granted to Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Mr.
Koon Wing Yee (the spouse of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu) on 14 October
2016 under the share option scheme of Eminence. Sea Rejoice
Limited is interested in approximately 21.95% of the issued
share capital of the Company and is wholly-owned by Ms. Lui
Yuk Chu. Magical Profits Limited is interested in approximately
36.74% of the issued share capital of the Company and is
wholly-owned by Accumulate More Profits Limited which in
turn is wholly-owned by Winterbotham Trust as trustee of The
Magical 2000 Trust (the beneficiaries of which included Ms. Lui
Yuk Chu and her family members other than her spouse).
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TR AN P B 4936.74% 2 1 o M E
Accumulate More Profits Limited 2 &
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018,
none of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which
would have to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2018, so far as is known to the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company,
the interests and short positions of the persons or
corporations other than a Director or chief executive
of the Company, in the Shares or underlying Shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:
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Long positions in ordinary shares of the RAQATREERROZFA

Company

Name of
substantial shareholder

FERREE

Kogn Wing Yee
BkE

Sea Rejoice Limited
LFERAT

Magical Profits Limited

Accumulate More Profits
Limited

Winte(botham Trust
BEFERER

Winterbotham Holdings
Limited

Notes

it

i

I &if

i &if

i & i

iii

Approximate
percentage of

Number of the total issued
ordinary shares of
Capacity shares held the Company
ERATE
FEEBER BOIROEZZ
5 R4 E B OB DL
Interest of spouse 46,609,144 58.69%
foiB s
Beneflcial owner 17,429,664 21.95%
ERBEAA
Beneficial owner 29,179,480 36.74%
EmlB A
Interest of controlled 29,179,480 36.74%
__corporation
XEEE 2 s
Trustee 29,179,480 36.74%
E7EA
Interest of controlled 29,179,480 36.74%
__corporation
TEEEE 2 s
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Name of

substantial shareholder Notes

TERFRER iz

Markson International il
Holdings Limited

Christopher Geoffrey fii
Douglas Hooper

lvan Geoffrey Douglas fii
Hooper

Notes:

Capacity

gt

Interest of controlled
__corporation
XEH AR 2

Interest of controlled
__corporation
XEEEE 2 R

Interest of controlled
corporation
REHER 2 s

()  Out of 46,609,144 Shares, 17,429,664 Shares are beneficially owned
by Sea Rejoice Limited which is wholly-owned by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu.

The remaining 29,179,480 Shares are registered in the name of and

are beneficially owned by Magical Profits Limited, which is wholly-

owned by Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn is wholly-

owned by Winterbotham Trust as trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust

(the beneficiaries of which included Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, an executive

Director, and her family members other than her spouse). Ms. Koon

Ho Yan Candy, the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and an executive
Director, is deemed to be interested in the 29,179,480 Shares by

virtue of her capacity as one of the beneficiaries of The Magical 2000

Trust. Mr. Koon Wing Yee, being the spouse of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, is
deemed to be interested in the 46,609,144 Shares by virtue of the

SFO.
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of the total issued
ordinary shares of
shares held the Company
ERAFE

FEERER BTROBHZ
RO A BAOBEDH
29,179,480 36.74%
29,179,480 36.74%
29,179,480 36.74%

Wyt
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(i) Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, being an executive Director, is also a director of Sea

Rejoice Limited and Magical Profits Limited.

(i)  Winterbotham Trust is the trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust (the
beneficiaries of which include Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and her family
members other than her spouse). Winterbotham Trust is owned as to
75% by Winterbotham Holdings Limited (“Winterbotham Holdings”)
and 25% by Markson International Holdings Limited (“Markson”)
respectively. Winterbotham Holdings is owned as to approximately
99.99% by Mr. Christopher Geoffrey Douglas Hooper. And Markson
is owned as to 60% by Mr. Christopher Geoffrey Douglas Hooper and
40% by Mr. Ivan Geoffrey Douglas Hooper respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, the
Directors and chief executive of the Company were
not aware of any other persons who had an interest
or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who were, directly or
indirectly interested in 10% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any
other member of the Group or had any options in
respect of such capital.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 5 July 2012, a new share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted and approved by
the shareholders of the Company for a period of
10 years commencing on the adoption date. Since
the adoption date, the Board, may at its discretion,
grant share options to any eligible person to
subscribe for the shares in the Company subject to
the terms and conditions as stipulated in the Share
Option Scheme. During the year ended 31 March
2018, no share option was outstanding, granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share
Option Scheme. Particulars of the Share Option
Scheme and details of the movements during the
year in the share options of the Company are set out
in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

The scheme mandate limit for the Share Option
Scheme was allowed the Company to issue a
maximum of 7,942,040 share options under the
Share Option Scheme, representing 10% of the
total number of issued shares of the Company (i.e.
79,420,403 shares) as at 31 March 2018.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACAQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme disclosed
above, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the directors or any of
their spouses or children under the age of 18, was
granted any right to subscribe for the equity or
debt securities of the Company or any other body
corporate nor had exercised any such right.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme described above,
the Group did not enter into any equity-linked
agreements during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions which
were undertaken in the normal course of business
are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements. For those related party transactions that
constitutes connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions (as the case may be) under
the Listing Rules, these transactions are exempt
from reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Bye-law 178 of the Company’s Bye-laws provides
that, among other, every director and other
officers of the Company shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they
or any of them shall or may incur sustain by or by
reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in
or about the execution of their duty, or supposed
duty, in their respective offices and related matters
provided that the indemnity shall not extend to any
matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which
may attach to any of them. In this connection, the
Company has arranged directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the directors and
officers of the Company during the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the 5 largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for 97% of the Group’s purchases and
the largest supplier accounted for approximately
86% of the Group’s purchases.
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The 5 largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 71% of the Group’s revenue and the
largest customer accounted for approximately 16%
of the Group’s revenue.

None of the Directors and their respective close
associates or any Shareholders of the Company
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) have any interest in the 5 largest suppliers or
customers of the Group.

PROPERTY VALUATION

Property valuations in respect of the Group’s
investment properties in Hong Kong have been
carried out by Colliers International (Hong Kong)
Limited as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017,
is an independent qualified valuer. The valuations
was based on investment method and/or direct
comparison method as the valuation methodologies
and were used in preparing 2017/18 final results.

The Group’s investment properties were valued at
HK$1,791,200,000 (2017: HK$1,628,300,000), an
increase over 2017 after adjusted for the additions
of investment properties. The increase in fair value
of approximately HK$159,475,000 was recognized
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year. Development properties and
non-investment properties of the Group were stated
at cost less impairment, if any, in these consolidated
financial statements.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is exposed to various risks in its
businesses and operations. Through internal control
systems and procedures, the Company has taken
reasonable steps to ensure that significant risks are
monitored and do not adversely affect the Group’s
operations and performances. The relevant risks are
managed on an ongoing basis. A non-exhaustive list
of principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
is set out below.

Market Risk

The Group’s revenue is principally derived from
Hong Kong. The conditions of the economy as a
whole and the property market may have significant
impact to the Group’s financial results and
conditions.

Compliance Risk

The Group’s operations require compliance with
local and oversea laws (including those of Bermuda
and British Virgin Islands) and regulations, including
but not limited to property sale, management and
construction as well as companies and securities
laws. The Group has constantly monitored its
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group.

70

Annual Report 2018 4 3}

TERRBRAREN

AEEEEXEBREE LmMYES
TR o B BE B AL HIE AR Fr -
ANBIERIA B  EIREXR
RISAEEMETEUAREEMNE
BRERBREETNZE - HEN R R
ERENER FETER - AEE®
HER T BE R LA S
™ ORFH) ©

™ 15 & By

REENEXBETIBREETE BB
AR NP5 L EE T 35 BV 1B L AT RE 1 K
SENPHEERBREXNBEER

@,
=

BRER

AREEREHT RN S A NG5
ZR(BEARENABERLES)
FOER BRETRRYEHFEE Y
FEBNER UARRBNERES
o AEBE N ERASERBE
FENMBBERIER A RITIR -

Easyknit International Holdings Limited XZEBREEEER A A



Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

ACCOUNT OF KEY RELATIONSHIP

The Group adheres to the standards of business
ethics, this underpins how we conduct business
with our customers, suppliers and contractors.

Employees

We value our employees who are the Group’s
most important assets. We reward our staff
with competitive remuneration packages and
benefits. We are committed to fostering a
conducive, harmonious and discrimination-free
working environment. We have training budget to
subsidise the employees’ continued professional
development.

Occupational health and safety is the top priority
across our operations. Safety guidelines are
established to safeguard the employees from any
occupational hazards.

Customers

We strive to provide high quality and reliable
services to our customers. The privacy of our
clients’ professional information is well protected
through a privacy policy. Any complaints from
customers are handled and investigated in a
thorough and efficient manner.

Suppliers

We are committed to forging collaborative
partnership with our suppliers and have a database
of approved suppliers and vendors who are
assessed on a regular basis.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited XZEBREEBEER A A
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Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments policy of employees of the Group
is set up by the executive Directors on the basis
of their performance, experience and prevailing
industry practice.

The emolument of the Directors is determined by
the Board after reviewed and recommended by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
time commitment and responsibilities of individual
Directors, the Company’s performance and the
prevailing market conditions.

The Company had adopted the Share Option
Scheme as an incentive to Directors and eligible
employees. Details of the Share Option Scheme
are set out in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” above.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Bye-Laws although there are no restrictions
against such rights under the laws in Bermuda
where the Company is incorporated.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available
to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors, the Company has maintained sufficient
public floats as required under the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 March 2018.

(2
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Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules
and the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The principal responsibilities of Audit
Committee is to review and supervise the financial
reporting process and risk management and internal
control systems of the Group. The Audit Committee
comprised of 3 independent non-executive Directors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance
practices are set out in the “Corporate Governance
Report” from pages 28 to 50 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report
of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2018 will be published as a separate report from
this annual report in compliance with relevant
requirements under the Listing Rules on or before 31
July 2018.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events occurring after the
end of the reporting period are set out in note 44 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

AUDITOR ZELEm

The financial statements for the year ended 31 #&i{Z£2018%3A31H It F/E 2 BTk
March 2018 were audited by Messrs. Deloitte KJIH{EZ) e =R @TAITTETT
Touche Tohmatsu. 8o

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general BN EE=E) e FEIR T STAITA
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche AABZEEN ZRAZRETFIRER

Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company. RBAFKE-

By order of the Board FEEGH

TSE WING CHIU RICKY FEREEITHAAS

President and Chief Executive Officer 7K 8

Hong Kong, 25 May 2018 A% 2018F5H25H
Easyknit International Holdings Limited XZEBREEEER A A
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B B S

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF
EASYKNIT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Easyknit
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 81 to 193,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2 EETRE

Key audit matter
BEETEE
Valuation of investment properties

REYEZIGE

We identified the valuation of investment properties as
a key audit matter due to the significant judgments and
assumptions made by management of the Group in
determining the fair value.

B BEEEEEERETATERYRERZHER
B BPIRANREMEZAER —HERETFE-

At 31 March 2018, the fair value of investment properties
was approximately HK$1,791 million (consolidated
statement of financial position), with a fair value gain
recognised in profit or loss of approximately HK$159
million (consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income).

7201843 H31H IR E M A F{E 4 /&1,791,000,000
BT (FEMBHRAR) RERBER 2 A FEREL R
159,000,000/ 7T (AR BE K EMEEPER) °

The Group’s investment properties are stated at fair value
based on valuations performed by an independent firm
of qualified professional property valuers (the “Valuers”).
Details of the valuation techniques and key inputs
used in the valuations are disclosed in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.
BERERENMFE c AFEDRBE L& EREELERM
77 ([MEERD ) 2 (A ESITR - EPTERA 2 (A E 7 =
REZH A ZFBERGEA M BIMEKM 1404 E -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNBSOMEERRERNSER

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

BAEREMERBEZHBETRRE:

. Obtaining an understanding from the Valuers
and management of the Group about the
valuation techniques, performance of the property
markets, significant assumptions adopted, critical
judgmental areas, key inputs and data used in the
valuations;

RrhEmR BEREEEETRGEERE WED
BRE FHRAZERRR T2HEERE - HE
FTERA 2 = Et A KBS

. Assessing the integrity of information provided
by management of the Group to the Valuers
by comparing, on a sample basis, details of
rentals to the respective underlying existing lease
agreements;
FRAMES AL BERRARAN 2B F B
i EREEEERMAMEMZ ER TR

° Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuers; and

FHE[MEMHNER EIRFEIL: X

° Assessing reasonableness of key inputs used by
the Valuers and management of the Group by
comparing with relevant market information with
similar properties.

7 A LB R SR B W) SE AR R TH 5 B B AT (4 (4 (B R
N BEEEERERBZIZRAZAEE-

7 6 Easyknit International Holdings Limited XZEBREEER A 7
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR E

Key audit matter
BEETEE
Impairment assessment of loans receivable

FER B2 B E A

We identified the impairment assessment of loans
receivable as a key audit matter due to estimation
uncertainty inherent in the management’s credit risk
assessment process in respect of the collectability of
loans receivable.

AN EIEERERE Tz ATk E Y 2 EE bR G BE
FHEDHETE 2 et BFIRRERESR 2 REN AR —1]
RAgEt =R

The loans are assessed for impairment individually.
In determining the impairment of loans receivable,
management of the Group considers financial
background, current creditworthiness, collateral and past
collection history of each borrower.
BETRERNERT L - NETRKERRER - &
SEEEEGERANBERAZHBER RREE K
FRRBEERENR

At 31 March 2018, the carrying amount of loans
receivable was approximately HK$259 million (note 18 to
the consolidated financial statements) and no impairment
allowance on loans receivable was made in the current
year (note 4 to the consolidated financial statements).
7201843 A31H + FEUE X 2 BRI {E £ £259,000,000/%5
7T (AR & B TS R M 5118) M pA 7N 6 J2 3f AR ke W B R A
HORERE (AR TS aKHIE4) -

OTHER INFORMATION

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNBAOMERERREEASZE

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
loans receivable included:

BV U E SR 2 B R E 2 ARRERE B

° Understanding the Group’s policy on granting
loans to the borrowers and the related credit
control including ongoing loan monitoring
procedures;

TR BEEEREERTERAZBEREBRE
ERBEENRERER 2 EEEH:

° Evaluating the management’s assessment on
the credit quality of the borrowers by examining
records including financial background, current
creditworthiness, collateral and past collection
history of the borrowers; and
HEEREAASHEEERAVBER Bk
& iR m R E BB 2 iL sk AR AR
AZEEEZ K

° Checking the existence and recoverable amount
of the underlying collateral, if applicable.

BENBEERRZ FERETTKE S ER

Htpfz 8

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. B ARIEEZHEMESAS - EMEEBET
The other information comprises the information included in the annual  FHRFRANES  ETBIELGETBRE MK
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and P4z & AR

our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover F IR ATEHREAME R MREHMEE
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance  BFITFTHZZH M (E BBREMTEANEB L

conclusion thereon.

A
Ay ©

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, #4& MG AP ERENSE RANETRE
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, RFIEHMEE FEiLiBRET ZEEMELELHE
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the ~ Bf % &R sk R FIE R BT AEREN BN FE
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit = AEAE k& T 1FEE AL RRAMA BN - &
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we ~ REMERITH TIE IR KPR AEMEEFE
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this & A$ERMRM - RPIFEEREXE T HEHE

other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to ~ F '8 B E A1 3RE -

report in this regard.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZ B EBE AR A T
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2 EETRE

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

/8
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR E

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2 EETRE

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Yen Sau Yin, Emily.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 May 2018

30
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Consoliqgted Statement ofProﬁt or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meEEmkHMEEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2018
B 22018F3H31H 1L FIE

Revenue
Cost of properties sold and
services rendered

Other income

Distribution and selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Gain on changes in fair value of
investment properties

Gain (loss) on changes in fair value of
investments held for trading

Gain on redemption of convertible note

Gain on modification of terms of
convertible note

Loss on changes in fair value of financial
assets designated as at fair value
through profit or loss

Loss on changes in fair value of derivatives
component of convertible notes

(Loss) gain on disposal of available-for-sale
investments

Impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments

Results attributable to interests in
associates

Finance costs

Profit (loss) before taxation
Taxation charge

Profit (loss) for the year attributable to
owners of the Company

e
HEW R KR HIRERA

HAp A
RESHAR A
TR
REWMEZAYE

FIEREREZATFE
s (B51E)
AERIEGESE Pl §
B AR RIBERZ

Yoz
BATEFABREZ

TREEZ

RNHEREER
AR Z HTEK D

ZAVHEEHER
HERIHREEREZ

(B8) e
AHHEREZ

B ET1E

BENREEDERE
BE KA

BB A (E51R)
IR

RARBIR DG
RER N (EE)

NOTES

Hiz

5

17(b)

17(b)

10

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
331,521 529,475
(157,352) (296,291)
174,169 233,184
35,843 34,426
(30,118) (64,829)
(55,396) (52,485)
159,475 21,877
21,859 (8,773)
1,135 -
425 -
(3,403) (2,328)
(2,992) (11,003)
(1,033) 43,989
4,213) (25,376)
40,993 (371,364)
(16,935) (17,203)
319,809 (219,885)
(22,646) (23,961)
297,163 (243,846)

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZ B EBE AR A T

Annual Report 2018 43R}

31



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

EREREMEZEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2018

B ZE2018F3H31HILFE
2018 2017
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
k3 FETT FEIT
Other comprehensive income (expense) HtZEUWA (BIx%)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently —F&1% A] fEE #7482
to profit or loss: BmsHA :
Share of other comprehensive income DB E AR Z
(expense) of associates: Emz2EmBA (Ax) :
Share of translation reserve of SEEEE AT Z
associates IL%% 1 10,013 (6,393)
Share of investment revaluation reserve DR E AR Z
of associates "E Eﬁ & 14,435 7,361
Reclassification of translation reserve REEREERTEY
to profit or loss upon deemed partial RAHERE QT
disposal of interests in associates BAOERFENDEE
without loss of significant influence B 2 [E X fE S 190 3,660
Reclassification of translation reserve to NGB GEREEI N l/NG]
profit or loss upon deemed acquisition EaNETRIEE
of additional interests in associates B 2 B RS (1,182) -
Reclassification of investment REBREERNTE
revaluation reserve to profit or loss RAELERE QT
upon deemed partial disposal of IDEmRENSES
interests in associates without loss of B REE MR
significant influence (4,167) 1,199
Reclassification of investment AR A U B R HNEE 2 B
revaluation reserve to profit or loss BERFENHORERRS
upon deemed acquisition of additional KEEMHE
interests in associates 1,849 -
21,138 5,827
Change in fair value of available-for-sale 1 HEREZ
investments NEEEEF 18,319 23,834
Released on disposal of available-for-sale W& HE
investments B R R IR 1,033 (43,989)
Reclassification adjustment upon A SR E R ER 2
impairment of available-for-sale B EAR
investments 4,213 25,376
Other comprehensive income for the year ~ AFE Z Hib 2 EUA 44,703 11,048
Total comprehensive income (expense) ARERESARFEZ
for the year attributable to owners of ZHEWA (Fx%)48%8
the Company 341,866 (232,798)
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share ~ &RXEAR M #EEZ T (FHE) 12 HK$3.747% 7T (HK$3.0775 71)

82

Annual Report 2018 4 3}

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIFEEBE G R A 5



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mE BRI TR
At 31 March 2018
HK20184%3H31H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Interests in associates

Available-for-sale investments

Convertible notes

Derivatives component of
convertible notes

Loans receivable

Intangible asset

Deposits

Deposit and prepayments for
a life insurance policy

Current assets

Properties held for development for sale

Properties held for sale

Investments held for trading

Convertible notes

Derivatives component of
convertible notes

Trade and other receivables

Tax recoverable

Loans receivable

Financial assets designated as at

fair value through profit or loss
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Tax payable
Secured bank borrowings

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

mENE
B 5 REMEMNRIER

FREBEE

YE ST
BREME
EdW/NEIL s £
AHHERE
AR
AMREEZ
DT D
W & R

B EE

7e
ABREZES
ISSEANEAN

MBEE

FEHERREYE
FEH &R
FERERE
AR RS
ABRERZ
TR

B 5 REMREYRRIR

R 4EE

& W & R

B EF A
ZEREE
RITEHRRRE

g

o

eI
BEPRITER

MENVEEFER

BERBERADEE

NOTES
Hret

13
14
15
16
17

17
18
19
20

21

22

23
17

17
24

18

25
26

27

28

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET
88,242 11,036
1,791,200 1,628,300
665,666 586,555
109,665 45,354
19,213 67,418
9,792 6,167
13,979 75,721
500 500
2,314 205
10,275 10,091
2,710,846 2,431,347
798,009 312,136
166,247 392,489
100,094 287,493
42,104 -
958 -
190,267 93,969
449 -
245,282 233,133
29,885 95,309
150,370 25,473
1,723,665 1,440,002
63,260 95,226
29,354 24,381
601,657 262,273
694,271 381,880
1,029,394 1,058,122
3,740,240 3,489,469

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZ B EBE AR A T

Annual Report 2018 43R}

33



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR R
At 31 March 2018
R201843/31H
2018 2017
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
Kz FET FEr
Non-current liabilities EREBER
Secured bank borrowings BEMIETEER 28 550,085 637,209
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIEE & 29 - =
550,085 637,209
3,190,155 2,852,260
Capital and reserves BEARKEE
Share capital A& A 30 7,942 7,942
Reserves ] 3,182,213 2,844,318
3,190,155 2,852,260

The consolidated financial statements on pages 81 to 193 were approved & %5 & pA20184F5 A25 0 #t ) R IS 2 K £81%E
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 May 2018 and  193E 2 &4 M@ Ec WH T EERKEE:
are signed on its behalf by:

TSE WING CHIU RICKY KOON HO YAN CANDY
K EARK
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EF

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIFEEBE G R A 5
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Consoljgthed Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERBER

For the year ended 31 March 2018

B ZE2018F3H31HILFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
KDRRREE
Investment

Share Share Translation Special Contributed luati
capital premium reserve reserve surplus reserve profits Total
s RHEE EXRE RHRE BABH REEMER it A 1]
HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 / HKS 000 HKS000 HKS DD
AT AT T T#r AT AT

At 1 April 2016 HOV1654R 18 794 21833 196,565 (2654 9800 2097 6:178) 69872 2378386 3,083,000

Change in fair value of available-for-sale investments T HERS - - - - - - 23,834 - = 23,834

Released on disposal of available-for-sale investments HEmH - - - - - - 43,989) - - 43,989)

Reclassification adjustment upon impaiment of R &R

avallable-for-sale investments EEpLE - - - - - - 25376 - - 25376

Share of other comprehensive (expense) HEBHEL

income of associates 2 - - - (2,733 - - 8,560 - - 5,827

Loss for the year KEREE - - - - - - - - o43846) (o43846)

Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year TEEZ2E (RO)WAB% - - - 273 - - 18,781 - (243,846) (232,799)

2016 fnl dividend paid e 17) B 20165 KR = - - - - - - - 71.942) 71.940)

A3 March 2017 HOTEIR3IE 7942 21833 196,565 (5:387) 9800 20087 7603 69872 2,126,598 2852260

Change in far value of available-for-sale investments AHEREI N TERY - - - - - - 18319 - - 18319

Released on disposal of avallable-forsale investments ~ HETEHERARER - - - - - - 1,033 - - 1,033

Reclassification adjustment upon impaiment of

available-for-sale investments - - - - - - 4213 - - 413

Share of other comprehensive income of associates - - - 9,021 - - 12117 - - 21,138

Proft forthe year RERE - - - - - - - - 207,163 207,163

Total comprehensive income for the year TEEZ2ENAEE - - - 9021 - - 35,682 - 297,163 341,866

2017 final cvidend paid ot 79) BRNTERSRS (A1) - - - - - - - - 371) 3971)

A3 March 2018 HO018E3E31E 7942 218330 196,565 3634 9800 20087 13085 69872 2419790 3,190,165

Notes: Kat -

(@ The capital reserve of the Group represents the credit arising from the (@) A&EE 2 EANFEER R EN20065E10 A EAH!
reduction of share capital of the Company in October 2006. ETEA ZER-

(o) The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between (b) ZAREMEZFFIFHERERAQN RS BEITRARE
the nominal value of the share capital issued by the Company and the BRI R AE A AN SR B (AR IR AN RIRR D 1E19954F
nominal value of the share capital and share premium of the companies THRIZEEEA)B TS A0 2 BRAEER
forming the Group pursuant to the group reorganisation prior to the R (B2 =% -
listing of the Company’s shares in 1995.

() The contributed surplus of the Group represents the credit arising from  (c) AN%EE Z H A B KK AR 7 HH2004F8 A 4l
the reduction of certain reserves of the Company in August 2004. E T EE 2R

(d) The property revaluation reserve of the Group includes (i) the gain on  (d) AEBEZYES(EHHEEEE(O)AEEESTHELD

revaluation of certain leasehold properties of the Group, (i) share of
the gain on revaluation of prepaid lease payments and property, plant
and equipment of the Group’s former associates, both arising from the
transfer of the Group’s leasehold properties or associates’ prepaid lease
payments and property, plant and equipment to investment properties in
prior years, net of (iii) the transfer to accumulated profits upon deemed
disposal of subsidiaries in prior years.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZ B EBE AR A T

W 2 EEWE (D IE A EE R A R 28
NHEERAEMDE  BEkRE2EGHRE &
RRNBEFEASE 2 BOMESBERR 2
BNHEEFAEEYE BERREBRERE
YD FTEL - R (i) B AT SRR R A S P B
NEREEE R

385
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

=AN o~ —1
HERERER
For the year ended 31 March 2018
B 2201843531 HIFF )&

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit (loss) before taxation

RERL RS RERE

BRBE AR (BR)

Adjustments for: KRR

Interest income FEMKA

Interest expense MR

Depreciation of property, plant and Mm% WE R
equipment BE2IE

Amortisation of premium and ABREZRER
other expenses charged on HibF sz 2 8 5
a life insurance policy

Dividend income from listed EHREZREWA
investments

Gain on changes in fair value of ®EMEZ NTE
investment properties gE)a

Gain on redemption of convertible note
Gain on modification of terms of
convertible note

RO AR RE 2 W
FRABRERGERZ
Wz

Loss (gain) on disposal of HETHEEREZ
available-for-sale investments EtE (Weas)

Gain on disposal of property, LEME - BER
plant and equipment R W

(Gain) loss on changes in fair value of BIEEBEREZATE
investments held for trading BE)r (W) B

Loss on changes in fair value of BRATEGFABRZ
financial assets designated as at SMEEZATE
fair value through profit or loss BE)EE

Loss on changes in fair value of AIRRBBEITEKGD
derivatives component of Z AV EZEEIE

convertible notes

Results attributable to interests in
associates

Impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments

NSl P

AHHERERERE

Operating cash flows before movements in @& & B F)F1 2
working capital KERSRE

Increase in properties held for development — #5F1E & 3% & 1) % 12 41
for sale

Decrease in properties held for sale

Decrease (increase) in investments
held for trading

S ES D
HEEERE R ()

Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 Rk E M EKGRIE
&0

Decrease (increase) in loans receivable FEWE SR A (3Eh0)

Increase in deposits EE L

(Decrease) increase in trade and B 5 R EMERN IR

other payables CRLA) &0
Easyknit International Holdings Limited XZEBREEER A 7

8 6 Annual Report 2018 4 3}

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
319,809 (219,885)
(26,164) (23,277)
16,935 17,203
4,119 1,636
282 280
(7,527) (10,171)
(159,475) (21,877)
(1,135) =
(425) =
1,033 (43,989)

= (115)
(21,859) 8,773
3,403 2,328
2,992 11,003
(40,993) 371,364
4,213 25,376
95,208 118,649
(476,155) (202,813)
150,954 267,145
263,042 (143,547)
(98,351) (18,368)
49,593 (106,454)
= (205)
(32,028) 8,269




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2018
B 22018F3H31H 1L FIE

Cash used in operations

Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

Dividend received from investments
held for trading

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Redemption of financial assets
designated as at fair value through
profit or loss

Proceeds from redemption of
convertible notes

Proceeds received from disposal of
available-for-sale investments

Interest received

Dividend received from available-for-sale
investments

Acquisition of financial assets designated
as at fair value through profit or loss

Acquisition of convertible notes

Acquisition of available-for-sale
investments

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Additions of investment properties

Deposit paid for investment properties

Deposit paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Purchase of intangible asset

Net cash (used in) from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Bank borrowings raised
Repayment of bank borrowings
Interest paid
Dividend paid

Net cash from (used in) financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
the year, represented by bank balances
and cash

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
AREE2Re (47,737) (77,324)
EREENEH (18,122) (42,392)
HIEEEREZBEREE
47 6,508
AR EE 2R F5E (65,812) (113,208)
REAKREEHZRERE
BRI AFERA
B emEE
585,019 675,339
fEC TR g
Fr5 a8 35,000 =
HEAHEHEREY
B8 50AR 20,357 350,062
FEWA 20,057 18,246
AEEEREY
U B 1,239 3,663
BARAFETA
BRsemEE (620,000) (861,000)
AR EE (44,200) =
BARNTHDERE
(16,890) (21,360)
BAYE BE&EE
(6,037) (7,636)
RNEREME (3,425) (30)
WEWMEZBENES (1,970) =
BAYE  HE &
B PAR i (139) =
HEME - HE RE#EZ
FTiS 508 - 120
BABREE - (500)
(AR RBIREEEZ
REF5E (30,989) 156,904
REMEETH 2 RERE
EE£RTEE 517,560 446,255
ERBRITEE (265,717) (449,211)
BATFE (26,174) (19,657)
BT E (3,971) (7,942)
KA (AR)BEESZ
ReF5 221,698 (30,555)
e kERRSEINFEE 124,897 13,141
FYRERERRS
25,473 12,332
FREERERRE
BIRTTHB LIRS
150,370 25,473

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZ B EBE AR A T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018
B 220183 H31H I FE

GENERAL

Easyknit International Holdings Limited (the “Company”; the
Company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the
“Group”) is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability and its shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and the principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$” or “HKD”) which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and associates are
set out in notes 42 and 15, respectively.

Eminence Enterprise Limited (“Eminence”), shares of which are also
listed on the Stock Exchange, is an associate of the Group. On
19 July 2017, Eminence issued 325,000,000 new ordinary shares
to placees not connected with it. Accordingly, the Group’s equity
interest in Eminence and its subsidiaries (‘EE Group”) decreased
from 23.92% at 1 April 2017 to 20.44% until 18 October 2017 when
the Group exercised the conversion rights attached to the 2017
CN2 (as defined in note 17(d)) to the extent of HK$16,920,000 and
a total of 282,000,000 conversion shares were issued by Eminence
to the Group upon conversion. The Group’s equity interest in EE
Group increased from 20.44% to 29.35% until 21 February 2018
when Eminence issued 447,000,000 new ordinary shares to placees
not connected with it. Accordingly, the Group’s equity interest in EE
Group decreased from 29.35% to 24.93% thereafter.

Details of changes of the Group’s interest in Eminence are set out in
note 15.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIFEEBE G R A 5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2018
B 22018F3H31H 1L FIE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses
As part of the Annual
Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 12

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 “Disclosure Initiative”

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the amendments also
require disclosures on changes in financial assets if cash flows from
those financial assets were, or future cash flows will be, included in
cash flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be disclosed:
(i) changes from financing cash flows; (i) changes arising from
obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii)
the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair
values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
these items is provided in note 37. Consistent with the transition
provisions of the amendments, the Group has not disclosed
comparative information for the prior year. Apart from the additional
disclosure in note 37, the application of these amendments has had
no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

FERSRT RARERT B BB HREEL ([FE
M |REZER )

RAFEREE RN E B YIRS ERETT
S

AEBCRAFEEREATIHEEES
Bhog ((BEGEAE])EM 2B EY
S EANERTA

BB GEER] EBREE
FTRETA
BAGEHER] BRAEEER
ER P ACHIPN MR BEE
BB RS LR 1EB2014F %
BB A 2016F HHHE S
g kbl
FREYGEEF I H

BT Xt &SN MAFERAEEVBR
SEAETAHAREBNAFEIEBEFE
BRI RIRR R, HZ SRS I wmK
e RELBBERZE -

BREHENETRZBIAREESE]

REBERANFEEREMALEFEIT A %
FEAIABZRERBIEHEEEN B BR
RZEREBUAFERETBELRELZ
28 RRRENIBRSEE W BRIA
NERESHEEZRSRED LLARKRR
EMERSTARELTHAERERER -

ERAREEREREECE-

ARTE  EITARRRETIEE  (REA
R E 2 BE: (VRGN E LB LT
HM SRR SIS 2 B (i)
THB WATEZ2D: RYEME

% EIA B NV R RS RR 2 SRR M
37 - R BBRI A ZBIEMR - AEEL &
WEEF LB R - BRI E37 2 BEIMK FR
S BRI FERT NEAREE 2 76 MR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2018
B 220183 H31H I FE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17

HK(FRIC) - Int 22

HK(FRIC) - Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

Amendments to HKFRSs

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIFEEBE G R A 5
9 O Annual Report 2018 4F

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments’

Leases’

Insurance Contracts?

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions’

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts’

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement?

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures?

As part of the Annual
Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014 — 2016 Cycle’

Transfers of Investment Property’

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015 - 2017 Cycle?
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2018
B 22018F3H31H 1L FIE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations
mentioned below, the directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs and
interpretations will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

FERSRT RARERT B BB HREEL ([FE
MHmELER]) (&)

AR 1B 18 R AE Rz AT RABIERT BB R 5
HBEER (F)

L 1201841 A1 Bk AR FB 2 FE HR A
Ao

2 R201941 A1 Bk AR B 2 FEHR A

Ble
¢ R TEREZ BHs AR R 2 FEHRE
ERe

4 202141 A1 B skbAR R 2 FEHRE A

e

BR AT Pt 2 BB A 5 3R 5 2 A e AR AT
RIERIA RABEZRAREAMBEEME
BTG HRE LR MR RET AN RS
FEARRERAT RARRL BERTE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2018
B 220183 H31H I FE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general hedge
accounting and impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group are:

all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are generally measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”). All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair value at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss; and

in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to
an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary
for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk management
policies as at 31 March 2018, the directors of the Company
anticipate the following potential impact on initial application of
HKFRS 9:

92
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2018
B 22018F3H31H 1L FIE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)
Classification and measurement:

° Debt instruments classified as loans receivable carried at
amortised cost as disclosed in note 18: these are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding. Accordingly, these financial assets
will continue to be subsequently measured at amortised cost
upon the application of HKFRS 9;

o Listed equity securities classified as available-for-sale
investments carried at fair value as disclosed in note 16: these
securities qualified for designation as measured at FVTOCI
under HKFRS 9. However, the Group plans not to elect the
option for the designation and will measure these securities
at fair value with subsequent fair value gains or losses to be
recognised in profit or loss. Upon initial application of HKFRS
9, investment revaluation reserve of HK$29,895,000 related
to these available-for-sale investments will be transferred to
accumulated profits at 1 April 2018;

o Receivable component and derivative component of
convertible notes are separately recognised and are carried
at amortised cost less any identified impairment loss and
fair value, respectively. HKFRS 9 requires hybrid contracts
with financial asset hosts to be classified in their entirety.
Accordingly, the entire convertible note will be classified as
financial assets as at fair value through profit or loss as the
convertible notes have contractual right to cash flows that do
not represent contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. The
directors of the Company consider that the fair value upon
initial application of HKFRS 9 will have no material difference
with the carrying value as at 31 March 2018;

° Deposit and prepayments for a life insurance policy will be
classified as financial assets as at fair value through profit or
loss as those deposit and prepayments have contractual right
to cash flows that do not represent contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding. The directors of the Company consider that the
fair value upon initial application of HKFRS 9 will approximate
to the carrying value as at 31 March 2018; and

o All other financial assets and financial liabilities will continue
to be measured on the same bases as are currently measured
under HKAS 39.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
B 220183 H31H I FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)
Impairment:

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will result
in earlier provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred in
relation to the Group’s financial assets measured at amortised costs
and other items that are subject to the impairment provisions upon
application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company, if the
expected credit loss model were to be applied by the Group, the
application of the expected credit loss model would not have a
material impact on the financial assets measured at amortised cost
as at 1 April 2018 upon the application of HKFRS 9.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS
11 “Construction Contracts” and the related interpretations when it
becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

e  Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
B 22018F3H31H 1L FIE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance
has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation to
the identification of performance obligations, principal versus agent
considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures, however, the
directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the timing and amounts of
revenue recognised in the respective reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors
and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the
related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of
whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions
of operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases
by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially
measured at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted
for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease
modifications, amongst others. For the classification of cash flows,
operating lease payments are currently presented as operating cash
flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to
lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest portion
which will be presented as financing cash flows by the Group.
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B 220183 H31H I FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$1,124,000 as disclosed in note 33. A
preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet
the definition of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group
will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in
respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-
term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental deposits
paid of HK$480,000 and refundable rental deposits received of
HK$13,713,000 as rights and obligations under leases to which
HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of lease payments
under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to
the right to use the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying
amounts of such deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost and
such adjustments are considered as additional lease payments.
Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid would be included
in the carrying amount of right-of-use assets. Adjustments to
refundable rental deposits received would be considered as
advance lease payments.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result in
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above.

Amendments to HKAS 40 “Transfers of Investment Property”

The amendments clarify that a transfer to, or from, investment
property necessitates an assessment of whether a property meets,
or has ceased to meet, the definition of investment property,
supported by observable evidence that a change in use has
occurred. The amendments further clarify that situations other than
the ones listed in HKAS 40 may evidence a change in use, and
that a change in use is possible for properties under construction.
For example, change in use for transfer from properties under
development for sale in the ordinary course of business to
investment properties could be evidenced by inception of an
operating lease to another party. Currently, the Group accounts for
such transfer only upon commencement of an operating lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2018
B 22018F3H31H 1L FIE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 40 “Transfers of Investment Property”
(Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
these amendments will result in early recognition of such transfers
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements in future periods
should there be a change in use of any of its properties.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair values,
at the end of the reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
B 220183 H31H I FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

For financial instruments and investment properties which are
transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that unobservable
inputs is to be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that the results of the valuation
technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and
the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at
the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The significant accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts

and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2018

2 2201843431 HiF F &
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continuead)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an
investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting
rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

. the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the
size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group or other vote holders;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

° any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the
Group has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,
including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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100

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and
HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured
in accordance with HKFRS 2 at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are measured in
accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)
Acquisition of subsidiaries not constituting business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that do
not constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises
the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
by allocating the purchase price first to the financial assets and
financial liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining
balance of the purchase price is then allocated to the other
individual identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their
relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction does
not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. The financial statements of associates used for
equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform accounting
policies as those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associates. Changes in net assets of the associates
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
not accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share
of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that
associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)
Interests in associates (Continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an associate.
On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the former
associate and the retained interest is a financial asset within the
scope of HKAS 39, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value
on initial recognition in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate at the date the
equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in
the associate is included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate on the same basis as would be required
if that associate had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as
a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the
relevant associates.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Interests in associates (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the associate
are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate that are not related to
the Group.

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets,
and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the joint arrangement.
Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

When a group entity undertakes its activities under joint operations,
the Group as a joint operator recognises in relation to its interest in a
joint operation:

° its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

° its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly;

o its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from
the joint operation;

° its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint
operation; and

° its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred
jointly.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)
Interests in joint operations (Continuead)

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation in accordance
with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in which a
group entity is a joint operator (such as a sale or contribution of
assets), the Group is considered to be conducting the transaction
with the other parties to the joint operation, and gains and losses
resulting from the transactions are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of other parties’
interests in the joint operation.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in which a
group entity is a joint operator (such as a purchase of assets), the
Group does not recognise its share of the gains and losses until it
resells those assets to a third party.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold
and services provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities, as described below.

Sale of goods and properties held for development for sale

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of business
is recognised when the respective properties have been completed
and delivered to the purchasers. Deposits and instalments received
from purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria for revenue
recognition are included in the consolidated statement of financial
position under current liabilities.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Rental income

The Group’s policy for recognition of revenue from operating leases
is described in the accounting policy for leasing below.

Commission income

Commission income for brokerage business is recorded as income
on a trade date basis.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of the reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the net proceeds and the
carrying amount of the assets and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure, except for the properties
transferred from property, plant and equipment, which are measured
at fair value at date of transfer. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. All of the
Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are classified and
accounted for as investment properties and are measured using
the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by end of
owner-occupation, any difference between the carrying amount
and the fair value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in property
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the
asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to
accumulated profits.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in
which the item is derecognised.

Intangible asset

Intangible asset with indefinite useful life that is acquired separately
is carried at cost less subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss in the
period when the asset is derecognised.

Properties held for development for sale

Properties held for development for sale are classified as current
assets and stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs relating to the development of properties, including purchase
costs of the properties for development, development costs
and borrowing costs capitalised, are capitalised and included as
properties held for development until such time when they are
completed.

Properties held for sale
Properties held for sale are completed properties and are classified

under current assets. They are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
and loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial assets
s (i) held for trading or (i) it is designated as at FVTPL on initial

recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
near future; or

on initial recognition it is a part of an identified portfolio of
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets
or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined
contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit and loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including receivable component in convertible notes, deposit and
prepayments for a life insurance policy, trade and other receivables,
loans receivable, and bank balances and cash) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value at the
end of the reporting period except for unquoted equity investments
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured. Dividends on
available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss
when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established.
Changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve, until
the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at
which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Derivative component in convertible note

Derivative component in convertible note is initially recognised at
fair value and is classified separately into respective items on initial
recognition. The derivative component is subsequently remeasured
at fair value at the end of the reporting period with resulting gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss immediately.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than financial assets at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost
is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
impairment loss is recognised as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables and loans receivable, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When an item of trade receivables or loans receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit
or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
investment revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity instruments in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and secured

bank borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2018

2 2201843431 HiF F &
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of tangible assets and intangible asset with
indefinite useful lives

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication
that they may be impaired. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2018

2 2201843431 HiF F &
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)
Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption
is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense
on a straight-line basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)
Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building are
considered separately for the purpose of lease classification, unless
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and building elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally
treated as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment. To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can
be made reliably, leasehold interests in land are accounted for as
operating leases and amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model.

Retirement benefit scheme

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit scheme or the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged as
expenses when employees have rendered services entitling them to
the contribution.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries) after deducting any amount already paid.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the management has reviewed the
Group’s investment properties portfolios and concluded that
while the Group’s investment properties located in Hong Kong
are depreciable, they are not held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time. Therefore, in
determining the Group’s deferred taxation arising from these
investment properties located in Hong Kong, the management
determined that the presumption that these investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered through sale is
not rebutted.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCESOF 4. FES:¥HRABEMTZEERR

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued) (&)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty FREMFTZEERR
LTAEBBARRZ EEM/E - A RRIHREH
R EMIAEEGFTZEERIR  ZEMHaT
GHEAEEHEREERBEZREERT
— B BRFEEHBREEAAR 2 EKRRL -

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the next
financial year.

(a REY=x

(a) Investment properties

120

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value for
financial reporting purposes. The Group has a designated
team to determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
key inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent they are available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the Group engages an independent firm of qualified
professional property valuers to perform valuation of the
Group’s investment properties. At the end of the reporting
period, the management works closely with the independent
firm of qualified professional property valuers to establish and
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and key inputs
for fair value measurements. Where there is a material change
in the fair value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will
be reported to directors of the Company. Information about
the valuation techniques and key inputs used in determining
the fair value of the Group’s investment properties is disclosed
in note 14.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF 4.
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(b) Impairment assessment of loans receivable

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of loans
receivable, which amounted to HK$259,261,000 (2017:
HK$308,854,000) at 31 March 2018. Appropriate impairment
loss for estimated irrecoverable amount is recognised in profit
or loss when there is objective evidence that the amount is not
recoverable.

The amount of the impairment of loans receivable is estimated
based on credit reviews of the outstanding balances from
loans receivable and an evaluation of the amounts expected
to be recovered with reference to financial background,
current creditworthiness, collateral and past collection history
of the borrowers. Where the future cash flows are less than
expected, or being revised downward due to changes in
facts and circumstances, a material impairment loss or further
impairment loss may arise. No impairment allowance on loans
receivable is made for both years.

(c) Determination of net realisable value of properties held for
development for sale/properties held for sale

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of the
Group’s properties held for development for sale/properties
held for sale, which are situated in Hong Kong and with an
aggregate sum of HK$964,256,000 (2017: HK$704,625,000) at
31 March 2018, with reference to current market environment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of the assets may exceed its net
realisable value. Appropriate write-down for estimated
irrecoverable amount is recognised in profit or loss when
the net realisable value is below cost. The estimates of
net realisable value are determined based on the evidence
available at the time the estimates are made, less the
anticipated costs to completion (where appropriate). Actual
realised amount may differ from estimates, resulting in a
decrease or an increase in the net realisable value of the
properties held for development for sale/properties held for
sale and additional write-down or reversal of write-down
previously recognised may be required.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2018
B 220183 H31H I FE

5:

122

REVENUE

Revenue represents the aggregate of the amounts received or
receivable in respect of property sales, rental income from property
leasing, income from loan financing and building management fee
income during the year. An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as
follows:

Property sales MEIHE

Rental income HElA

Income from loan financing REEFRBERA
Building management fee income BFEEBRA

S

EEBEFAYEHRES RELHAWERS
WA REBEFBERAREFEEERRA
ZERSRERRIB B - A EE A
DT -

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET TET
248,106 456,601
52,958 51,664
29,560 20,376
897 834
331,521 529,475

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group’s chief executive officer, being
the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM?”), for the purposes
of resources allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on types of goods delivered or services provided. This
is also the basis of organisation, whereby the management has
chosen to organise the Group around differences in products and
services.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments under HKFRS

8 “Operating Segments” are (i) property investment, (i) property
development, (jii) investment in securities and (iv) loan financing.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2018

B 2201843531 HIF F &
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEEH(£E)
(a) Segment revenue and results (@) DHEEXFEREE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results BREREBMD BN AEE 2 & HERE

by operating and reportable segment: REZWNT
For the year ended 31 March 2018 Bl Z2018F3H31H I FE
Property Property Investment Loan
investment development in securities financing Consolidated
MERE MERR EHRE EXmE RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
(note)
(Hizt)
SEGMENT REVENUE PREER
External sales INRSEE 53,855 248,106 - 29,560 331,521
RESULT %
Segment result DREEE 202,052 40,379 38,026 27,987 308,444
Unallocated corporate income &S AL 2 A AIMA 47
Unallocated corporate expenses ZEHE 7 A B (13,164)
Results attributable to NG £
interests in associates DhEE 40,993
Finance costs BERAK (16,935)
Profit before taxation BRBL AT R 319,809

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZ B EBE AR A T
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e M RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2018
B 220183 H31H I FE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

124

6. DEER(Z&)

Segment revenue and results (Continued) (a) PEEXBEREE(£)
For the year ended 31 March 2017 B 220173531 H IEFE
Property Property Investment Loan
investment  development in securities financing  Consolidated
NERE MEER BHRE BEH@E o)
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FHET FET FHET FET
(note)
(Hizt)
SEGMENT REVENUE PRERE
External sales IMREEE 52,498 456,601 - 20,376 529,475
RESULT ES
Segment result GRS 40,049 66,993 50,921 19,167 177,130
Unallocated corporate income &g 2 ARIMA 376
Unallocated corporate expenses &7t 2 A alfi s (8,824)
Results attributable to interests B2 A Bl 28
in associates NbEE (371,364)
Finance costs AR AR (17,203)
Loss before taxation BREAIEE (219,885)
Note: Rental income generated from properties held for Mrit: REFELEREME 2B

development for sale was included in property investment
segment.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note
3. Segment results represent the profit earned by each
segment without allocation of results attributable to interests
in associates, finance costs and unallocated corporate income
and expenses. This is the measure reported to the CODM
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIFEEBE G R A 5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2018

B 22018F3H31H 1L FIE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. 2EER (&)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities b) PEEERAE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities EREREBMAIBANMAEE 2 EER
by operating and reportable segment: BEWT:
At 31 March 2018 R2018%3531H
Property Property Investment Loan
investments  development  in securities financing Consolidated
MERE MERRE EHRE EXmE sy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE7 FET FE FET FET
ASSETS BE
Segment assets PHEE 1,800,157 1,155,774 313,431 259,867 3,529,229
Interests in associates A UNEIL 665,666
Tax recoverable AEHE 449
Bank balances and cash BITEBRRE 150,370
Unallocated corporate assets ~ EHELZ AAIEE 88,797
Consolidated assets SARBE 4,434,511
LIABILITIES B
Segment liabilities NEEE 23,687 35,455 219 2,552 61,913
Secured bank borrowings BEAETEE 1,151,742
Tax payable FEfIHIE 29,354
Unallocated corporate liabilities £/ &2 A7) & & 1,347
Consolidated liabilities LARERE 1,244,356

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZ B EBE AR A T
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e M RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2018
B 220183 H31H I FE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

126

6. DEER(Z&)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) b) PELEERAE(E)
At 31 March 2017 R20174¢3531H
Property Property Investment Loan
investments  development in securities financing  Consolidated
NERE MEER BHERE EXmE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET FAET FET FHET
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NEEE 1,635,210 795,264 505,280 311,248 3,247,002
Interests in associates NSl 586,555
Bank balances and cash FIIEHERE 25,473
Unallocated corporate assets ~ ENE 7z REIEE 12,319
Consolidated assets GaBE 3,871,349
LIABILITIES afE
Segment liabilities NEEE 24,617 66,832 289 2,700 94,438
Secured bank borrowings BERBRIEE 899,482
Tax payable TR 24,381
Unallocated corporate liabilities  EHE 7z AF & (& 788
Consolidated liabilities meRE 1,019,089

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and

allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to operating and reportable
segments other than interests in associates, tax
recoverable, unallocated bank balances and cash
and assets used jointly by operating and reportable

segments.

- all liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable
segments other than secured bank borrowings, tax
payable and liabilities for which operating and reportable

segments are jointly liable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2018
B 22018F3H31H 1L FIE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(c) Other segment information

6. TEER(E)

(c) HtbnEER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B 220183531 H I FE
Property Property Investment Loan
investments  development in securities financing  Unallocated Consolidated
WERE WEBRR EFRE EXmE EAE RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Amounts included in the EREENBEEY
measure of segment assets ~ DEEBEEZ L
or segment result:
Capital additions ERRE 4,605 464 20 - 4,373 9,462
Depreciation of property, plant  #1% - HE L& E 27 E
and equipment 1,589 1,196 83 - 1,251 4,119
Gain on changes in fair value 1 &ME 2 ATE
of investment properties BE (159,475) - - - - (159,475)
Gain on changes in fair value  H{EEEHRE 2
of investments held for ATEEE N
trading - - (21,859) - - (21,859)
Loss on changes in fair RATEHAERZ
value of financial assets SRMEEZATE
designated as at FVTPL 2EEE - - 3,403 - - 3,403
For the year ended 31 March 2017 B F201743H31H L FE
Property Property Investment Loan
investments  development in securities financing Unallocated ~ Consolidated
MERE MEER EHRE EFREE EOE 3]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Amounts included in the BREENEEER
measure of segment assets ~ DEBEBEIECEH:
or segment result:
Capital additions BARE 6,757 505 904 - - 8,166
Depreciation of property, plant %1% R Rk B2 T E
and equipment 728 844 64 - - 1,636
Gain on changes in fair value 1R &#ME 7 AT E
of investment properties 2l (21,877) - - - = (21,877
(Gain) loss on disposal HENE BERZEZ
of property, plant and (kz=) B8
equipment 5 (120) - - - (115)
Loss on changes in fair value  H{EEERE
of investments held for NHEEFEE
trading - - 8,773 - - 8,773
Loss on changes in fair BRAFEFAERZ
value of financial assets SRMEEZATE
designated as at FVTPL 2HER - - 2,328 - = 2328

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZ B EBE AR A T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2018

B ZE2018F3H31HILFE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. PEER(F)
(d) Geographical information (d HESEEHR
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong (place of AEBZEBEDNRES (TEH) -
domicile).
The Group’s revenue from external customers based on RINRBEP 2R EI D ANEE 2 &%
location of its customers and information about the Group’s MIZEEFifEttBEI D DT AEE 2
non-current assets (excluding available-for-sale investments, FnRBEE(TRFBEAIHDLERE 7]
convertible notes, derivatives component of convertible notes, BMRER ATRRERZITENS &
loans receivable and deposit and prepayments for a life WEFARASRE ZRe RBEMR)
insurance policy), analysed by the geographical area in which ZERET
the assets are located, are as follows:
Revenue from Carrying amounts
external customers of non-current assets
REIREFZEXE FREBEEZREE
2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAET FET FET
Hong Kong B 331,521 529,475 2,547,922 2,226,596

(e)

128

Information about major customers

Revenues from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are as
follows:

() EEXFZEH

EEREETEERMAEEAEXEE
B10%IA E 2 EEFIT

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Customer A’ BEA 52,850 -
Customer B’ ZFEB 49,248 -
Customer C’ BEC! 47,405 -
Customer D’ EFED! 45,406 -
Customer E’ =FPE 40,917 =
Customer F? =EF N/A? 57,000
TE A2
1 Revenue from property development. L REMERREERE-
2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of 2 HEEEEUEERMAEEALEE
the total revenue of the Group. B IR10%IA £
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2018

B Z2018F3731HIF FIF
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BERK
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest on bank borrowings RITREEZFR 26,653 20,013
Less: Amount capitalised in the cost of B REBIREE
qualifying assets =¥ | et (9,718) (2,810
16,935 17,203
Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the general FARBEEEENMCBERATHAER
borrowing pool and were calculated by applying a capitalisation rate (L EF =2.56% (20174 :1.82% )it E e A
of 2.56% (2017: 1.82%) per annum to expenditure on qualifying SEREEZHX
assets.
8. PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 8. ZAFE&EF (FE)
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Profit (loss) for the year has been arrived at REE N (EE)
after charging: 2Bk :
Directors’ emoluments (note 9(a)) =M (Hit9@) 6,233 19,436
Other staff costs, including retirement benefits H B TAKAS - B 4E
costs RREHMA AR 17,931 13,192
Total staff costs B T A B R 24,164 32,628
Amortisation of premium and other expenses ERASREZRE R
charged on a life insurance policy HAth 57 2 B 8 282 280
Auditor’s remuneration it Gl 2,149 2,100
Cost of properties recognised as expense ERRAERYZ
M ZERR 154,270 291,442
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - B RREITE 4,119 1,636
and after crediting to other income: WEREMBAGTA
Dividend income from listed investments RELETRE ZKRBEWA 7,527 10,171
Gain on disposal of property, plant and LEWE - -WE K
equipment B W - 115
Interest income from FIBUAREB
Accretion from receivable component of AR Z IR R 5 2
convertible notes BAEE 11,539 8,984
Deposit and prepayments for a life insurance ASRERS RIBMK
policy 376 376
Bank and others RITREAM 14,249 13,917
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e M RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2018
B 220183 H31H I FE

9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND EMPLOYEES’ 9. EE HETHAIZREEZ#ME

EMOLUMENTS
(@) Information regarding directors’ emoluments (@) FHRESEMEez2ER
Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company for the HZE2018F3A31B L FEARRES
year ended 31 March 2018 are as follows: & IEEA T -
Non-
executive Independent
Executive director director non-executive director
HiES FuES BUFHTES
Kwong Tse
Jimmy Wing Lui Koon Lai Jong Tsui Hon
Cheung Chiu Yuk Ho Yan Law Koon Chun Tam
Tim Ricky Chu Candy Kau Sang Kong Chun Total
BRA AKE EE% ETR HER #EE #EE BEE -t
HKS$000  HK$000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HK$S000  HKSO00  HKS0OO  HK$000
FET FE7 TE7 TET FET FEx TEx FET FE7
(Note () (Note (i) (Note (ii}) (Note (iv))
(Hitg)  (WEE) (W) (Hizt)
Fees B3N - - - - 7 140 140 140 421
Other emoluments Eyik
- salaries and other benefts —¥ 4 R E &7 55 1,150 3,228 1,246 - - = = 5,679
- retirement benefits schemes —i& (K275t &I 3
contributions 1 18 90 18 - - - - 127
Total directors’ emoluments  £EH & 45 56 1,168 3,318 1,264 7 140 140 140 6,233
Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company for the HE201743A831B It EEARRES
year ended 31 March 2017 are as follows: BB mT:
Non-executive Independent
Executive director director non-executive director
BiTES FHTES BUFHES
Kwong Tse
Jimmy Lui Koon Wing Lai Jong Toui Hon
Cheung Yuk Ho Yan Chiu Law Koon Chun Tam
Tim Chu Candy Ricky Kau Sang Kong Chun Total
BEA EEh B Ak RER e Bk #3 a8
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000
FET FET TET FET FET FAT FET FET FET
(Note (j) (Note (ii}) (Note (ij)
(Hazn)  (H2m) (Hi)
Fees FE Lo = - = 140 140 140 140 140 700
Other emoluments Lk
- salaries and other benefits —%r& K £ 427 1,092 4038 480 - - - = = 5610
- performance related -BERER KRS
bonuses - 13,000 - - - - - - 13,000
- retitement benefits schemes — iR (kiR &I 3
contributions 18 0 18 - - - - - 126
Total directors’ emoluments  EZ 84 2% 1,110 17,128 498 140 140 140 140 140 19,436
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A BB RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2018
B 22018F3H31H 1L FIE

9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Information regarding directors’ emoluments (Continued)
Notes:

(i) Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim was also the Chief Executive
of the Company and his emoluments disclosed above
includes those for services rendered by him as the Chief
Executive. On 18 April 2017, Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
resigned as an executive director and ceased to be the Chief
Executive of the Company.

(i)  Mr. Tse Wing Chiu, Ricky was re-designated from a non-
executive director to an executive director and becomes the
Chief Executive of the Company with effect from 18 April
2017. His emoluments disclosed above for the year ended
31 March 2018 includes those for services rendered by him
as the Chief Executive.

(i)  The Group has been providing accommodation to Ms.
Lui Yuk Chu for use by her and her family members.
Rentals of the residential unit were included in “salaries
and other benefits” above. In May 2017, the tenancy
agreement expired. The Company determined to provide
residential units and car parking spaces of properties held
for sale to Ms. Lui Yuk Chu rent-free for use by her and
her family members. Properties held for sale amounting
to HK$75,288,000 were transferred to property, plant and
equipment during the year ended 31 March 2018. Aggregate
rateable value of these properties as set by the Hong Kong
Rating and Valuation Department was HK$2,366,000.

(iv)  Mr. Lai Law Kau resigned as a non-executive director on 18
April 2017.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company and the Group.

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services as directors of the Company and the
Company’s subsidiaries.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the Company.

9.

EE BERETRARREEZME (&£)

(a)

ERESMES2ER (&)

Bt

()

(i)

(v)

bk

BRACENBARRZEFBITR
mERE FHE M e EFE
BERITBRARIREZ RS -R
2017F4 3188 ' BARAN L £ BT
TEERTEAARRIZEFEITR

BE2017F4 A18B AR - #Hit kB 5k
SEHIFRTESEIGAATES
RINABARARZ BRITEEE, - HIA
FREZHEBEREABFITR
EERFTIR A 2 BRTS o

AEBERBEMESE Tt AR
REENTERR EAREKZ
REKBFEA ZEEEM2HE
EREELNZ [ EARER
BRI A R20175E58 - HERATHEL
FHf o KA RIRE R E— (@R E
HEMEZEEBEMIEAERTH]RKE
HREREF A - 8 Z=2018F3A31
H - EH & Y3 1475,288,00078 7T
EER B R MR REES
EMYEGEBBE  ZEMEIE
2= (B 52,366,000/5 7T

FBRTRSEAEN20179F4 518 H BHEIE
WITES-

BRZATEZME T2 RRER

RN SETES i

b Uty

BRZIFTESTHE T BRES

ERARRMBARNESE ZRY -

bk

BN ESFNTEEMEETRR

BREERRABERE 2R -
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
B 220183 H31H I FE

9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

132

Information regarding employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year
included three (2017: two) directors. The emoluments of the
remaining two (2017: three) highest paid individuals, not being
directors, are as follows:

Salaries and other benefits Fre kEMER
Contribution to retirement benefits RO FEH SR
schemes

EE BERETRARREEZME (&F)

(b) FHEEME2EHR

FR - AEEREARSFATERE=4
(2017F : B )ES - EEr M %E (2017
F =)W EEZER T AL ZE
EaINE

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET 8T
3,443 3,851

38 86

3,481 3,937

The emoluments of these employees fall within the following
bands:

ZEREZHMENF THIEE :

Number of individuals

EE A
2018 2017
Nil to HK$1,000,000 #£%1,000,0007% 7T - 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001;% 7C 1,500,000/ 7T 1 =
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001;% T 2,000,000/ 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,0015% 7T 22,500,000 7T 1 =
2 3

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors and the other two (2017: three) highest paid
individuals, as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss in office. In addition, during both
years, no director waived any emoluments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2018

B Z2018F3731HIF FIF
10. TAXATION CHARGE 10. FHIEMAX
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
The charge (credit) comprises: M (BT A)BHE:
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBFEH
Charge for the year NEZREZ 21,720 25,550
Under(over)provision for prior years BAFEREBETR
(EBEERME) 926 (694)
22,646 24,856
Deferred taxation ERET IR
Credit for the year (note 29) REREFA (Ae29) - (895)
22,646 23,961
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated BB 1S %R 2 W (4 [ TR AT FE AR B I LA
assessable profit for both years. 16.5%:T &
Taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the results per the RNEEHIER X B4R & B KE A 2 E WS
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive RERE Z{IE‘EKIDT
income as follows:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit (loss) before taxation BR AR ) (E518) 319,809 (219,885)
Tax charge (credit) of Hong Kong Profits Tax 32 & B 155 5 £16.5%
at 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) (20174 : 16.5% ) 2
BIAF ST (FTA) 52,768 (36,281)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for TENH A cHIERE
tax purposes 2,700 7,683
Tax effect of income not taxable for EARTRAZRIEZE
tax purposes (29,701) (7,339)
Tax effect of results attributable to BENREROEERZ
interests in associates M (6,764) 61,275
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIER %R IEES BeBERE 2,758 932
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses A BEARERTIEE TE 2
previously not recognised MIATE 41) (1,615)
Under(over)provision for prior years BAF E BETRE (BEiE) 926 (694)
Taxation charge for the year REFEHIBRR X 22,646 23,961
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e MR EE
For the year ended 31 March 2018
B ZE2018F3H31HILFE
11. DIVIDEND 1. RE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Dividend recognised as distribution RERAERRREZRE
during the year
Final dividend paid for financial year ended & Z£2017F3A31H It
31 March 2017 of HK$0.05 per share PHEE 2B RARKE
(2017: HK$0.10 per share for financial AF%0.055 T
year ended 31 March 2016) (20174F : # £20165F
BABTHIEIREER
FHR0.107% ) 3,971 7,942
Dividend proposed BREESR
Proposed final dividend for financial year #H 220183 H31H IE
ended 31 March 2018 of HK$0.05 per RFEEREZRBRE
share (2017: HK$0.05 per share for AEF0.055 T
financial year ended 31 March 2017) (20174 : # 220174
BABTH I BEER
F/%0.05%7T) 4,566 3,971

The final dividend of HK$0.05 per share in respect of the year ended
31 March 2018 (2017: HK$0.05 per share) has been proposed by
the directors of the Company and is subject to approval by the
shareholders of the Company in the forthcoming annual general
meeting.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2018

B Z2018F3731HIF FIF
12. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 12. EREARBEER (FE)
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share AARIRREMEREAREERT (&
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following B)IRBATERGE:
data:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FETT
Earnings (loss) for the purpose of A ESREAREERA (E18)
calculating basic and diluted earnings mE 2 &F (E8)
(loss) per share (profit (loss) for the year (RRARRREMAFE
attributable to owners of the Company) A (1) ) 297,163 (243,846)
2018 2017
Number of shares KRB E
Number of shares for the purpose of HAESREAREERA (F8)
calculating basic and diluted earnings s 2k mHEE
(loss) per share 79,420,403 79,420,403
The computation of diluted earnings (loss) per share does not SREERF () 2B REHB
assume the conversion of the associates’ outstanding convertible B N B e R I MR 2 IR RR SRR I SRR ERAE
notes and share options since their exercise would result in increase HiTEewnegRas, moegkEsia-

in earnings per share/decrease in loss per share.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZ B EBE AR A T
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AN =
RE IR R M EE
For the year ended 31 March 2018
B 220183 H31H I FE
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ BERZE
Leasehold
improvements,
furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
properties equipment vehicles Total
R #E
HAME R&tE A= HE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
COST (BN
At 1 April 2016 72016F4 18 3,319 3,010 3,849 10,178
Additions NE - 7,147 489 7,636
Disposals HE - 2,573) (405) (2,978)
At 31 March 2017 7201743 A31H 3,319 7,584 3,933 14,836
Additions NE 4,373 1,664 - 6,037
Transfer from properties held for sale 5 B EH S 73,242 2,046 - 75,288
At 31 March 2018 7201843 A31H 80,934 11,294 3,933 96,161
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Rt &
At 1 April 2016 7201654 81H 1,469 2,861 807 5,137
Provided for the year REERE 59 778 799 1,636
Eliminated on disposals o 5 A GE - (2,568) (405) (2,973)
At 31 March 2017 20174373311 1,528 1,071 1,201 3,800
Provided for the year REZRE 1,310 1,974 835 4,119
At 31 March 2018 720183 A31H 2,838 3,045 2,036 7,919
CARRYING VALUES BFHE
At 31 March 2018 7201843 A31H 78,096 8,249 1,897 88,242
At 31 March 2017 20174373311 1,791 6,513 2,732 11,036
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A BB RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2018

2 2201843431 HiF F &
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

14.

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated

on a straight-line basis according to the following useful lives:

Leasehold properties Over the duration of the leases or fifty
years, whichever is the shorter

Leasehold improvements, 5 years
furniture, fixtures and
equipment

Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group transferred
residential units and car parking spaces from properties held
for sale with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$75,288,000
to property, plant and equipment upon change in use of these
properties as directors’ quarters and other benefits (see note 9(a)

(ii).

13.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14.
FAIR VALUE NEE

At 1 April 2016 K2016F4A1H
Additions NE

Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss
Other transfer

H fth B4

At 31 March 2017

Additions NE
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss RIS TER

At 31 March 2018

IR RRZ AT

R20173A31H
ANFAEE N

7201843 H31H

M- BEREE (&)

EREIEWE BERRE HABSER
BIAT Z A& AT ENE:

iz ok ES BNz FHRA+E
CAREEE
=15 R 5%
EEREZE
RE 3E56F

RE E2018F3A31H L FE RNk
BeAEEEMEEMERNE  AEEHRF
EHEMEZFEEMRBMNA XERE
75,288,000/ 8 TR =W - BB &EE (R
B 5F9(@) i) )

REW=

HK$°000
FET

1,615,500
30
21,877
(9,107)

1,628,300
3,425
159,475

1,791,200

All of the Group’s leasehold interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals are measured using the fair value model and are
classified and accounted for as investment properties.

All of the Group’s investment properties at 31 March 2018 and 2017
are situated in Hong Kong. The fair values of the Group’s investment
properties at 31 March 2018 and 2017 were arrived at on the basis
of valuation carried out as at these dates by Colliers International
(Hong Kong) Limited, an independent firm of qualified professional
property valuers not connected with the Group.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZ B EBE AR A T

AEBEREREEHENBETRIES 2 11
B TIARFERXGFERINEREY
EIIEy

R20184F 201743 A31H Fi A ALK E 2
S BT R B - 25 B R 2018F K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2018
B 220183 H31H I FE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continuead)

The gain arising on changes in fair value of investment properties
of HK$159,475,000 was recognised in profit or loss during the year
ended 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$21,877,000).

The following table gives information about how the fair values of
the investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and key inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels
1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.

Investment properties Fairvalue  Valuation techniques and
held by the Group Fair value at 31 March hierarchy key inputs
AREREZRENE AFERIASIA AVEEHR MHERAREIZEBA
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Commercial units (note) 1,202,400 1,108,100 Level 3 Income approach
- term yield
BB (i) 23 W%
—EHNE
- reversionary yield
—JE AR aS

- monthly term rental

—BRTHEE

1 38 Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIFEEBE G R A 5
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14. REWE (&£)

HZE2018F3A3THILFEZREME A
S {E 5 B Uk 25159,475,0005%8 T (20174 :
21,877,000/ 7T ) E A B ER -

TRINRMMEECREDENRFEZE
BLER FER 2 EERITREA) - A
FIREHAZ TBREEE PR ESR
(B12FEIR) 2 A FEFE

Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity

EXTABEHA BRE

Term yield, taking into account of yield The higher the term yield
generated by market average selling and reversionary yield,

price and the market average rental from the lower the fair value
comparable properties and adjustment

to reflect the conditions of the building,

which is ranged from 1.8% to 3.1%

(2017: from 2.5% to 3.1%)

EHNE ERANBMEITSTHER EHREREERE
LinsFHBeEE Z RERRMEE Am ATERE
MERZBE N TH1.8%%3.1% (2017
F:H25%23.1%)

Reversionary yield, taking into account of
yield generated by market average selling
price and the market average rental from
comparable properties and adjustment to
reflect the risk associated with the future
rental, which is ranged from 2.3% to
3.5% (2017: from 2.8% to 3.5%)

RN ZRALBME TS THE
BRI THES 2 W kR ARE
SRR ZEBE 1 TH2.3%Z%35% (2017
F: H28%Z35%)

Monthly term rental for each unit is derived  The higher the monthly
from the average of the rental as stated term rental, the higher
in the existing rental agreements, which the fair value
is ranged from HK$23 to HK$442 per
square foot (2017: from HK$21 to HK$376
per square foot)

SRECFATHELIREREROMY SATHEEES
ZTHBEE/L STARNTHBEL  ATEDS

F44287 Q07TE : BFHRAAETE
37618 7T)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2018

B ZE2018F3H31HILFE
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
Investment properties
held by the Group Fair value at 31 March
X B2 REMHE ATLERIA3NAB
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Industrial units 141,800 113,300
THEf
Industrial units 447,000 406,900

14.

Fair value
hierarchy

DYEER

Valuation techniques and
key inputs
REXTREEHA

- reversionary rental

—R#ARS

Level 3 Direct comparison method

- based on market observable
transactions of similar
properties and adjusted to
reflect the locations and
conditions of the subject

properties

BERRBE-ERFAENEL
MEARRR 5 REEEIN
REBEMEZMERBR

Level 3 Income approach

- term yield

W&
—EHkE

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZ B EBE AR A T
Annual Report 2018 43R}

REWE (#)

Significant unobservable inputs

EATAREEHA

Market monthly rental rate, which is ranged
from HK$25 to HK$510 per square foot
(2017: from HK$24 to HK$264 per square
foot)

T8RS  SFHRNFH5ETES0
BT (20174 : BT 7 R4 B 226478
iT)

Price per square foot, using market direct
comparables and taking into account
of location, age and other individual
factors, which is ranged from HK$6,400
to HK$6,700 per square foot (2017: from
HK$5,800 to HK$6,100 per square foot),
and car park of HK$2,200,000 each
(2017: HK$1,800,000 each)

BYARER FAMSEETHLRNZR
g BRAREMENREZ 8FHR
16,4007 T 26,7005 7T (20175 : &
T RAF5,8007 26,100 7T) * bA
R ERIEE2,200,000% 7T (20174 : H1@
1,800,000/ 7T)

Term yield, taking into account of yield
generated by market average selling
price and the market average rental from
comparable properties and adjustment
to reflect the conditions of the building,
which is 3.0% (2017: 3.1%)

EHRE  ZRALBRYE 2 T5THEE
LT aReEE Ka R RBMEEY
R A% £3.0% (20175 :3.1%)

Sensitivity
BBE

The higher the

reversionary rental, the
higher the fair value

AHEDRS

The higher the price per

square foot and price
per car park, the higher
the fair value

STAREER
B EERE:
AFER

The higher the term yield

and reversionary yield,
the lower the fair value

T R B AR g
AE ATERE
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e M RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2018
B 220183 H31H I FE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value
hierarchy

DYEER

Investment properties
held by the Group
rEEREZRENE

Valuation techniques and
key inputs
REXTREEBA

Fair value at 31 March
ATLERIANA
2018

HK$'000
FET

2017
HK$'000
FET

- reversionary yield

— RS

- monthly term rental

-GREHES

- reversionary rental

—fEAAE S

14. REWE (&£)

Significant unobservable inputs

EATAREHA

Reversionary yield, taking into account of
yield generated by market average selling
price and the market average rental from
comparable properties and adjustment to
reflect the risk associated with the future
rental, which is 3.25% (2017: 3.35%)

ARG ZERALENE TS THE
ERMSTHES 2 NERRBARES
B2 % - 53.25% (20174 :3.35% )

Monthly term rental for each unit is derived
from the average of the rental as stated
in the existing rental agreements, which
is ranged from HK$9.7 to HK$14.7 per
square foot (2017: from HK$9 to HK$12
per square foot)
BEEUSATHESHRERAHELOMII
ZHIBEBE  BYARNFHITAT
ZE14.78T (0175 : B FHRAGETE
1287T)

Reversionary rental for each unit
is compared with direct market
comparables and taking into account of
location and other individual factor, which
is HK$15 per square foot (2017: HK$14
per square foot)

BEBN EEAES BEETSINLR
YELBRRERUE BRRIEMERNR
% BEARAISET 0175 : BFAR
B14ET)

Sensitivity
BBE

The higher the monthly
term rental rate, the
higher the fair value

The higher the
reversionary rental, the
higher the fair value

BRFESAE -
AVERE

1,791,200 1,628,300

Note: During the year, the valuation techniques used for determining
the fair value of certain commercial units was changed
from direct comparison method to income approach as
the management considers that there were limited market
comparables for similar properties in current year that were

appropriate to assess the fair value of these commercial units.

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2018

2 2201843431 HiF F &
15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

15. BE QT zER

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost of listed investments in associates LN T = Pl ) N 402,886 402,886
Addition of equity interest upon the RASERZBREILEERTZ
Group’s conversion of convertible note AR IR 0 2 M 2
issued by Eminence (see note 17(d) (BHI7F17()) 16,980 -
419,866 402,886
Share of post-acquisition profits and DN =T R E 2 EWA -
other comprehensive income, net of MR E AR S,
dividends received:
— At beginning of the year —RREA]) 183,669 549,206
— Deemed partial disposal of equity —RAELEBHERS
interest (188,513) (863,721)
- Gain on bargain purchase at date of — R RUWEEE AR A2
deemed acquisition of additional A EE
interests in associates 215,998 -
— Share of profit (loss) and other — s (BE) &
comprehensive income (expense) Hitv2mEmEA (FR) 34,646 (1,816)
- At end of the year —REXR 245,800 183,669
665,666 586,555
Fair value of listed investments in B NE EMREZ AFE
associates 47,317 62,654

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZ B EBE AR A T
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e M RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2018

2t 2201843431 HiF F/&

15.

142

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

At 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group had interests in Eminence

and the following principal subsidiaries of Eminence:

Name of associate

BENFEH

Eminence
YIRS

Capital Well (H.K.) Limited
EM(BE)BRAR

Chancemore Limited

City China International Limited

HRERERRA

Clever Wise Holdings Limited
BRERBRAF

Daily Leader Limited
Excellent East Limited
BRERAT

Fanju Investments Limited
ZHREBRAT

Gainever Corporation Limited
KEBERAR

Giant East Limited
ERARAA

Glory Link Investment Limited

REZEERAT

Goldchamp International Limited
tEERERAR

Golden Top Properties Limited
BIREEARAF

Place of

incorporation/
establishment
and operation

ML R
ek

Bermuda
BRE

Hong Kong
BB

British Virgin Islands
(“BVI")/Hong Kong

RBRAES
([(RBRLEE])
/EBE

Hong Kong
BB

BVI/Hong Kong
EBRAEE/BA

BVI/Hong Kong
EBEAEHE/BE

Hong Kong
BE

BVI/Hong Kong
KBRS/ BE

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

15. B NT 2R (&)

E\

S

Proportion of nominal value of
issued share capital/registered
capital held by the Group

FEERE

BRTRAE/
EMBRAEELA

2018 2017
24.93% 23.92%
24.93% -
24.93% 23.92%
24.93% 23.92%
24.93% 23.92%
24.93% 23.92%
24.93% =
24.93% 23.92%
24.93% 23.92%
24.93% -
24.93% 23.92%
24.93% 23.92%
24.93% 23.92%
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20184 20173 A31H  AEE R S LU
TEERTISLCEZEBNBAREEE

Principal activities

TEREHR

Investment holding
REER

Property investment

NERE

Property investment

NERAE

Loan financing
BREE

Property investment

NERE

Property development
NEER

Property investment

ES S

Investment in securities
BFRE

Investment in securities
BHRE

Property investment

NERE

Investment in securities

BHRE

Property investment

NEEE

Property investment

NERE
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A BB RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2018
B 22018F3H31H 1L FIE

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

15. B QT 2R (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Proportion of nominal value of
establishment issued share capital/registered
Name of associate and operation capital held by the Group
AEERE
FEMARYL B BRTRE/
BENAER REEHH R AR A E A L A
2018 2017
Grow Well Profits Limited BVI/Singapore 24.93% 23.92%
RERLES/
HAR
Janson Properties Limited Hong Kong 24.93% 23.92%
RBEZERAA BE
Land Bloom Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong 24.93% 23.92%
FRERERAR RERUHE/BB
Main Lucky Enterprises Limited Hong Kong 24.93% 23.92%
FHRECEARAR Bk
Top Channel Enterprises Limited Hong Kong 24.93% 23.92%
HHCEBRAT BE
Total Expect Limited BVI/Hong Kong 24.93% 23.92%
RERLES/BS
Treasure Arts International Group Limited BVI/Hong Kong 24.93% 23.92%
EEEREEARAR RERUHE/BB
Wealth Plan Development Limited Hong Kong 24.93% 23.92%
REHRERAR Bk
Easyknit Enterprises (Huzhou) Co., Ltd. People’s Republic of 24.93% 23.92%

(“Enterprises Huzhou”)*
KXEEE M) BRAR
(DAMER])

* Enterprises Huzhou is a wholly foreign owned enterprise

China
HE

established in the People’s Republic of China, to be operated for

50 years up to 14 December 2054.

The above table lists the associates of the Company, which, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected
the results of the year or constituted a substantial portion of the
assets of the Group. To give details of other associates would, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company result in particulars of

excessive length.
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MNEEA—BRFPBEKLZINEERE
1% L H BB0F B 22054512814

=

RRn R
B CNIRE

Principal activities

FERK

Property investment

WERE
Property investment
WERE

Property development
NEER

Property investment

NERAE

Property investment

NERE

Property development
MEER

Property development
NEER

Property development
NEER

Property investment

NERAE

WA EDIRFAIR 2 AN A B E R R AL
RAESEZER FBXEFAZREARBK
AEBEEZTERD MARAEELZE

BERRZHIF &
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
B 220183 H31H I FE

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

15.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
associates is set out below. The summarised financial information
below represents amounts shown in the consolidated financial

BN R RS (&)

BRAAREE 2 B2 R m B I 58 B E ) a0
o AT B S B R T R RARIRE B I
BREENRE B LGS MR

statements of EE Group prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. FoBE RN R TRNERE ISR A E R AR
The associates are accounted for using the equity method in the BRo
consolidated financial statements.
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current assets mENVE E 2,067,689 1,880,798
Non-current assets EREEE 1,944,228 1,526,852
Current liabilities nREEE (589,314) (560,523)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (707,315) (394,974)
Net assets attributable to owners of SILTERRSHEEFRE
Eminence 2,715,288 2,452,153
Revenue W z5 49,605 36,518
Profit (loss) for the year AELHH (EE) 53,539 (26,627)
Other comprehensive income (expense): A2 EUKA (FiX) :
Change in fair value of AEEERE AT EED
available-for-sale investments 45,029 13,995
Release upon disposal of o S AT S AR R R B
available-for-sale investments (45) (5,059)
Reclassification adjustment upon A SR E RN RER 2
impairment of available-for-sale B EAR
investments 3,406 14,176
Exchange difference arising on BREBINE BRI HREKZ
translation of financial statements of EHER
foreign operations 37,095 (16,038)
Other comprehensive income for the year AR ZH b 2 mEULA 85,485 7,074
Group’s share of profit (loss) of associates <% [ 5 (h B2 A B HF (E518) 13,508 (7,643)
Group’s share of other comprehensive REED(BEE AR A2 EWA
income of associates 21,138 5,827
34,646 (1,816)
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For the year ended 31 March 2018

B Z2018F3731HIF FIF
15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 15. BE QAT Z2Em (&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to LA BB BA TS E R RN AR & S IR R 2
the carrying amount of the interests in associates recognised in the B N AR REEEER
consolidated financial statements:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FEIT
Net assets attributable to owners BLUCEEERRESIGEEFE
of EE Group 2,715,288 2,452,153
Proportion of the Group’s equity interest ~ NEE R = LD ¥ £ B R ARERS
in EE Group Z LA 24.93% 23.92%
676,921 586,555
Less: Net assets of EE Group not shared i - A& BB D hE L EEE 2
by the Group BEFH (11,255) -
665,666 586,555
16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 16. AHHERE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, at ~ A &#® 2 BAES -
market value EHhE 109,665 45,354
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B 220183 H31H I FE

17. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

@)

146

On 27 March 2014, the Group subscribed for convertible note
issued by Eminence (the “2014 CN”). The principal amount
is HK$100,000,000 which carries interest at 2% per annum
and payable semi-annually in arrears. The maturity date of the
2014 CN is on 27 March 2019 and will be redeemed at 100%
of the principal amount. The 2014 CN can be converted at
any time from the date of issue to the maturity date. Since the
subscription, certain of the 2014 CN with principal amount
of HK$80,000,000 were converted into 128,869,707 ordinary
shares of Eminence.

Upon completion of a series of rights issue and share
consolidation by Eminence, the last adjusted conversion price
is HK$22.72 per conversion share with effect from 9 October
2015.

The fair value of the receivable component at initial recognition
is determined based on the valuation provided by Greater
China Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of professional
qualified valuers not connected with the Group. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the receivable component is carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

On 7 October 2015, the Group subscribed for convertible
note (the “2016 CN”) issued by a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, with principal amount of HK$60,480,000 which
carries interest at 8% per annum payable quarterly in arrears
with maturity on 7 October 2018 at redemption amount of
100% of the principal amount. The 2016 CN can be converted
at any time from the date of issue to the maturity date with
conversion price of HK$0.14 per share. In addition, both the
Group and the issuer have the option to early redeem the
2016 CN at any time from the date of issue to the maturity
date at 100% of the principal amount outstanding under
the 2016 CN together with all accrued interest. The fair
value at initial recognition of the receivable component and
derivatives component, which amounted to HK$43,990,000
and HK$16,490,000, respectively, are determined based on
the valuation provided by Greater China Appraisal Limited,
an independent firm of professional qualified valuers not
connected with the Group. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the receivable component is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method and the derivatives component is
carried at fair value.
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H A2019%3 A27H & 15 [@100% 2
REEE - 2014F ] R EIE ] B 81TH
RERNEHA 2 ERFRER BRE
1% » 7N 4 %880,000,0007% 7T 2 & T2014
FO IR ERE K% 5128,869,707%
= L7 2 TR AR RS o

Sl ELB—ERER KRG E G
& mBKCHE 2 AREREBRILBRK
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7 7T 1216,490,00058 7T » JiAR % 2 5T
BEARAR —HERNEBRERHEY
B ABREEGEMTIREZGEE
TE o MIRBERE  FEULAK 55 A BB F &
SRR AR BR RAOTER D AR TFE
5l 8K ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2018
B 22018F3H31H 1L FIE

17. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

)

(Continued)

On 1 August 2017, the issuer and the Company entered into
a deed of amendment to revise the terms of the 2016 CN.
According to the deed of amendment, both the issuer and
the Company agreed to the early partial redemption of the
2016 CN in the principal amount of HK$35,000,000, resulting
in a gain on redemption of convertible note of HK$1,135,000
recognised in profit or loss. Both parties further agreed to
adjust the conversion price from HK$0.14 per conversion
share to HK$0.06 per conversion share. The transaction was
completed on 11 August 2017. The fair value of the new
derivatives component immediately following the modification,
which amounted to HK$2,389,000, is determined based on
the valuation provided by Greater China Appraisal Limited,
an independent firm of professional qualified valuers not
connected with the Group. The gain on modification of terms
of convertible note amounting to HK$425,000 is recognised in
profit or loss.

On 11 May 2017, the Group subscribed for convertible note
(the “2017 CN1”) issued by Eminence, with principal amount
of HK$16,000,000 which carries interest at 3% per annum
and payable semi-annually in arrears with maturity on 11
May 2022 at redemption amount of 100% of the principal
amount. The 2017 CN1 can be converted at any time from
and excluding the date of issue to and including the date
falling on the fifth last business day prior to the maturity date
with conversion price of HK$0.16 per share. The Group may
redeem the 2017 CN1, at any time three months after the
grant date, at 100% of the principal amount outstanding
together with all interest accrued thereon up to and including
the date of redemption. Eminence may redeem the 2017 CN1
on any business day prior to the maturity date at 100% of the
principal amount outstanding together with all interest accrued
thereon up to and including the date of redemption. The fair
value at initial recognition of the receivable component and
derivatives component, which amounted to HK$9,496,000
and HK$6,504,000, respectively, are determined based on
the valuation provided by Greater China Appraisal Limited,
an independent firm of professional qualified valuers not
connected with the Group. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the receivable component is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method and the derivatives component is
carried at fair value.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZ B EBE AR A T

17. ATBRRERE (&)

(b)
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R2017E8A1H  BHIT A RN ARERE]
BT R A AT R2016FE A IR E 1 7
&R RIBIERT L) BT ARARQF]
)[R = He A fE (2 2B 15 4N & B8 35,000,000
BT 22016F AJ ARk i - B FE [
A] 2 I 2= 4% U 251,135,00058 7T R 1B 75
BR-EHE—FPREABRIRERS
% 532 8% 190.1478 T 2 =i KRk 5
0.0678 7L ° 52 X S 20178 A11H &
B o FTRTER (D REEIE A 2 A FER
2,389,000/ T IR IZ R EFERBR A
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R

R2017F5R8118  AEERES LB
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B N 2022F5 11 H & [2100% 2 7K
S H - E— D201 7TFE MR EIE 7] B 3
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Z AR A EAR0.16/8 7T 2 KRB X,
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B It 2 E ] E R R E R E — 112017
Fal AR AR i #R 2100% 248 & B8 & Bl
BitRAEEENBEED A - 51U
CETREHAEM2ARNEXARS
BE [0 55 — (0201 7F Al A AR Z I8 M 4 2
100%ACERTETIRFEEERE
FEFE D B 8 o YIRFER BRI 2 I 4T
E KD 2 A F1E S Bl 49,496,000/ T
126,504,000/ 7C © JiIRIEIEEFER R
AR —HEAEEREEEZBIE
BREEGHEMITREBZAEETE )
IRMERE » FEWRK D A B BR FI R A i
SHRARTIBR AT D AR FEFIER
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B 220183 H31H I FE

17. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

@

148

On 26 September 2017, the Group subscribed for convertible
note (the “2017 CN2”) issued by Eminence, with principal
amount of HK$28,200,000 which carries interest at 3% per
annum and payable semi-annually in arrears with maturity on
26 September 2020 at redemption amount of 100% of the
principal amount. The 2017 CN2 can be converted at any
time from and excluding the date of issue to and including the
date falling on the fifth last business day prior to the maturity
date with conversion price of HK$0.06 per share. The Group
may redeem the 2017 CN2, at any time three months after
the grant date, at 100% of the principal amount outstanding
together with all interest accrued thereon up to and including
the date of redemption. Eminence may redeem the 2017 CN2
on any business day prior to the maturity date at 100% of the
principal amount outstanding together with all interest accrued
thereon up to and including the date of redemption. The fair
value at initial recognition of the receivable component and
derivatives component, which amounted to HK$19,941,000
and HK$8,259,000, respectively, are determined based on
the valuation provided by Greater China Appraisal Limited,
an independent firm of professional qualified valuers not
connected with the Group. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the receivable component is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method and the derivatives component is
carried at fair value.

On 18 October 2017, the conversion rights attached to the
2017 CN2 with principal amount of HK$16,920,000 were
partially exercised and a total of 282,000,000 conversion
shares were issued by Eminence to the Group upon
conversion.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited XZEBREEER A 7
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
B 22018F3H31H 1L FIE

17. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

17. ATBRRERE (&)

The convertible notes are recognised as follows: AR E R T -
Receivable Derivatives
component component Total
FEUW L 5 PTER D e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FAET FET FETT
At 1 April 2016 K20165F4A1H 63,672 17,170 80,842
Accretion of interest B2z BAREE 8,984 - 8,984
Interest received 2 & (5,238) - (5,238)
Fair value loss recognised RiBz= AR Z
in profit or loss NEEEE - (11,003) (11,003)
At 31 March 2017 R201743A31H 67,418 6,167 73,585
Addition NE 29,437 14,763 44,200
Accretion of interest FEZBAEE 11,539 - 11,539
Redemption & (31,166) (2,699) (33,865)
Gain on modification of terms BRIz Y as - 425 425
Conversion R (12,066) (4,914) (16,980)
Interest received B UF B (3,845) = (3,845)
Fair value loss recognised Rz AR Z
in profit or loss NEEEE - (2,992) (2,992
At 31 March 2018 720183 A31H 61,317 10,750 72,067
Balance as at 31 March 2018 MR2018F3A31H 2
analysed as: FEER DT
Amount due within one year BATRRBEE L
shown under current assets —F AR EeRE 42,104 958 43,062
Amount due after one year BTRIERBEEZ
shown under non-current —FREEeE
assets 19,213 9,792 29,005
61,317 10,750 72,067
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Annual Report 2018 43R}

149



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2018
B 220183 H31H I FE

17. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

The methods and assumptions applied for the valuation of the
convertible notes are as follows:

@

(ii)

150

Valuation of receivable component

At initial recognition, the fair value of the receivable component
is calculated based on the present value of contractually
determined stream of future cash flows discounted at the
required yield, which is determined with reference to the
credit risk of the convertible note issuer and maturity term.
The effective interest rates of the receivable component of the
2014 CN, 2016 CN, 2017 CN1 and 2017 CN2 are 15.90%,
18.99%, 19.58% and 15.51%, respectively.

Valuation of derivatives component

The derivatives component is measured at fair value using
the Black-Scholes model with Trinomial Tree method, at initial
recognition and at the end of each subsequent reporting
period. The inputs into the model as at date of subscription
and the end of the reporting periods are as follows:

17. ATBRKRERE (&)

BB ERHRRRIE 2 TERBRRAT

@

(i)

FE W % 7 14 18

AR REREE  EUAK 2 2 A FAE TH1R
BAANEBEE 2 R KBS REAE TR
AR EIREE 2 E M BRE
BBRTAZEERRE LR EHR mE
JE ° 2014F Al AR 45 - 20165 Al A%
ZE 2017 AR R K —
P2017F AT R EiR FE W A 0 2 BB
= 5 5l £15.90% ~ 18.99% ~ 19.58%
$%15.51% °

TTERD hE

PTER A RIIRIER R BE R BEHR S
HIRTH IR 3 e — R R AR e = A
EARFERE - NRE R RS S
REARBZBAZRBELT :

2014 CN 20144 A/ 12 IR Z 15
Date of
At At subscription
31 March 31 March 27 March
2018 2017 2014
#2018 FR20174F REEEH
3H31H 3H31H  2014%3H27H
Stock price Az B HK$0.064 HK$0.140 HK$0.57
Conversion price RE HK$22.72 HK$22.72 HK$0.68
Volatility R & 53.20% 39.29% 43.14%
Dividend yield g A1l == 0% 0% 0%
Time to maturity EI| BB ] 1 year 2 years 5 years
Risk-free rate 4 [BL g AR 38 K 1.1764% 0.8801% 1.5190%

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIFEEBE G R A 5
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S A =
ARE MR
For the year ended 31 March 2018
B ZE2018F3H31HILFE
17. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued) 17. ARREE (&)
(i) Valuation of derivatives component (Continued) (i) FTERDEE(E)
2016 CN 2016 A/ 12 IR E 15
Date of
modification Date of
At of terms At subscription
31 March 11 August 31 March 7 October
2018 2017 2017 2015
R20185F  E TR 20175 RERH
3A318 201748A11H 3A31H  2015%10A7H
Stock price & HK$0.045 HK$0.061 HK$0.11 HK$0.18
Conversion price HE HK$0.06 HK$0.06 HK$0.14 HK$0.14
Volatility i 70.93% 37.97% 42.54% 50.79%
Dividend yield ek 0% 0% 0% 0%
Time to maturity Bl 0.5 year 1.2 years 1.5 years 3 years
Risk-free rate R AL 1.0474% 0.6064% 0.7875% 1.0430%
2017 CN1 E—172017F TR E1Z
Date of
At subscription
31 March 11 May
2018 2017
20185 RHEEH
3H31H 2017F5H11H
Stock price f& (& HK$0.064 HK$0.139
Conversion price HE HK$0.16 HK$0.16
Volatility i 73.86% 75.15%
Dividend yield A& A 2 0% 0%
Time to maturity I HA B 4.1 years 5 years
Risk-free rate # [a B AL 3R 2 1.7022% 1.1572%
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
B 220183 H31H I FE

17. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

(ii) Valuation of derivatives component (Continued)

17. ATBRKRERE (&)

(i) FTERDEE(Z)

2017 CN2 F 120174 AR Zi
Date of
At subscription
31 March 26 September
2018 2017
120185 REEHH
3H31H 20179 A26H
Stock price IR B HK$0.064 HK$0.064
Conversion price HinE HK$0.06 HK$0.06
Volatility B 64.62% 80.66%
Dividend yield fig A1l = 0% 0%
Time to maturity 21 HA B 2.5 years 3 years
Risk-free rate [ g AL 38 & 1.4723% 1.0164%

18. LOANS RECEIVABLE 18. EWER
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fixed-rate loans receivable EBEKER 228,080 259,121
Variable-rate loans receivable FEEWRE R 31,181 49,733
259,261 308,854
Analysed as: DR

Current portion mENE D 245,282 233,133
Non-current portion EREE D 13,979 75,721
259,261 308,854
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For the year ended 31 March 2018

2 2201843431 HiF F &
18. LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

At 31 March 2018, the range of interest rate on the Group’s fixed-
rate loans receivable is 3% to 19% (2017: 3% to 19%) per annum
and the range of interest rate on the Group’s variable-rate loans
receivable is prime rate less 2.95% to prime rate plus 2.0% (2017:
prime rate less 2.95% to prime rate) per annum.

Before granting loans to outsiders, the Group assesses the potential
borrower’s credit quality and defines credit limits granted to each
borrower. The credit limits attributed to the borrowers are reviewed
by the management regularly.

The Group has a policy for assessing the impairment on loans
receivable on an individual basis. The assessment also includes
evaluation of collectability of accounts and management’s
judgment, including the financial background, current
creditworthiness, collateral and past collection history of each
borrower.

In determining the recoverability of loans receivable, the Group
considers any change in the credit quality of the loans receivable
from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date.
This includes assessing the credit history of the borrowers, such
as financial difficulties or default in payments, and current market
conditions.

The management closely monitors the credit quality of loans
receivable and considers loans receivable amounting to
HK$259,261,000 at 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$308,854,000) that
are neither past due nor impaired to be of good credit quality and
no impairment loss was identified. At 31 March 2018 and 2017, no
loans receivable are past due at the end of the reporting period for
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss.

No ageing analysis is disclosed, as in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the ageing analysis does not give additional value in
view of the nature of business of loan financing.

The Group’s loans receivable that were denominated in currency
other than the functional currency of the relevant group entities,
which were denominated in USD, amounted to HK$15,660,000 at
31 March 2018 (2017: HK$15,520,000).

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZ B EBE AR A T
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R2018F3A31H KAEE 2 EEEKRER
FRENT3%ZE19% (20174 : 3% Z=19% )
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ERHERTINRER  AEBEFEEERE
RAZEEERREERTEUBRAZE
ER-EEEERRABRAZEER.

ANER B (B Bl B2 7 B R B E 2R
18 - A TNEIE IR P AT E R 2 &l K
AREBREBAERAZHBEER AEEE.
IR R B D ESE 2 B 2 HI -

REEE R E R 2 FTIREHR - REEE E
FREREZVRLEEEERGEAHZE
EERZ2EMRNE - EPREFRERAZ
FEEESL MU BRENEOER LR
TE AR ©

ERERTERRRERZEEER RA
M2018F3A31 RS AR BB EKE
%259,261,0005% 7T (20174F : 308,854,000/8
TL) BB RIHEEE & R EM AR EEE
R20184F N2017F3A31H  AEE R R E
BRI E RN E TR BRI AR -

BERBREDN BARREERA 5L
ERREXBILEN = Rk T ARG R
SME(E -

R2018F3A31H KEE 7 B E LS
BEEBEERNETEIINIER  LLE
TCHIME - & %8 515,660,000 7T (20174 -

15,520,000/ 7C) ©
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2t 2201843431 HiF F/&
19. INTANGIBLE ASSET

20.

154

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company set up a
wholly-owned subsidiary in Hong Kong, Constance Capital Limited
(“Constance Capital”), for the purpose of securities dealing and
broking. Business of Constance Capital commenced in July 2017.

At 31 March 2018 and 2017, intangible asset represents a trading
right with carrying value of HK$500,000 that confers eligibility of
Constance Capital to trade on the Stock Exchange. The trading
right has no foreseeable limit to the period that Constance Capital
can use to generate net cash flows. As a result, the trading right
is considered by management of the Company as having an
indefinite useful life because it is expected to contribute to net cash
inflows indefinitely. The trading right will not be amortised until its
useful life is determined to be finite. It will be tested for impairment
semi-annually and whenever there is an indication that it may be
impaired. At 31 March 2018 and 2017, the management of the
Company determined that there is no impairment of Constance
Capital’s trading right based on its value in use.

DEPOSITS

Statutory deposits (note) ETRERE (M)

Deposit paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Deposit paid for investment properties

BEMEZENES

19.

20.

BV EE

HE2017F3ABIB EFRN ARG RE B
B —fME2ENBAR AHEEAREGRAR
([BLAFEEA])  LAEITEF R ZIEE) o oh T
BEARFP2017F7AFBEZE-

MR20184F R201743A31H B EE T A
BRTAHEAERATRBEIMEE 2R BHE
2 BRTAI{E500,000/8 7T  SAEE AT (AR HE
HRZRSBAEAR S REFE i

ARNREREBRARSEABERERFHRA
TEEEMERPERR S REFE - R HE
TeWEEEEHEREHETAER It
RGEBNEERETEBREG A LRER
HEITRERIR - 7A20184F 201743 H318 -

ARREBRENREBEEFRAEEETARE

BAYE BEMRBICHES

RZRPHERARIE
BE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET T/ET
205 205
139 -
1,970 -
2,314 205

Note: The amounts represent Constance Capital’s statutory deposits
with Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited and the

Stock Exchange.
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2 2201843431 HiF F &
21. DEPOSIT AND PREPAYMENTS FOR A LIFE INSURANCE

POLICY

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Company entered into
a life insurance policy with an insurance company to insure Ms.
Koon Ho Yan Candy, a director of the Company. Under the policy,
the Company is the beneficiary and policy holder and the total
insured sum is US$10,800,000 (equivalent to HK$83,808,000). The
Company is required to pay an upfront deposit of US$1,283,000
(equivalent to HK$9,956,000) including a premium charge at
inception of the policy amounting to US$76,980 (equivalent to
HK$597,000). The Company can terminate the policy at any time
and receive cash back based on the cash value of the policy at the
date of withdrawal, which is determined by the upfront payment
of US$1,283,000 plus accumulated interest earned and minus
the accumulated insurance charge and policy expense charge
(“Cash Value”). In addition, if withdrawal is made between the first
to eighteenth policy year, there is a specified amount of surrender
charge. The insurance company will pay the Company an interest
of 4.0% per annum on the outstanding Cash Value of the policy
for the first year. Commencing on the second year, the interest
will become 2% per annum plus a premium determined by the
insurance company. The directors of the Company intend to hold
the life insurance policy for ten years from the date of inception.

At 31 March 2018, the deposit and prepayments for a life insurance
policy amounting to HK$10,561,000 (2017: HK$10,373,000), with
HK$286,000 (2017: HK$282,000) being included in trade and other
receivables (see note 24), were pledged to a bank to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group.

The deposit and prepayments for a life insurance policy are
denominated in United States dollars (‘USD”), a currency other than
the functional currency of the Company.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZ B EBE AR A T

21.

A

it

REZRERANK

REZE2013F3A31B It FE  ANARIE—FH
REBARIFIN —TBASBREURRANRAE
EEAMZLT - BEZRE AQAAZH
ARIRERFHF A KB IREE 510,800,000%
7T (1855 1483,808,000/8 7T )  ANA & ZB X f+f
TEf42$1,283,0003 7T (#H55729,956,0007%
T0) - BIER M RERZAS 2 R 76,980
= 7T (2 7597,000/8 7T ) ° A A 7 7] AME
AIRHELIEZRE RIRERRFZIRE 2R
S EERRIRE - 1t THIR IR TAT 511,283,000
ETUMFTHELZ 2518 E RINREHRE K
REBAMAS ([RESEE]) MEBEE LI
WRREE—FEF+N\FRR HEETE
SRHEABERRAY - HNREFE—F  REAA
TR Mk 2 IR & BERFE B 4.0% 78
FARLAR -HE_FHE FIEBEAFE2%
MEBARBAREEZRE ARFESTH
HHEEASREAMIEAHE0F-

M201853A31H - ASRE 2i2E RTEN
X £10,561,000/% 7T (20174 : 10,373,000/
7T )+ H #1286,000/% 7T (20174 : 282,000/%
T)BEEB S REMBUWHERN (R HE
24) BEMBTFRITEAERTASE —K
RITRE 2R o

ABREZRE FRFENFALRAR NG
Nz BT ([37T]) FIME
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22. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE 22,
The Group’s properties held for development for sale are situated in
Hong Kong.

At 31 March 2018, the amount of properties held for development
for sale which is expected to be completed more than twelve
months after the end of the reporting period is HK$400,649,000
(2017: nil).

At 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group performed assessment
of net realisable value on its properties held for development for
sale with reference to valuations made by independent qualified
professional property valuers not connected with the Group.
The valuations were arrived at by using the residual method.
As the estimated net realisable values of the properties held for
development for sale are higher than their carrying amounts at the
end of the reporting period, the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that no write-down on these properties is considered
necessary.

23.

INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING 23.

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong,
at market value

FIEHERRYE

AEBZBEHERRMETDMLREE -

R2018F3A31H « FHEA AL B 2 EH &3
EBYVERREDRRET —BARNTHRZEEH
400,649,000/ 7T (20174F : &) -

R20184F 201743 A31H  AEBEE st
EHEBRRYEETAERFET GRS
HEANEBREME B A ERBEDERS
EMfTZEE - ZSEEDRERSGEEE
B AR IELERRYE Y JEIRFE
BERERBREHAZEEE ARREER
BAEYEBETERRE

REE LM AR EHE

REEERE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHET TAET
100,094 287,493
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24. BEREMERKE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Trade receivables Z 5 FE W KIE 418 304
Deposit and prepayments for a life ASREZEe RERNR
insurance policy (note 21) (Kr7t21) 286 282
Escrow deposits for properties HIEREMEREES
held for sale 14,448 34,947
Amounts recoverable from joint operator KRB HXR &S EH Z
(note (a)) ke &% (fita@) 81,602 51,741
Prepayments SEENE:N 1,368 440
Interest receivable & AB 1,015 2,978
Refundable stamp duty (note (b)) AR B ENFERL (H15E D)) 89,400 =
Other receivables Hth fE UK IR 1,730 3,277
190,267 93,969
Notes: Hiat -

(@)

()

Under the terms of a joint operation arrangement for a property
redevelopment project, each of the Group and the other joint
operator agreed to pay for and bear the redevelopment costs
incurred on the project in proportion to their agreed proportion.
The other joint operator undertook to promptly make contributions
when called upon to do so by the Group. The amounts
recoverable from joint operator represented redevelopment costs
incurred which were attributable to the proportion agreed to be
paid for and borne by the other joint operator for which the Group
had not called for payment.

In accordance with the provisions of the Hong Kong Stamp Duty
Ordinance, the Group will apply for refund of the stamp duty paid
when the property redevelopment project commences. At 31
March 2018, the amount is included in the Group’s current assets
in the consolidated statement of financial position as it is expected
that the refund of stamp duty will be received within twelve
months.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZ B EBE AR A T

@

RIE-RAEEMEERER 2 HAAER
PR ARBREBEARAEDSER
BRREDTRB 2SN RO HEER 2
ERRA RS ET ARG RAS
EERAREHEDS KRB HAAETZ
AW EEEEY AEMIKREET RIS
REZ LI E XN R i A LB AR
ER S ANPA=L I

BEB BT AR 2 &3 EMESE
BHHERAR AEEBHBFRE DN
TER - 120183 A31H » th &R BIEFEA
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BAENTERR 3 A+ =8 A Uk = -
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 24,
The Group did not grant any credit period to its tenants. The

aged analysis of trade receivables, based on invoice date which
approximates revenue recognition date, at the end of the reporting
period is as follows:

0 - 60 days 0-60H
61 —-90 days 61-90H
Over 90 days #H3B90H

ESRHAEMEWRE (&)

AEEL AR TEEPERED REZKAK
SfER A HERH B 5 RUGIAR R

SRR RER DT :
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$ 000
TET TET
405 270
13 20
- 14
418 304

The management closely monitors the credit quality of trade and
other receivables and considers trade and other receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired to be of good credit quality.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance at 31 March 2018
were debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$342,000 (2017:
HK$201,000) which were past due at the end of the reporting period
for which the Group has not provided for allowance. The Group did
not hold any collateral over these balances.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables which are past
due but not impaired:

ERERTERBES REAMBKTIEZEE
BEMRBHRBBHRREZE S REME
WHIERBERIFEEE R

7201843 A31H  REE 2 & 5 Bl 38
@er o BIEIRME(E S $£342,000/5 7T (2017
£ :201,000% ) AE @A AN S EE BT
REBE AEEWRERZELEKRIFTEIM
Ao

EIBHMERREZ B B EUGKRIR 2 Rk DT
LI

Overdue by 1 to 60 days 2B HA1£60H
Overdue by 61 to 90 days B iR H61%E90H
Overdue by over 90 days £ 38 B8 3890

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
329 167

13 20

- 14

342 201

Based on the historical experience of the Group, trade receivables
that are past due are generally recoverable and as a result, no
allowance was made for trade receivables at the end of the
reporting period.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIFEEBE G R A 5
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2 2201843431 HiF F &
25. FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AS AT FAIR VALUE

26.

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

The Group acquired equity-linked investments with financial
institutions in Hong Kong. The equity-linked investments contain
embedded derivative, the return of which is determined with
reference to the closing price of one equity security (2017: two
equity securities) listed on the Stock Exchange. The equity-linked
investments are designated as at FVTPL at initial recognition.
The aggregate principal amount is HK$30,000,000 (2017:
HK$95,000,000) with fixed coupon interest rates and remaining time
to maturity within two months (2017: two months). The equity-linked
investments contain terms enabling the issuers either to deliver
the underlying equity securities on maturity if the market prices of
underlying securities are lower than their respective predetermined
reference stock prices or cash settlement of the principal and
interest if market prices of the underlying securities are higher than
their respective predetermined reference stock prices. The equity-
linked investments are subject to the option for early termination at
the discretion of the holders.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less, at prevailing market interest rates ranging from 0.001% to
0.91% (2017: 0.001% to 0.26%) per annum.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZ B EBE AR A T

25.

26.

BRAVEFABSEZERHEE

AEBKEECHEBEEARZHBKRE -
REHBRERENSHTETRE  HE®RY
2E—BRESBI ETBREES 2K
MEMEE (2017F : MEREZES) - KE
BRI E R R ERE R E AL AFE
AJBFE o N4 48 %530,000,000/8 7T (20174 :
95,000,0007% 7T ) & [E & B 3 K & & M &8 A
EIHF (20174 W{EA) -REHBIERS
IERAE BT AEHBEFMERNSBE
FRERMDERBRIGERERBIREE
5 HEHBEFCTERRSEBELE
D EBRE AR E BN AL RF B #HH A
AIEIEE R R R IR E -

RITERRAE

BITEBRERSBEAEEREZEEUR
BRI M IS FEFEH0.001%%0.91% (2017
£ :0.001%%0.26% ) 2 =& A 3k 2 A 3 81
2R HRRITIE K
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27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 27. BEEREMEMNFRE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade payables B S 5IA 9,151 10
Retention payable (note) T RIER (HaT) 10,325 14,472
Rental deposits received and rental B eZe REKES
received in advance 13,725 13,833
Deposits received from sale of residential ~HEFEEU 2B Wiz
units 11,554 32,877
Property management fund payable ENYEEEES 7,655 9,999
Interest payable FEATFI B 735 673
Commission payable to property agents ~ JEfH & T EAL 4T - 6,520
Amount payable to property purchasers ENESETMEER - 5,667
Accruals and other payables TEIR K E A FE T K08 10,115 11,175
63,260 95,226
Note: At 31 March 2018, retention payable of HK$10,325,000 (2017: Wit $H2018F3AH31H ENKRER
HK$14,472,000) is expected to be settled within twelve months 10,325,000 7T (20174F : 14,472,000
after the end of the reporting period. BIT) BEERRERRE T AR
XA
The aged analysis of trade payables determined based on invoice RIBRZEAH BH5ERNRENREHRZ
date at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BRECHMTIAT -
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
0 - 60 days 0-60H 8,251 10
Over 90 days #A3iB90H 900 -
9,151 10
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28. SECURED BANK BORROWINGS

28. HEMBITHEE

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Carrying amount repayable as follows JEEEZREEEBEN T
(based on the scheduled repayment (REHIINE R HE
dates set out in the loan agreements): EEEEBRR)
— within one year ——FR 601,657 235,741
— between one to two years ——EWF 65,188 260,340
— between two to five years ——ZFh%F 97,122 85,432
- after five years —hF%& 387,775 317,969
1,151,742 899,482
Comprising: a5
Amount due within one year shown BRI BAEL —FA
under current liabilities I BREfT 25 601,657 235,741
Amount that are not repayable within B WS BREFTE
one year from the end of the n— E NEEEBS
reporting period but containing a REERBRZEHE
repayment on demand clause - 26,532
Total amount shown under current RN N= N ol ok
liabilities 601,657 262,273
Amount shown under non-current BTLRIERBEBEC S5
liabilities 550,085 637,209
1,151,742 899,482
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B 220183 H31H I FE

28.

29.

162

SECURED BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

At 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group’s secured bank borrowings
carry interest at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) plus
1% to HIBOR plus 2.65% per annum, with effective interest ranging
from 1.82% to 3.64% (2017: 1.46% to 3.09%) per annum. The
loans are secured by leasehold properties, investment properties,
properties held for development for sale, properties held for
sale, financial assets designated as at FVTPL and deposit and
prepayments for a life insurance policy (see note 32). The proceeds
were mainly used to finance acquisition of investment properties
and development of properties.

All bank borrowings are denominated in HKD, functional currencies
of the relevant group entities, at the end of the reporting period.

28. HEMRTHEE (&)

R20184F 20173 A31H ' A& E 2 B iX
BIRITIEE VAR BRITRZERE ([H5R
TRZEFRE]) M BERBRITRIZERE M
2.65%1E  BEEFFETIH1.82%%3.64%
(20174F 1 1.46%%3.09% ) * X L E 7Ty LA
AEB s HEME REWE FIELEH
BWE BELEME RATEF AR
LERMEERANSREZIES RIENRIER
IR (RMI7E32) - AT FIBE EAERER
BYHEREERMEZRE -

RBEMK - B RITIEESAEREEE
B2 RBAETIE

DEFERRED TAXATION 20. RIEFIE
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) RAFERBEFE 2 EBREERLEHIE
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior AE(BE) REZHWT:
years:
Accelerated
tax Tax
depreciation losses Total
IEBIEFTE REFE M
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT FEr
At 1 April 2016 K2016%F481H 895 - 895
Credit to profit or loss (note 10) RiBEETA (#aE10) (703) (192) (895)
At 31 March 2017 201743 A31 8 192 (192) -
Charge (credit) to profit or loss R0 (FTA)
(note 10) (K77£10) 639 (639) -
At 31 March 2018 7201843 H31H 831 (831) -

At 31 March 2018, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$29,657,000 (2017: HK$9,327,000) available for offset against
future profits. A deferred tax asset had been recognised in respect
of HK$5,036,000 (2017: HK$1,162,000) of such losses as at 31
March 2018. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the remaining tax losses of HK$24,621,000 (2017: HK$8,165,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profits streams. The tax losses
can be carried forward indefinitely.
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B Z2018F3731HIF FIF
30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. KR
2018 & 2017
HK$'000
FET
Authorised: EE
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 10,000,000,000/% & % E{H0.175 7T
2 &R 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEZFTRHE -
79,420,403 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 79,420,403 F AR E{E0.175 7T
2 E B 7,942

31.

There were no changes in the Company’s authorised, issued and
fully paid share capital in both years.

JOINT OPERATIONS

On 16 June 2014, the Group entered into a development agreement
(the “Agreement”) with an independent third party (“Third Party”)
to jointly develop a site (the “Project”). Under the Agreement, the
existing building of the site shall be demolished and redeveloped as
a multi-story building for sales purpose. The Group and Third Party
own 75% and 25% interest of the Project, respectively.

The aggregate amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and
expenses recognised in the consolidated financial statements in
relation to the Group’s interest in the joint operations are as follows:

31.

ADRZERE BB RMRRALEREE
i -

R2014566 8168  REEEBIE=F
(IB=F DT ERBZE ([HHE])AXR
BRI ([RE]) -REZHHE  BIFR
WRZAAETRERR—REZENRTE
HERG - AEBRE=7TH5IEFRAEZ
75% [ 25% & o

ERAEEES B LB HENGA HBR
RERAEREM WERHENRE
-

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Assets BE 591,405 461,609
Liabilities af& (563,010) (431,301)
Revenue Wz - -
Expenses X (4,470) (379)

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZ B EBE AR A T
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32. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 32.
At the end of the reporting period, the following assets of the Group

were pledged to banks to secure credit facilities granted to the
Group:

HEMZE
BEMF
ABREZ2ZEE RBNK

Leasehold properties

Investment properties

Deposit and prepayments for a life
insurance policy

Properties held for development for sale

Properties held for sale

Financial assets designated as at FVTPL

FIEHERRME
FIEHEME
BAFEFABSRZEREE

EERM

RB|BERR AEBERTRITERERT
AEBERABRECEENT

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
76,364 —
1,649,400 1,515,000
10,561 10,373
798,009 312,136
110,449 227,778
29,885 95,309
2,674,668 2,160,596

In addition, rentals in respect of the above investment properties
and future sale proceeds and rentals in respect of the above
properties held for development for sale and properties held for sale
were also pledged to banks.

33.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 33.

The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments recognised in
profit or loss during the year

BN Bl EME M e R BB FFHER &
BRMERFELEMEZ RREEMER

REARBRERZ REBL MK

T M e KR TR T
REHNZHE
AEEEREEA
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
1,502 2,663

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

—5R

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

F_EZELFAN(BREEMF) -

R|BERR AEBRIB A RELEHY
Z AR FASEHAR AT -

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHAT FHET
1,124 1,062
678

1,124 1,740

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIFEEBE G R A 5
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33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Continued) 33. REMHATH(E)
The Group as lessee (Continued) REBEREABA (E)
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group BERANFIERNEEREETHRAERE
for certain of its office premises and directors’ quarters. Leases are EEfzENES HABE AN —ZRF
negotiated for terms of one to two years (2017: one to two years). (20175 : —ZEWF) ©
Under the leases entered into by the Group, the lease payments are RIEAEBEI Y 2B MAONREREE
fixed and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent R ET S S AT B TR Bk -

rental payments.

The Group as lessor AEBEHEHAA
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Property rental income earned RERRELZ RSB
during the year 52,958 51,664
Less: Outgoings I (1,834) (1,615)
Net rental income He WA FE 51,124 50,049
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with RS BAR - NSRBI B AE B 5T 32 LA T AR R &
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: B
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FAET
Within one year —FA 40,617 47,328
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EZERFAN(BEEREMSE) 3,616 36,641
44,233 83,969
Under the leases entered into by the Group, the lease payments are BEAEBEI 2B AHONFABRER
fixed and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent WL SRAHeN Rk -FEMEZH
rental payments. The properties held have committed tenants for HEH—Z=NEFE (2017F : —EMF) o

terms of one to four years (2017: one to four years).
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33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Continued) 33. REANRHE(E)

REBERHAN (&)

The Group as lessor (Continued)

RB|BERR ARBETEE ZIRATAE
ZREHERS 2 HRIAT :

At the end of the reporting period, operating lease rentals
committed by close relatives of certain directors of the Company fall

34.

166

due as follows:

Within one year

—¥R

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHT FHET
160 160

At the end of the reporting period, operating lease rentals

RBEMR SUEREBARE 2LEH

committed by EE Group fall due as follows: EHeZHRMT
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —FRA 2,496 1,040
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EEREFN(REEEMSE) 3,536 -
6,032 1,040
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 34. BAREIE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Capital expenditure contracted for but not = 5] 4)1E i R AR A B & sk
provided in the consolidated financial BiE2ERAR:
statements in respect of:
— investment properties — B 844 =
— property, plant and equipment — W WE M - 621
844 621
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35. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

36.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employees are required to contribute
5% of their monthly salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,500 and
they can choose to make additional contributions. The employer’s
monthly contributions are calculated at 5% of the employee’s
monthly salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,500 (the “mandatory
contributions”). The employees are entitled to 100% of the
employer’s mandatory contributions upon their retirement at the age
of 65, death or total incapacity.

The aggregate employers’ contributions which have been dealt with
in profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2018 amounted to
HK$632,000 (2017: HK$508,000).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 5 July 2012, a share option scheme (the “2012 El Scheme”) was
approved by the shareholders of the Company. Under the 2012
El Scheme, the directors of the Company may at their absolute
discretion grant options to all directors (including any executive and
non-executive directors), full-time employees and consultants of the
Group to subscribe for shares in the Company. The 2012 El Scheme
is valid for ten years commencing 5 July 2012, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended.

The purposes of the 2012 El Scheme are to encourage eligible
participants to work towards enhancing the value of the Company
and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2012 El Scheme
must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the date of adoption
of 2012 El Scheme. The overall limit on the number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options granted and yet to
be exercised under the 2012 El Scheme and other share options
schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZ B EBE AR A T

35.

36.

BRRERFE

AEBRIBER RGBS BNED - &
BIUEHFORBIME AR RIENIFTE) (58
BEErE) -

NeefEEestal T EEBRESAFEHR
5%3k 5 % 51,5005 7t & B I A IR 2 E
BIMER -BEFAEFAKEEZEAY
SR EH-RE% N & Z £1,50078 7T 0 ([ 58
MR o B B HR655EIRE LT8R
BRITRENR AIZHERFERHEERZ
100% ©

HE2018F3A3IHIFFEREa R 2
1B & i X 42 %8 5632,000/%8 7T (20174 :
508,000/ 7T ) °

B

2012497 A58 A X R IG R L& — BB IE
T8 ([2012F k& BFRERERTE] ) < IRIE
20125 X E BRI AR ERT &) AR FIEE A
BEBBRMAEES (BIEERBITRIER
TES) AEEZ2HES RERRHER
W ARBARRT 2D - 20124 5k 25 BB
BB T EIRR FE AR b A A s sk Bk &
BIf2012F7 A5H BBET10F N —BE £/ -

2012F X ZEBRBRAEA N EHEZBTERE
R EEB NIRRT ARRD R RERND 2 EBEINA
HAEARRRERR 2 BEHE -

AIR20125F Kk R B BRI A R R
2T ATER BT &S BRNEE -
TS RN 20124 7k 3% BIPR BB ARt ot 81 5%
B 82 B E1TIR1510% ° AT 720124 sk % B
BREB A AT 8 e N R R B AL FE B ARt BIFT B
ER B REARTTE Z B T IATTERE 31T
ZEMBB BB LR TMERBRANSD %
17 1730% °
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

168

Each grant of options to any director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or any of their respective associates
shall be subject to the approval of the independent non-executive
directors of the Company. Where any grant of options to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director
of the Company, or any of their respective associates, would
result in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted to such person in the
12-month period representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares
of the Company issue and having an aggregate value, based on
the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of each grant, in
excess of HK$5,000,000, such further grant of options shall be
subject to shareholders’ approval with the connected persons of the
Company abstaining from voting.

Subject to the aforesaid, the total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be granted
to each grantee (including both exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue. Any further grant of options in excess of the limit
shall be subject to shareholders’ approval with such grantee and his
associates abstaining from voting.

The exercise period of the share options under the 2012 El Scheme
is determined by the board of directors of the Company and shall
end on a date which is not later than ten years from the date of
grant of the options. At the time of grant of the share options, the
Company must (a) specify the minimum period(s), if any, for which
a share option must be held before it can be exercised in whole or
in part, and (b) specify the minimum performance target(s), if any,
which must be achieved before the share options can be exercised
in whole or in past. The amount payable on acceptance of an offer
for grant of share options is HK$1.

The subscription price in respect of any particular option of the
2012 El Scheme shall be no less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of
offer; (i) the average closing price of the Company’s shares on the
Stock Exchange as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of offer; and (jii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares on the
date of offer.

No share options were granted under the 2012 ElI Scheme or
exercised during both years.
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37. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING 37. REREZBH2ABZ2HAHR
ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in

TERAJAEERERE LT 2 BEEE:
BRAE MRS ES - KEMEAH 2B
BENERRSRES ARKREREHE
DERR/AREZGEERERERZIKABE

the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows from financing EEZHERE -
activities.
Dividend Interest Secured bank
payable payable borrowings
ENRE R RS BIRFER
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
At 1 April 2017 2017 4 A1 H - 673 899,482
Bank borrowings raised FEBITER - - 517,560
Repayment of bank borrowings EEBITEE - - (265,717)
Interest paid BEAFE - (26,174) =
Dividend paid ERARE (3,971) - -
(3,971) (25,501) 1,151,325
Non-cash changes: IR FE:
Interest expense on bank RITEEZFERAX
borrowings - 26,653 -
Arrangement fee ZHE & F = @17) 417
Dividend declared EEMKRE 3,971 = =
At 31 March 2018 72018 43 A31 H - 735 1,151,742
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

(c)

170

During the year, the Group had the following transactions with
EE Group:

Rental income He A

38.

HEALRS BEXS

(a) FAFER AHE R L O S W AT
T5:

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
2,496 2,496

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a director and substantial shareholder of the
Company, is also a director of Eminence.

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, a director and substantial
shareholder of the Company, was also a director of Eminence
until she resigned as an executive director of Eminence with
effect from 18 April 2017.

At 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group holds convertible
notes issued by Eminence, details of which are set out in note
17(a), (c) and (d).

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

Short-term employee benefits EHEERT

Salaries and other benefits e MEMBET]

Performance related bonuses HEXBBE@E RS

Contribution to retirement benefit RIREF B
schemes

EERE L ARARETREERR
MRRUEXES-

BAMZL ARABEERETERRE "
hAeASLUCESEEEME M A
2017 F4A18HE X Am U EHNITE
%o

(b) 720184 KX201743A31H » AREEH
EHEILTEREITZ TBRRERE  F15
YR EE17@)  (©) R (d) °

() TEZEEAEZHM

EELHMTEERRERNENZHS
T -

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET TET
15,565 10,957

- 13,000

340 251
15,905 24,208
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B 22018F3H31H 1L FIE

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Compensation of key management personnel (Continueq)

The Group has been providing accommodation to Ms. Lui Yuk
Chu, a director and substantial shareholder of the Company,
for use by her and her family members. Details of this
arrangement are set out in note 9(a)(iii).

The remuneration of directors and key executives are
determined by the remuneration committee and the executive
directors, respectively, having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

In January 2011, the Company entered into an employment
agreement with Mr. Koon Wing Yee to act as general
manager of the Company. The employment agreement,
which constitutes a connected transaction, commenced on
21 February 2011 but may be terminated by either party at
any time by three months’ notice. The monthly salary has
been adjusted to HK$150,000 with effect from 1 April 2013
and further to HK$180,000 with effect from 1 April 2017. The
remuneration of Mr. Koon Wing Yee as general manager of
the Company during the year ended 31 March 2018 was
HK$2,340,000 (2017: HK$1,950,000) and was included in the
“compensation of key management personnel” in (c) above.

Mr. Koon Wing Yee is the spouse of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu who is
a director of the Company and is also one of the beneficiaries
under a family trust holding 36.74% (2017: 36.74%) equity
interest of the Company at 31 March 2018. Ms. Lui Yuk Chu
also holds 21.95% (2017: 21.95%) equity interest of the
Company through an entity wholly-owned by her.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group received
rental income totalling HK$240,000 (2017: HK$240,000) from
certain close relatives of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Ms. Koon Ho
Yan Candy, directors and substantial shareholders of the
Company.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZ B EBE AR A T

38.

REALXS BEXS (#)

(c)

(d)

(e)

TEEBABZHM (Z)

AEBERBEMGE ERZLT AAFA
BERTERE EABERFEZREN
B A - A BB B SR M E9@)(ii) °

EERT2TRAE ZBE D 51 b H B
ZEEMITESRRENALZRR
K585 MmEE o

R2011F1 A A RAEEKELE
AV ERmE ERAEAARAZE
KIE-ZERAE ERBEERS H
201142821 H %G - B 0] A E A EM[
—HRMEREESE F=EABAMmMK
1F ° B %A E=150,000/% 7T 5201354
A1 RAERRE— 2 7 Z2180,0007%
JTE20175E4 518 4 7% - & £201843
A31BIEFREKELEEREALTLR
138 7 B A2,340,00078 7T (20174 :
1,950,000 7C) * R E BFETEMN E(c)B
ZIEBEBABZEHWM A

BXREBELEEBETHRZ LT ZEHE T
RZLBARNRARESRINAR2018F
3A31H A AR F36.74% (20174 :
36.74% ) Em 2 HP —BRIEEFLX
mABLIHLLER MEEEHE
B2 EBEEBARNF21.95% (20174 :
21.95% ) [ ANz o

H ZE2018F3A31H It FE  AEH
WRARREENFTERRELIHRLK
+TREARZTETARzASBA
240,000/ 7T (20174F : 240,000/ 7T ) °
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/CONNECTED

39.

172

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

() During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group paid
HK$691,000 (2017: HK$1,400,000) to Easyknit Charitable
Foundation Limited, a company controlled by Ms. Lui Yuk
Chu and Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, directors and substantial
shareholders of the Company, which is recognised in profit or
loss as “donations”.

(9) During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group paid
HK$747,000 (2017: HK$864,000) to Wing Yee Football Team
Company Limited, a company controlled by Mr. Koon Wing
Yee, which is recognised in profit or loss as “advertising”.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which
includes secured bank borrowings disclosed in note 28, net of
cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, accumulated profits and
reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with the capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues and raising or repayment of bank borrowings.

Constance Capital (see note 19) is regulated by the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission and is required to comply with
the financial resources requirements according to the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (the “SF(FR)
R”). Management closely monitors, on a daily basis, Constance
Capital’s liquid capital level to ensure compliance with the minimum
liquid capital requirement under the SF(FR)R. Constance Capital
has no non-compliance of the capital requirement imposed by the
SF(FR)R during the year.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a. Categories of financial instruments

40. £@MTHE

a. @WMIAEZEHR

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets THEE
Loans and receivables (including B R ERIE
cash and cash equivalents) (RREASEERES)
— Trade and other receivables — B Z R EMEWFKIE 186,883 89,970
- Deposit and prepayments for a —ABREZEZES
life insurance policy SSEENEN 10,561 10,373
— Loans receivable —EER 259,261 308,854
— Convertible notes — AR E R 61,317 67,418
- Bank balances and cash —RITEBRRIRS 150,370 25,473
668,392 502,088
Fair value through profit or loss ROV EF AER
— Investments held for trading —REEEKRE 100,094 287,493
- Financial assets designated as —RATFETFABRZ
at FVTPL TREE 29,885 95,309
129,979 382,802
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESREE
— Available-for-sale investments —A[fEHERE 109,665 45,354
Derivative financial instruments PTESBMTA 10,750 6,167
Financial liabilities SRAE
Amortised cost B SHR AR
— Trade and other payables —B 5 REMERNFIA 42,971 38,836
— Secured bank borrowings —EEPRITIER 1,151,742 899,482
1,194,713 938,318
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

174

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale investments, investments held for trading, derivative
financial instruments, trade and other receivables, deposit
and prepayments for a life insurance policy, loans receivable,
convertible notes, financial assets at FVTPL, bank balances
and cash, trade and other payables and secured bank
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure that appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
() Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to certain bank balances, bank borrowings and
variable-rate loans receivable. The Group is also exposed
to fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate
loans receivable and deposit and prepayments for a life
insurance policy. The Group has not used any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to such interest rate
risk, however, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider other necessary action when
significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk on financial
liabilities is detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR
arising from bank borrowings.

40. £WTE (&)

b.
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B 22018F3H31H 1L FIE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

()

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for certain
bank borrowings and variable-rate loans receivable.
The analysis was prepared assuming these balances
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. 50 basis points (2017:
50 basis points) increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates. If interest rate had been 50
basis points (2017: 50 basis points) higher or lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit
for the year ended 31 March 2018 would decrease or
increase by HK$4,678,000 (2017: loss for the year would
increase or decrease by HK$3,520,000).

The bank balances are excluded from the sensitivity
analysis as the management of the Group considers that
the interest rate fluctuation is not significant.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.
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FEmE (&)
BURREDM

AT ZHEED T TIERE TR
TEENMFEBERERZFIEE
BEtE o IREA ST HRR SR
REPRZEBREEFERE-
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MR PR REEE T
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 41.

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i)  Currency risk

All of the Group’s sales and purchases are denominated
in the group entities’ functional currency.

The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign

$®MIA (&)

MEEBEEERREE (£)

TS EEE (&)

E¥ @

FIBEAREEZHE RRBHINE
EERZINEEERIIE-

R|EIR - UINEFIE 2 REE

kol /

currency denominated monetary assets at the end of the BeEKEEZREBENAT:
reporting period are as follows:
Assets
BE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FEIT
usD ET 26,221 25,893
Sensitivity analysis BRRE DT

The Group is mainly exposed to the exchange rate
risk on HKD against USD for the foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities. Under the
pegged exchange rate system, the financial impact on
exchange difference between HKD and USD will be
immaterial, and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been
prepared.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy to eliminate the currency exposures.
However, the management monitors the related foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposures should the need
arise.
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B 22018F3H31H 1L FIE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities and equity-linked
investments. The management manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risk profiles and the Group has a team to monitor the
price risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise. The Group’s equity price risk
is concentrated on equity securities listed in Hong
Kong and these investments are diversified into several
different industries.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the end of
the reporting date.

If the prices of the listed equity securities classified as
investments held for trading had been 10% (2017: 10%)
higher/lower, post-tax profit for the year ended 31 March
2018 would increase/decrease by HK$8,358,000 (2017:
decrease/increase in post-tax loss by HK$24,006,000) as
a result of the changes in fair value of investments held
for trading.

If the prices of the underlying equity securities of the
financial assets designated as at FVTPL had been 10%
(2017: 10%) higher/lower, post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 March 2018 would increase/decrease by
HK$2,495,000 (2017: decrease/increase in post-tax loss
by HK$7,958,000) as a result of the changes in fair value
of financial assets designated as at FVTPL.
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EDAERENRITE-

BURREDM

AT B REE DT RAR BN R & B
RS2 BHERRREE -

WHERHEE EIRE 2 ETIRA
BEE®E LT TFE10% (2017
F:10% ) ' & £2018F3A31H
LEFEHERMNEARBEESE
RERNFEZEE M B
8,358,000/ 7T (20174F : Fi 18 &
BiR 4,18 /n24,006,0007 7T ) °

MEEIR R FEFABE S
BMEEZHBRAZSFER L
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueq) 40. €@ITAE(£E)
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. HMERKEEBEEZREE (££)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) mEEE (E)
(i) Equity price risk (Continued) (i) FEFEEER (E)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BREDT (&)

If the prices of the listed equity securities classified as WA ERT L ERE 2 EmR

available-for-sale investments had been 10% (2017: ARFBEHBE LEF10% (201745 :

10%) higher: 10% ) :

e  investment revaluation reserve would increase by e KRESHHFEFEBEUHEE
HK$10,967,000 (2017: HK$4,535,000) as a result ’E 2~ E G 0w o0
of the increase in fair value of available-for-sale 10,967,000/% JT (20174 :
investments; and 4,535,000/ 7T ) : M

If the prices of the listed equity securities classified as WFER gt E R & 2 R

available-for-sale investments had been 10% (2017: KRFEHERE T E10% (20174 ¢

10%) lower: 10% ) :

e  post-tax profit would decrease by HK$159,000 e WMBREAMMAAHEHE
(2017: post-tax loss would increase by ®EZRAFERD MG
HK$1,066,000) and investment revaluation reserve $1159,0007% JT (20174 :
would decrease by HK$10,807,000 (2017: decrease i 1% &5 18 12 1n1,066,00075
by HK$3,469,000) as a result of the decrease in fair ) RIEEEGFEEAS R
value of available-for-sale investments. 10,807,000/% JT (20174 :

713,469,000/ 7T )
Credit risk =EmEE
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of fisi 3 75 AR BE B 1T 1R201843A31H B 3
the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations at 31 EHEBReMEEZRE  AIAEE
March 2018 in relation to each class of recognised financial FrE& 7 xmia BRI AR E MR
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the XY 2% EAE 2 REE -

consolidated statement of financial position.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group had concentration of credit risk in relation to
loans receivable amounting to HK$259,261,000 at 31 March
2018 (2017: HK$308,854,000) with 60% (2017: 64%) of the
balances secured by marketable securities or properties.
The largest borrower of the Group by itself and together with
the other four largest borrowers of the Group accounted for
approximately 15% and 54% respectively (2017: 32% and
70% respectively) of the Group’s loans receivable at 31 March
2018. As at 31 March 2018, all loans receivable are neither
past due nor impaired and the borrowers are assessed to
have satisfactory credit quality with reference to financial
background, current creditworthiness, collateral and past
payment of each borrower. In order to minimise the credit risk,
the management has reviewed the recoverable amounts of the
loans receivable regularly to ensure that adequate impairment
is made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk on loans
receivable is significantly reduced.

The Group had concentration of credit risk in relation to
receivable component of convertible notes amounting to
HK$61,317,000 at March 2018 (2017: HK$67,418,000). The
directors of the Company assessed the credit quality of the
issuers with reference to financial background of each of
the issuers and considered that the Group’s credit risk on
receivable component of convertible notes is not significant.

At 31 March 2018, approximately 82% (2017: 66%) of the
Group’s trade receivables were past due but not impaired at
the end of the reporting period. The management considers
that the credit risk of these trade receivables is minimal as all
are with long business relationship.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

180

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of the
Company continuously monitor the level of exposure to
ensure that follow-up actions and/or corrective actions
are taken promptly to lower exposure or even to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the management has reviewed the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment is
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk on trade
receivables is significantly reduced.

In addition, the Group has credit risk on its liquid funds at the
end of the reporting period. In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
majority of the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies and
banks with good reputation.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations. The management also monitors the utilisation of
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

At 31 March 2018, the Group has available unutilised bank
loan facilities of HK$339,587,000 (2017: HK$577,552,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. For non-derivative financial
liabilities, the table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

40. £WTE (&)

MEEBEEERREE (£)

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HEELERE (&)
Liquidity risk tables TEE 2R
Weighted
average  On demand Total Carrying
effective  orlessthan 3 months to undiscounted  amounts at
interest rate 3 months 1year 1to5years Over5years cash flows 31 March
mELH LI KFERE  W3ASIA
BRAE  HRSER SEAZIE 1258 BB5E RESHE ZEEE
% HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FAT FET FET FAT FET FET
2018 20185
Non-derivative financial FTESRER
liabilities
Trade and other payables BHREwENTE N/A 36,146 6,825 - - 4297 42,971
@A
Secured bank borrowings BEARIEE 255 15,235 611,465 200,731 439,909 1,267,340 1,151,742
51,381 618,290 200,731 439,909 1,310,311 1,194,713
2017 2017%
Non-derivative financial FiiteRas
liabilities
Trade and other payables B REENTE N/A 25,840 12,996 - = 38,836 38,836
T
Secured bank borrowings RERRTEE 2.00 244,948 30,637 349,572 345,851 971,008 899,482
270,788 43,633 349,572 345,851 1,009,844 938,318
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

182

40. £WTE (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies b. HMERKEEBEEZREE (££)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) mEBELEE (&)
Liquidity risk tables (Continued) B EZ R (&)
Secured bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause BRFEEGRIZEERBRTIEER
were included in the “on demand or less than 3 months” time RN EEES T2 [ REAMT SR
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 March 2017, the 3 A ] 2 RN - 720173 A318 -
aggregate carrying amounts of these secured bank borrowings ZEEBEARARTEEZEHREARER
amounted to HK$28,843,000. Taking into account the Group’s 28,843,000/8 T © 41§ & B AN [E 2 BF 75
financial position, the directors of the Company did not believe R AR EETRBERANES
that it was probable that the lenders would exercise their TR HEBBEREERANRER - ARRE
discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The EREZEFRITEEBBREHTINER
directors of the Company believed that such bank borrowings WELERBHER BAFEHIIRN
would be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment T&:
dates set out in the loan agreements, details of which were set
out in the table below:
Weighted
average  On demand Total
effective  orlessthan 3 months to undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1year 1to5years cash flows amounts
nETEYH  REOAR AFBRES
BERF= DH3ER  EREIF 1255 TEEH REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
Secured bank borrowings BHEARITEE
At 31 March 2017 #201743A31H 2.19 2,180 26,985 29,897 28,843

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIFEEBE G R A 5
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A BB RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2018

B ZE2018F3H31HILFE
40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 40. £WTE (&)
c. Fair value c. AY¥E
(i)  Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are () RELEMHBEERZLFETEZ
measured at fair value on a recurring basis rEFEHBEEZ LN FE

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at REEHH»SBEERRERAR

fair value at the end of the reporting period. The following BAFEE . TREMERKE

table gives information about how the fair values of ANAEEZEeMEEATE
these financial assets are determined (in particular, the (LEZ FRAZEERTMEREE

valuation techniques and key inputs used). A °

Fair value Valuation techniques and

Financial assets Fair value at 31 March  hierarchy key inputs

AYE
tHEE AFENIAA 354 RELHREZHA
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET

Available-for-sale investments 109,665 45354  Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market

ARHERE R ERTIGM#R L

Investments held for trading 100,094 287,493  Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market

FIEEERA E1 RERMSHMR 2 HE

Derivative component of 10,750 6,167  Level3 Black-Scholes model with Trinomial Tree method

convertible notes (note 17)

MRARER2ITERD R ke BN ER k= XA (f13t17)

Financial assets designated 29,885 95,309  Level 2 Quoted market prices provided by bank (hote)

as at FVTPL

BATEFAER SREE PR RITIRE ZFTRMIE (H17t)

Note: Quoted market prices provided by bank represent BraE: SRITIRECFHRMENER
the fair value based on the quoted prices on the KEHEZAFE
underlying investments.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 in FEAR - FR KRB 2 EIWIRB R

both years. MEFEES o

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZ B EBE AR A T
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

184

Fair value (Continued)

(i)  Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

The fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities is determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities other
than convertible notes recorded at amortised costs in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to their
fair values.

Convertible notes of HK$61,317,000 (2017:
HK$67,418,000) (note 17) with fair value of
HK$60,943,000 (2017: HK$70,802,000) are recognised
at amortised cost less impairment losses as at 31 March
2018.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIFEEBE G R A 5
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40. £WTE (&)

C.

DNE(E)

(i)

RERBEEZMEELZ L FPER
BeHEEREMEMBZAF
=

HitteREERERABE I ATE
BEREZ ZEEEN  HIRER
EREREDITMEE

ARFEERE R ATHEIRINA
BHRATHENGRUBHRER S
REENEGRABZEAEEER
FAEARAT

Al # i% Z $561,317,0007% 7T (2017
% :67,418,00056T) (A1:17) 2
A ¥ 160,943,000/ 7T (20174 :

70,802,000/ 7T ) 72201843 H31H
LA S8 AR A0 BR 5L (B S 1 FERR
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
B 22018F3H31H 1L FIE

41.

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THROUGH 41. ZEBWEKHEBATNKWBEERAS

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 23 June 2017, the Group completed the acquisition of 100%
equity interest in a subsidiary, Global Chance Holdings Limited,

R2017F6 5230 ' AEER—BBILE=F
LAZR K (8129,788,00078 7T 72 Ak U i — Rl Ff

and shareholder loan from an independent third party for a cash BAR] - IR B IR A A2 100% 2 5

consideration of HK$129,788,000. The principal assets of the
subsidiary are properties held for development for sale. The assets
acquired and liabilities assumed were as follows:

RBERER -ZMBARZ I BEERRHE
HEBRRME -WBEERBBRENT:

23 June
2017
20175
6H23H
HK$'000
FET
Properties held for development for sale FEHEERYE 27,484
Deposits and prepayments for acquisition of WERELEERMELZ
properties held for development for sale e RFERRK 102,304
Amount due to the vendor Y=Yl (102,304)
Net assets assumed BEAEFE 27,484
Net cash outflow on acquisition: I 2 IR & i F R
Consideration paid BERRE (129,788)
Settlement of amount due to the vendor BRNERER 102,304
(07,484)
Note: The cash flows impact regarding the acquisition of assets and Mt EEFEBUWENBATWEAEEREE

liabilities through acquisition of a subsidiary were presented
as operating cash flows in the consolidated statement of cash

flows.

ZHeRBYBENGRRESRERE

JI R ERERE

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZ B EBE AR A T
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2t 2201843431 HiF F/&
42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

186

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March

2018 and 2017 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Ace Winner Investment Limited
BREEBRAA

Arrowfield Investments Limited
Asia Million Investment Limited
BEREBRDA

Charming Flash Limited

Coconut King Limited

Day Glory Investment Limited

REREERAA

Easyknit Properties Management Limited
KENMEERBRAF

Everjet Investment Limited
KRREERAA

Flourishing Day Limited
LRERARRA

Global Chance Holdings Limited
REEHIERERAR

Annual Report 2018 4 3}

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation
EWRL/
BYRSEHE

Hong Kong
Bk

BVI/Hong Kong
RBRAAHS/BE

Hong Kong
Bk

BVI/Hong Kong
RBRAAHS/BE

BVI/Hong Kong
REERES/BE

Hong Kong
EE

Hong Kong
Bk

Hong Kong
EE

BVI/Hong Kong
REERES/BE

BVI/Hong Kong
RBRAAHS/BE

Nominal value

of issued share/
registered capital
BB/
AMBAEE

Ordinary HK$1
LTRR AT

Ordinary US$1
LTRRIET
Ordinary HK$1
LRRIAET
Ordinary US$1
LTRRIET

Ordinary US$1
LERIET

Ordinary HK$1
LaERIAET
Ordinary HK$10,000
Li@MR10,000%5 7T

Ordinary HK$1
ERRIET

Ordinary US$1
LERIET

Ordinary US$1
LRRIET

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIFEEBE G R A 5

720184 201743 A31H * AN AR = EH

42, FEMBLARZFE

BRRZFBOT

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share capital/
registered capital held

indirectly by the Company
FARBEBACRITRE/
SR AEE L

2018 2017
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% =

Principal activities

FEREH

Investment in securities

Investment in securities
BHRA

Property investment

NERE

Loan financing
BRE

Investment in securities

Property investment

ESIE

Property management
MEER

Property development

NEER

Loan financing
BRE

Property development

NEER
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42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of

incorporation/ Nominal value

establishment of issued share/
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital

EERL BR#fT/
WEAR AR RIRBE Y SMRAEE
Gold Asset Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1
SEREBRAA Bk ERBEET
Gold Winner Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1
FRRABRAR BB EERIET
Good Merit Management Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1
ERERERAA Bk EREBEET
Goodco Development Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1
EXERARAR RERREE/BE  ERRIER
Grandcorp Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1
BREREBRAA Bk EREBEET
Great East Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1
KERBBRAR BB EERIET
Great Sail Global Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1
BRRRARAF EBRAHR/BE  EBERER
Happy Light Investments Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1
REREBRAR RERREE/BE  ERRIER
Main Profit Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1
REREBRAR Bk ERBEET
Mark Profit Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2
ERERARAF B LB T
On Channel International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1
ZERRER AR Bk EERBT
Pacific Land Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1
BRERARRAR B ERRIET

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZ B EBE AR A T
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Proportion of nominal
value of issued share capital/
registered capital held

indirectly by the Company
FARBEBRERIRE
AR A E A

2018 2017
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% =
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% =

42, FEMBEATZFHE (&)

Principal activities

TEEH

Property development
NEER

Investment in securities
EHRE

Property holding
MEER

Investment holding

REZK

Property investment

NERE

Property development
NERER

Loan financing
BETRE

Property development
NERER

Loan financing

ERRE

Property investment and
investment in securities

NEREREFRE

Property investment

NERE

Property development
NEER

187
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42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

188

Name of subsidiary

MELREM

Pacific Way Investment Limited

BERAERAA

Planetic International Limited

Richstar Development Limited

REZRERAA

Trump Elegant Investment Limited

HEREERAA

Well Honest Investment Limited

EHREBRRA

Wellmake Investments Limited

Widetop Investment Limited
REREBBR AR

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation
EMRL/
BYRSEHY

Hong Kong
B8

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
B8

Hong Kong
Bk

Hong Kong
B8

Hong Kong

B

Hong Kong
B

Nominal value
of issued share/
registered capital

287/
EMBAEE

Ordinary HK$1
EERBT

Ordinary HK$2
LaRoE T

Ordinary HK$1
EERBT

Ordinary HK$1
LRRIET

Ordinary HK$1
EERBT

Ordinary HK$9,998
(Non-voting deferred
HK$2")

LiRR9,998% T
(BERZERLR
28T)

Ordinary HK$1
ERRIET

* The non-voting deferred shares of Wellmake Investments Limited
carry no rights to receive notice of, attend or vote at any general
meeting and have very limited rights to participate in a distribution
of profits and, on liquidation, to the repayment of the amount paid

up on the shares.

42, FEMBEATZFHE (&)

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share capital/
registered capital held

indirectly by the Company
FARBEBRERIRE
AR A A

2018 2017
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Principal activities

TEEH

Property development
NEER

Loan financing

6

Property development
NEER

Property development
NRER

Property investment

ESIE

Property investment

ESIE

Property development

NEER

Y BEREARARZEBREEEEREE
WEREMBRR A G 2 BE HEXRAE
ERE - BEAFERRENED KGR
Ko B RE EREEHRN 228 -
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2 2201843431 HiF F &
42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

43.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company, which, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected
the results of the year or constituted a substantial portion of the
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company result in particulars of
excessive length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. Majority of these
subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The principal activities of these
subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

Principal activities

FEXEH FTEEEME
Investment in securities Hong Kong
BHERE BB
Investment holding Hong Kong
BEFE i

Inactive Hong Kong
JEE £

42,

Principal place of business

TEWBARZFHE (&)

A EPIRFAFIRZ AR BB AR REAR
RAERZER TEREFRAZEELRE
RAEBEECEZH D -MARRESTZ
BEARR RHUHEMMBARZFEERE
FHBR UK -

RIREEF  AATHE LY EEBTHS
TREEZHBAR - LENBA DAL
NEBLE B EHBARZ TELEHME
T

Number of subsidiaries

MEARHA

2018 2017
1 1
14 9
2 1
17 1

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at 31 March
2018 or 31 March 2017.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group acquired equity-
linked notes for HK$620,000,000 (2017: HK$861,000,000). These
equity-linked notes were linked to securities listed on the Stock
Exchange and being classified as financial assets designated as at
FVTPL. Subsequent to the acquisition, certain equity-linked notes of
HK$48,199,000 (2017: HK$88,024,000) and HK$48,803,000 (2017:
nil) were converted into investments held for trading and available-
for-sale investments, respectively, as the share price at date of
maturity of the underlying securities reached the strike price.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZ B EBE AR A T

43.

8 A KB AR A2018F3 A31H 5201743 A
1A BT EEES -

TEHFRERS

REE2018F3A31B ILFEAN AEEE
AR 2= #4452 45620,000,0007% 7T (20174 :
861,000,000/ 7T) - ZER E R Ty 8
B P E T 2 BH RS R D B EIEAT
EffABEZeRMEE -BAK &TRER
#932 1%:48,199,0007% 7T (20174F : 88,024,000
78 7T ) %.48,803,000/%8 T (20174 : &) B &
RlERAREEBERERAIHEIERE
HEEARERIHED EBNEK-
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44. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

The following significant events took place subsequent to 31 March
2018:

(@)

190

On 16 March 2018, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company (as one of the vendors) entered into an
agreement for disposal of the entire issued share capital and
the shareholders’ loan of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company for an attributable consideration of HK$690,000,000
out of the total consideration of HK$920,000,000 (the “S&P
Agreement”). The wholly-owned subsidiary to be disposed of
holds 75% interest of the Project (see note 31).

While a special general meeting will be convened on 13
June 2018 to approve the S&P Agreement, written approval
of the disposal have been obtained from two substantial
shareholders of the Company which hold an aggregate of over
50% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Deposits were paid by the purchaser to the solicitors of the
vendors and the Company as stakeholders in accordance with
the S&P Agreement with the first deposit of HK$92,000,000
out of the total consideration paid upon signing the S&P
Agreement and the second deposit of HK$138,000,000 out
of the total consideration paid on 15 May 2018. At the date of
issuance of the consolidated financial statements, the disposal
transaction was not completed.

Details of the above are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 16 March 2018 and circular dated 24
May 2018.

On 4 May 2018, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent, pursuant to which the
Company has agreed to allot and issue and the placing
agent has agreed to place 11,900,000 new placing shares to
independent placees at a placing price of HK$4.60 per placing
share under the mandate granted by the shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting of the Company on 7
August 2017.

The maximum gross proceeds and net proceeds from the
placing will be approximately HK$54.74 million and HK$54.19
million respectively which will be used towards financing
potential transactions for acquiring interests in properties if
they proceed or for general working capital of the Group.

The share placing was completed on 17 May 2018.

44.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited XZEBREEER A 7
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M2018F3A16H AN A A —fEEE 2
EHEMBRAR (BBEAZ—)EH
% A 421 {8920,000,00058 7T 215 K
{8690,000,0007 ;T H&E A Q7] —fE 2
BEMmEKB AR Z 2B BT M
RER([BEEWHZ]) Z2ENBA
RIFEZBEET5%EZ (R MHEE31) ©

1 RIBL R A2 157220186 5138 B 7
LtEB B i EERBAR
AL AN A A B B TR AN R B50%
ZEERRERB A

BAXNEETE ZEMMARR
ERREADRBEERHABRET
% —%12$92,000,0008 TR # 7] B
EnEREXMRERKETRE_£KE
138,000,000/ 7L 74201845 515 H 3¢
FoREERGEHMBHRER B &
ERZHARTEK °

HilFHEE SN AR E B HR20185F
3H16H 2 A} H B /2201845 H24
B 2K

R2018F5 848 AR m| L ERIER
BLR SR I WNGI G R 5 E
THEEERERBENSHREERHES
B 1%4.607 7T Bt #11,900,000% it & P&
0 FEIARA - Th#2017F8A7H B
FREHARRBRES T2 RERTT-

KRB RERSAEHEKEHRIBFE
5 5l 4%54,740,0007% 7T £254,190,00078
TR RN EREETTYIBY R R 2B
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44. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

©)

On 16 May 2018, the Group entered into an agreement with
an independent third party (the “Target Seller”) to acquire
the entire issued share capital and the shareholder’s loan
of a target company (the “Target”) for an aggregate cash
consideration of approximately HK$154.7 million, subject to
adjustment (the “Target Agreement”). The sole assets of the
Target are property purchase agreements entered into by the
Target with respective property vendors regarding 35 units
of five buildings in Hong Kong (the “Properties Purchase
Agreements”). The Target has no material liabilities apart from
those under the Properties Purchase Agreements and no profit
or loss. Upon completion of the Target Agreement, the Target
will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
the Group (as enlarged) shall pay the unpaid balance of the
purchase price under the Properties Purchase Agreements in
the aggregate amount of approximately HK$303.8 million. This
sum together with the consideration for the Target Agreement
that will be borne by the Group amounts to approximately
HK$458.5 million, subject to adjustment. The Group (as
enlarged) intends, after completion of the Target Agreement
and the Properties Purchase Agreements, to acquire the
remaining units of the site on which the five buildings stand for
redevelopment.

At the date of issuance of the consolidated financial
statements, the Group paid deposits amounting to
approximately HK$123.7 million to the Target Seller.

Further details of the above are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 16 May 2018. The Company is
preparing a circular as required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange which will be
despatched to the shareholders when available.

On 24 May 2018, the Group entered into agreements with
an independent third party not connected with the Group
(the “Project Investor”) whereby the Group will set up an
indirect subsidiary (owned as to 80% by the Group and
20% by the Project Investor) which will act as a developer
of a property site currently held by the Group as “properties
held for development for sale”. The Project Investor’s initial
contribution is HK$98,500,000.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZ B EBE AR A T

44. REHRBEE (&2)

©

M2018F5H16H @ AREBERE Y 5 =
H(TEEER DRI HEUEERS
R (B #7154,700,000/%8 7T U i — 5 B 1Z
A ([BZ]) 22 2EBITIRA K%
REF AITHAZE(BEHBHE]) -8B
Erg—EEABSHSHEBMESR
HEIZBEBURESAEEFTFAZ
SEBMNZEBEHZ ([MERE
al) -BRYEB BRI BIER
BEABERSERE NEKBERE
B BEBKARARz —E2EH B
NERAEE (KER) B NBED
XEEWENEAINZEBABHRBEL
#9303,800,000/8 7T ° sz & %82 A B iZ 17
FERE - A E 5 EIE4)458,500,000/8
JC Al FHAEE - AEE (KLIEA)E
B EHEEYERE R ETKE K
BAREFUE 2% TNEMIIEENE
@o

REBEITRNGREVBHRE B NEBEE
Y 1% 6 & %8 #49123,700,00078 7T 7 B

==

LS HBEENARATASA
2018F5816H 2 A A ° R 2R3 IE
HRE A2 P2 75 5 T AR B AR 138 e T
FETRREHLIE-

1R2018F5824H F A B E AL E R
EEzBIFE=H ([BERREE])
Faltred ANEE B —E RN
BRARl (R&EEFHOWKIERRE
EEA20%) (EAEENHAASEEFSE
EBHEHEREME] 2WENE
ZERE -MEREE ZIRERE
98,500,000 JT. °
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
B 220183 H31H I FE
45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 45, ERQ T ZBBERREK
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Non-current assets EmBEE
Interests in subsidiaries BB R RS 2,066,668 1,902,164
Deposit and prepayments for a life ASRE 2RSS RFBRAK
insurance policy 10,275 10,091
2,076,943 1,912,255
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables H b fE AR 425 436
Tax recoverable AU e R SR 161 =
Bank balances and cash RITEHR KRS 55,194 4,092
55,780 4,528
Current liabilities mEEE
Other payables H M ER R 1,349 790
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN ENGIE/SE] 730,389 581,990
Secured bank borrowings HIRFIRITEE 1,469 =
Tax payable FERT IR - 899
733,207 583,679
Net current liabilities mEAEFE (677,427) (579,151)
Total assets less current liabilities EELBERRDER 1,399,516 1,333,104
Non-current liabilities EmBAE
Secured bank borrowings EEBIRITEER 34,150 -
1,365,366 1,333,104
Capital and reserves BEAR R HE
Share capital & A 7,942 7,942
Reserves (Note) e (Ha) 1,357,424 1,325,162
1,365,366 1,333,104
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45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 45. ZAATZUHBMRREK (&)

(Continued)
Note: Mt -
Movements of the Company’s reserves during the current and prior AR EERFARBEFE 2 EBMNT

years are as follows:

Share Capital Contributed ~ Accumulated
premium reserve surplus profits Total
R4 5RE BEXGE AR B vyl “E
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHET FHET FHET
At 1 April 2016 R2016F4A1H 218,330 196,565 220,937 698,888 1,334,720
Loss and total comprehensive REEBBK
expense for the year FHEATLE - - - (1,616) (1,616)
Dividend ) - - - (7,942) (7,942)
- - - 9,558) (9,559)
At 31 March 2017 2017438317 218,330 196,565 220,937 689,330 1,325,162
Profit and total comprehensive REERMK
income for the year 2EBAEBE - - - 36,233 36,233
Dividend RE - - - 3,971) (3,971)
- - - 32,262 32,262
At 31 March 2018 % 201843 A31H 218,330 196,565 220,937 721,592 1,357,424

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZ B EBE AR A T
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Financial Summary

MBENBE

RESULTS E 3

Year ended 31 March

HZE3HMBLEE
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Revenue BEE 275,757 649,475 693,374 529,475 331,521
Profit (loss) before taxation BRETADRF (E5E) 23,836 243,569 196,968 (219,885) 319,809
Taxation Fi| (6,701) (20,963) (32,326) (23,961) (22,646)
17,135 222,606 164,642 (243,846) 297,163
Profit (loss) for the year JEIEAFEE m T
attributable to: (E8) :
— owners of the Company S VNG & 13,036 202,867 138,936 (243,846) 297,163
- non-controlling interests — IR RS 4,099 19,739 25,706 = =
17,135 222,606 164,642 (243,846) 297,163
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 31 March
M3A31AH
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET F&r FET FET FET
Total assets BEE 5,283,049 5,583,588 4,124,851 3,871,349 4,434,511
Total liabilities BAR (1,838,784) (1,688,789) (1,031,851) (1,019,089) (1,244,356)
Net assets BEFE 3,444,265 3,894,799 3,093,000 2,852,260 3,190,155
Equity attributable to owners A ] &R
of the Company (R 2,728,517 2,972,214 3,093,000 2,852,260 3,190,155
Non-controlling interests FEIERR R 715,748 922,585 - - -
Total equity B 3,444,265 3,894,799 3,093,000 2,852,260 3,190,155
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Summary of Properties

Y= BE

As at 31 March 2018
HK20184%3H31H

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Location

b7l

1. Block A on Seventh Floor and
Car Parking Space No. L11,
No. 481 Castle Peak Road,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon
NERDES ILE4815
T8 2 ABE 2 L115R B L

2.  Block B1 and portion of
Block B on Seventh Floor,
No. 481 Castle Peak Road,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon
NERDES 1LB4815%
718 2 B1EE R BEEEB 5

3. Easy Tower, No. 609
Tai Nan West Street,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon
NERDE
N FE 75 160955
KE B

4. Shops 1, 2, 3 on Ground
Floor together with showcase on
Ground Floor, First Floor and
Second Floor of Fa Yuen Plaza,
No. 19 Fa Yuen Street,
Mong Kok, Kowloon
FLEER A
EEE195%
TEEESH T -2 3RF MM T
BE Rk

Purpose

ke

Industrial

I

Industrial

T

Industrial/commercial

TR /A%

Commercial

CES

REW=

Approximate
gross floor/
saleable area
WAEE,
BEAEE

(sq. ft.)
(FHR)

11,874

6,992

74,458

13,544

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZ B EBE AR A T
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Lease term

HNFEH
Medium

Gk

Medium

H Hj
Medium

Gk

Medium

b
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Summary of Properties

YI=BE

As at 31 March 2018
H20184%3H31H

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Location

bk

5. Ground Floor, No. 50 Yun Ping Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
B RE
B iE505k 1 T~

6. Shops A and B on Ground Floor and
Shop C on First Floor, One Victory,
Nos. 1, 1A and 3 Victory Avenue,
Ho Man Tin, Kowloon
BEfI S B FIZE 157 - 1ASE 2355
BEFE15% 0 TAR B R —12CH

Purpose

ke

Commercial

CES

Commercial

[EES

B. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

Location

1. Nos. 301,301A-C
Prince Edward
Road West,
Ho Man Tin, Kowloon

NERXHAATEA3015% 52

301A - C5%

2. Nos. 93, 93A, 95 & 95A
Waterloo Road, Kowloon

BT EE935  93A5% Ed

9557 R95A5%

Note: The Group owns 9 equal undivided 12th parts of share of the

land lot.

196
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Purpose

it R

Residential

Residential

Approximate
gross site area
B FHEE
(59. 1t)
(F75)

A REWE(E)

Approximate
gross floor/
saleable area
WHEE,
BEAEE

(sq. ft.)
(FHR)

1,200

3,953

B. BEHERRWE

Percentage of

interest Lease term
BEAA HOFEH
Note Long

Hiz =H

100% Long

=5

Lease term

B FH

Long

=&

Medium

A

Stage of completion

TRER

Under development

ZRH

Under development

ERS

Wi - ANEEEAR R+ —EEH 2 A IEE

R 5 Bl
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